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Introduction to the Statement of Accounts

Councillor Preface

The County Council continues to face significant financial challenges as a result of inflationary and service demand

pressures. The latest Medium Term Financial Strategy (MTFS), approved in February
2023, sets a balanced budget for 2023/24, but with gaps in funding for the following 3
financial years; £13m in 2024/25 rising to £88m by 2026/27. This position is after
identified savings inthe MTFS of £37m that need to be delivered. In addition, there are
continuing significant pressures on the dedicated schools grant (DSG) with an
accumulated deficit of £30m as at 315t March 2023 which is forecast to increase to
around £80m by 2026/27. To bridge the gap several initiatives arebeinginvestigated to
generate further savings.

The Council is ontrackto meet these challenges because of the forward planningand its
excellent track record in delivering savings. Credit must be given to our excellent staff,
who continue to work under tight budgetary controls yet still deliver high quality

“

services.

With many pressures over the horizon | am confident that the Council is well placed to meet these challenges.

Mr. L. Breckon

Cabinet Lead Member for Corporate Resources

Foreword from the Director of Corporate Resources

The County Council is operatingin an extremely challengingfinancial environment
following more than a decade of austerity and spending pressures, particularly from
socialcareandspecial education needs, and more recently the Covid-19 pandemic and
risinginflation. Thereis also significantuncertainty and risk around future funding
levels.

Despite these challenges the 2022/23 revenue and capital outturns were both delivered
within budget. During2022/23 the Council has invested ina number of capital projects,
all funded without the need for any new borrowing,including:

- £35minvestment in Children and Family Services, including 970 additional school places
- £20m investment in highways maintenance
- £13m on major road improvements inthe County

Delivery of the Capital Programme will continue to be challenging, especially given rising inflation and increased
demand for new schools and roads. However, with continued hard work and careful planning we expect to continue
to deliver value for money capital projects.

I would liketo thank all our staff for their work to manage the Council’s budget in what has been another incredibly

challengingyear.

D Keegan

Director of Corporate Resources

H Leicestershire
County Council
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1. Organisational Overview and
External Environment

The Council has consolidated its priority outcomes into
its Strategic Plan for 2022-26. The Strategic Plan sets
out the Council’s long-term vision for Leicestershire
and its priorities over a four-year period. It is a key
strategy which shapes how the Council plans and
delivers services.

Leicestershire remains the lowest funded county
council in the country with greater risks as a result
The Council’s financial position continues to be
extremely challenging, with £250m saved since 2010
and a further £150mto saveby 2026/27. The position
is serious with major implications for the provision of
services to the people of Leicestershire. Reductions in
government funding, rising demands and rising
inflation have madeitincreasingly difficultto maintain
good service delivery levels and target service
improvements where required.

The current funding system does not share national
resources fairly,and thisviewis shared by many others
inlocal government. The Council has presented a new
simplified funding model to central government based
on factors that drive demand for local services. It
allocates money in a fair way, based on need, and
narrows the gap between the highest and lowest
funded councils. Amove to a fairer funding model is
an urgent requirement to help tackle the Council’s
financial challenges.

Leicestershire as a Place

Leicestershirecovers an area of 208,000 hectares, with
a population of around 713,000 people. The
population has grown by 9.5% sincethe 2011 Census,
which is faster than the national and regional growth
rates. The County population is predicted to reach
860,000 by 2043, with particular growth among the
over 70’s. 82% of Leicestershire’s area is classified as
rural while 70% of the population livein our towns and
urbanareas.

Out of work benefit claimant rates are consistently
below national and regional levels but remain higher
than before the COVID-19 pandemic. Manufacturing
is the largest industrial sector in the county,
accounting for 13% of all employment, followed by
Professional, Scientific and Technical (11%) and
Transportand Storage (10%). 90% of our residents tell
us that they are satisfied with the county as a placeto
live, significantly higher than the equivalent national
figure.

H Leicestershire
County Council

The Council plays an activerolein place shaping and
responding to local needs such as working with
partners to agree a Strategic Planning Framework,
working sub-regionally (with Leicester City and the
Leicestershire district authorities) and working
regionally on economic and transport planning, such
as with the Midlands Engine and new Freeport.

Leicestershire County Council

Leicestershire County Council is an upper tier of local
government with 55 councillors who are elected every
4 years. The Council has 6,108 employees (excluding
schools)organised into 6 departments:

. Childrenand Family Services
. Adults and Communities

. Environment and Transport
. Public Health

. Chief Executives

. Corporate Resources

2. Governance

The Council’s Annual Governance Statement (AGS)
summarises the outcome of the Council’s review of the
Governance Framework that has been in placeduring
2022/23. The statement demonstrates that the
Council has in placeeffectivearrangements, but that it
recognises the need to continuouslyreview,adaptand
develop its governance arrangements to meet the
changing needs of the authority. There were 2
significant governance issues in 2022/23 which are
further explainedinsection 8 of the AGS.

3. Risks and Opportunities

A risk management strategy is in placeto identify and
evaluate risk. The Council’s corporate risk register
contains the most significantrisks which the Council is
managing. Separate riskregisters arein place for key
departmental and servicerisks. Central government
funding reductions and rising demands have seen a
higher level of risk needing to be managed and this has
been further exacerbated by the COVID-19 crisis and
resulting economic impact.

4. Strategy & Resource Allocation

The Council has developed five strategic outcomes
that are essential for good quality of life in
Leicestershire. These set out aspirations for local
people and places, describing the results we want
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people to see and experience intheir dailylives:

Clean, green future: The environment is protected
and enhanced, and we tackle climate change,
biodiversity lossand unsustainableresourceusage.
Great Communities: Leicestershire has thriving
inclusive communities in which people support
each other and participatein service design and
delivery.

Improving Opportunities: Every child gets the best
startforlifewith access to a good quality education
and everyone has the opportunities they need to
fulfil their potential.

Strong economy, transport and infrastructure:
Leicestershire has a productive, inclusive and
sustainable economy and infrastructure which
meets the demands of a growing population and
economy.

Keeping people safe and well: The people of
Leicestershireare safeand protected from harm.

These key strategic outcomes form partof the Council’s
medium-term financial planning process which covers a
four-year periodandis refreshed annually.

5. Financial Performance

Revenue Budget

A summary of the net revenue outturn for 2022/23 is setout below:

2021/22 2022/23

Budget Outturn  Variance Budget Outturn  Variance

£m £m £fm £m £m £m
157.7 160.1 2.4 Adults & Communities 186.3 189.5 3.1
12.8 12.9 0.1 Chief Executive’s 15.9 15.8 (0.1)
90.5 86.8 (3.7) Children & Family Services 94.5 97.7 3.1
354 36.5 1.1 Corporate Resources 39.5 41.2 1.6
84.7 81.0 (3.7) Environment & Transport 92.0 90.1 (1.8)
(2.3) (2.3) 0.0 Public Health (1.4) (1.4) 0.0
61.7 65.2 3.5 Central Items and Contingencies 449 47.2 2.3
4415 441.2 (0.3) 471.7 480.0 8.3

Funded by:

(69.4) (72.0) (2.6) Business Rates (74.5) (89.5) (15.0)
(329.9) (334.9) (5.0) Council Tax (355.2) (355.2) 0.0
0.0 0.0 0.0 Revenue Support Grant 0.0 0.0 0.0
(30.4) (30.4) 0.0 General Grants (42.0) (42.0) 0.0
(11.8) (11.8) 0.0 Covid-19 General Grants 0.0 0.0 0.0
(441.5)  (449.) (7.6) (471.7)  (486.7) (15.0)
0.0 (7.9) (7.9) NET OUTTURN 0.0 (6.7) (6.7)

The 2022/23 net outturn was a net underspend of £6.7m, which has been set aside in earmarked reserves to provide
funding for additional commitments. The financial year saw significant additional inflationary pressures and also
increasingdemand pressures on children’s and adultsocial careservices. The additional business rates income includes
f£13marisingfroma changein theallocation basis of the Business Rates Pool levies during 2022/23. An equivalentamount
was included under Central Items setting aside the funds in the Capital Financing earmarked reserve for future capital
schemes, this was partially offset in the Central items line by £7m of additional interest on balances, relating to higher

baserates.

The Authority has made significantprogress in achieving the savings in the MTFS, but there is still a long way to go. The
2023-27 MTFS includes a savings requirement of £150m, including High Needs DSG savings.

H Leicestershire
County Council
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Capital Budget

A summary of the capital outturnfor 2022/23 is setout below:

2021/22 2022/23
Budget Outturn  Variance Capital Budget Outturn  Variance

£m £m £m £fm £m £m
5.2 5.0 (0.2) Adults & Communities 5.4 4.8 (0.6)
2.3 13 (1.0) Chief Executive’s 1.0 0 (1.0)
38.8 26.6 (12.2) Children & Family Services 47.7 34.7 (13.0)
2.5 1.2 (1.3) Corporate Programme 15.0 9.3 (5.7)
8.6 7.0 (1.6) Corporate Resources 6.1 3.7 (2.3)
61.4 411 (20.3) Environment & Transport 49.5 419 (7.6)
0.0 0.0 0.0 Public Health 0.0 0.0 0.0
118.8 82.2 (36.6) 124.7 94.4 (30.3)

Overall there has been a net underspend of £30.3m compared with the updated budget. The net underspend has been

carried forward to the 2023-27 capital programmeto fund delayed projects.

Further detail of the budget outturn variances for revenue and capital can be found be in the Cabinet report dated 26

May 2023 availableon the County Council’s Website.

6. Operational Performance

The Council maintains a strong focus on performance
management through its corporate performance
management, commissioning and benchmarking
arrangements. Performance management is well
embedded through regular performance reporting
across organisational governancearrangements.

The Council regularly monitors its performance
position and areas for improvement through service
benchmarking. Looking atpublished data for 2021/22,
the Council’s overall performance position was 5th of
32 two-tier county and county unitary areas, using a
basket of over 240 performance indicators spanning
Council and partnership activity.

Ina separateexercise,iMPOWER Consulting has in the
past analysed the productivity of English local
authorities using published data, taking performance
metrics and calculating overall outputs per pound
invested. The Council was ranked top performer for
the last 3 published years — reflecting the Council’s
good overall performance and also the fact
Leicestershireis the lowest funded county and has to
maintain rigorous costand efficiency controls.

M Leicestershire
County Council

The Council’s strategic outcomes set out our
aspirations for our people and places. The following
chart sets out our progress towards the outcomes
from the Council Strategic Plan 2022-26. Where itis
available, the chart indicates which comparative
quartile Leicestershire’s performance falls into based
upon the latestpublished national data, which in most
cases is for the previous year.

The 1st quartileis defined as performance that falls
within the top 25% of relevant comparators. The 4th
quartileis defined as performancethat falls within the
bottom 25% of relevant comparators.

Where itis available, the chartalso indicates whether
performance has improved, is similar to, or has
declined compared over the pastyear.

The Authority’s Annual Delivery Report and
Performance Compendium provides a more detailed
account of performance duringthe year.



https://www.leicestershire.gov.uk/about-the-council/how-the-council-works/leader-and-cabinet/council-performance
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Strategic Plan Outcomes (May 2023) Quartile

Mo quartile data

This summarises performance against the Council Strategic Plan 2022-26. Colours represent W
performance quartiles in relation to comparator local authorities, where available. The 1st quartile Ms
(green) represents performance within the top 25% of comparators. Direction of travel shows E
latest performance with previous year. LB
Outcome Supperting Outcome Improve  Similar  Decline
Local environment protected 3 1
Clean and Low carbon economy il | 8 3 E
Green People tackle climate change = 2 3 1
Resources used sustainably - 2 1
Communities are resilient 3 2 1
Great Diversity is celebrated 1 3 3 1
Communities People help design services 2@ 2 1 3 z
People volunteer 13 2 2
Access to quality education s = s = 11 4 g
mproved Every child gets best start in life [N 5 il 4
Opportunities Families are self-sufficient E: 1
People reach their potentia _ 4 - 6 3 4
Long lives in good health D : s 2 10 5
e People are safe in their daily lives |IIIIEINETTS 3 1 6
safe s el People at risk are protected H: 23 E] 2 4
People with care needs supported [ZINEDEEEE 9 :] 3 10
Businesses invest and flourish  [NENEL 2 2 1
Strong ncreased prosperity for all [ L EEREE 3 4 4
Economy nfrastructure for growth B : i 4 2 3
Skill supply and demand =z 1z 4 il 3

Where itis available, the chartindicates the number of indicators within each outcome and the quartileinwhich
Leicestershire’s performance falls into for each indicator. The 1stquartileis defined as performance that falls within
the top 25% of relevant comparators. Where it is available, the chart also indicates whether performance has
improved, is similar to, or has declined compared to the lastrelevantdata point.

7. Medium Term Financial Strategy

Medium Term Financial Strategy (MTFS)

The County Council continues to operate in an extremely challenging financial environment following more than a
decade of austerityand spending pressures, particularly fromsocial careand special education needs and disabilities
(SEND). These arechallenges beingfaced by all 150 upper tier authorities.These pressures continuetoincrease. There
is also additional financial strain arising fromsignificantincreases ininflation affectingall serviceareas..

The Authority’s latest 4 year Medium Term Financial Strategy (MTFS) agreed in February 2023 is based on a council
tax increaseof4.99% for 2023/24, followed by annual increases of 1.99%in the followingyears. Delivery of the MTFS
requires savings of £125m to be made between 2023 and 2027. The MTFS sets out in detail £37m of savings and
proposed reviews that will identify further savings to offset the forecast£88m fundinggap by 2026/27.

A further £25m of savings will be required over the MTFS period to ensure that High Needs fundingcan be contained
within the annual government grant. This is in addition to a forecast dedicated schools grant deficit of £81m by

2026/27.

Strong financial control, plansand disciplinewill beessential in the delivery of the MTFS.

H Leicestershire
County Council 6
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There is littledoubt that the Authority faces the most uncertainandriskyfinancial environmentfor a generation.
The MTFS is reviewed annuallyintheautumn to reflect the latest view on availableresources. The current MTFS is
available on the Authority’s website - leicestershire.gov.uk/mtfs

8. Current Borrowing / Investments

The capital financing requirement (CFR) shown in note 39 to the financial statements measures the Authority’s need
to borrowfor capital purposes. Thetotal of non-current assets as at31 March 2023 was £1.0bn (as at 31 March 2022
£1.0bn). The CFR was £208masat31 March 2023 (£214mas at31 March 2022) and actual debt was £262m as at 31
March 2023 (£263m as at 31 March 2022). The difference between the CFR and the actual debt is a temporary
overborrowed position, pending the repayment of debt. During 2022/23 no new external loans were raised (EOm
2021/22). Details of the loans held by the Authority are shown in note 44 to the financial statements. The level of
capital borrowingis within the Authority’s 2022/23 Prudential Indicators thatinformthe Authority whether its capital
investment plans areaffordable, prudent and sustainable.

Investments held by the Authority total £450m as at31 March 2023 (£352m 31 March 2022). Investments are made
inaccordancewith the Annual Investment Strategy that ensures that deposits are only made with financial institutions
that meet certain minimum creditcriteria as laid down by the Authority’s Treasury Management advisors.

9. Basis of Preparation and Contents of the Statement of Accounts

The Statement of Accounts which follows sets out the Authority’s income and expenditure for the year, and its
financial positionsas at31 March 2023. 1t comprises primary statements, together with disclosure notes. The format
and content of the financial statements is prescribed by the CIPFA Code of Practiceon Local Authority Accountingin
the United Kingdom 2022/23, which in turn is underpinned by International Financial Reporting Standards adapted
for useina publicsector context. The Statement of Accounts consists of:

a. Movement in Reserves Statement:

This financial statement shows the movement duringthe year on the different reserves held by the Authority,
analysedinto ‘usablereserves’ (i.e.those that can be applied to fund expenditure or reduce local taxation) and
‘unusable’ reserves. This statement shows how the movements inyear of the Authority’s reserves arebroken
down between gains and lossesincurredinaccordancewith generally accepted accounting practices and the
statutory adjustments required to return to the amounts chargeableto council tax for the year. The net
increase/ decrease line shows the statutory general fund balance movements in the year following those
adjustments.

b. Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement (CIES):
This financial statement shows the accounting cost in the year of providing services in accordance with
generally accepted accounting practices, rather than the amount to be funded from taxation. The Authority
raises taxation to cover expenditure inaccordance with statutory regulations which may be different from the
accounting cost. The taxation position is shown in both the Expenditure and Funding Analysis note to the
accounts, and the Movement in Reserves Statement. The CIES has two sections:

- Surplus or Deficiton the Provision of Services —theincrease or decreasein the net worth of the Authority
as aresultof incurringexpenses and generating income.

- Other Comprehensive Income and Expenditure — shows any changes in net worth which have not been
reflected in the Surplus or Deficiton the Provision of Services. Theseincludethe changein the net worth
of the Authority as a result of movements inthe fairvalueofits assets andactuarial gains orlosseson
pension assets and liabilities.

C. Balance Sheet:

The Balance Sheet shows the value as of 315t March 2023 of the assets and liabilities recognised by the
Authority. Itincorporates all the funds of the Authority, both capital and revenue, with the exception of the
Pension Fund and Trust funds.

The net assets of the Authority (assets less liabilities) are matched by the reserves held by the Authority.
Reserves are reported intwo categories. The firstcategory of reserves are usablereserves, i.e. those reserves
that the Authority may use to provide services, subjectto the need to maintaina prudentlevel of reserves and

H Leicestershire
County Council 7
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10.

any statutory limitations on their use (for examplethe Capital Receipts Reserve may only be used to fund capital
expenditure or repay debt). The second category of reserves is those that the Authority is not able to use to
provide services. This category of reserves includes reserves that hold unrealised gains or losses (for example
the Revaluation Reserve), where amounts would only become available to provide services if the assets are
sold; and reserves that hold timing differences shown in the Movement in Reserves Statements line
‘Adjustments between accountingbasisandfundingbasisunder regulations’.

Cash Flow Statement:

The Cash Flow Statement shows the changes in Cash and Cash Equivalents of the Authority duringthe reporting
period. This financial statement shows how the Authority generates and uses Cash and Cash Equivalents by
classifying cash flows as operating, investing and financing activities. Theamount of net cas h flows arising from
operating activities isa key indicator of the extent to which the operations of the Authority are funded by way
of taxation and grant income or from recipients of services provided by the Authority. Investing activities
represent the extent to which cash flows have been made for resources which are intended to contribute to
the Authority’s future servicedelivery. Cash flows arising fromfinancingactivities are useful in predicting claims
on future cash flows by providers of capital (i.e. borrowing) to the Authority.

Disclosure Notes:
Provides more detail aboutindividual transactions and balances. Thesupplementary Financial Statements are;
The Annual Governance Statement, andthe Pension Fund Account.

Pension Fund:

The Pension Fund statement of accountdetails the annual results of the Leicestershire Authority administered
Local Government Pension Fund, covering both Authority employees andthose of other admitted bodies.

Date of Authorisation of Accounts

The accounts were authorised for issue by the Director of Corporate Resources on the 24 May 2024. This was the last
date when events after the Balance Sheet date have been considered.

D KEEGAN
DIRECTOR OF CORPORATE RESOURCES
24 MAY 2024

al

Leicestershire
County Council 8
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Movement In Reserves Statement

General Earmarked Total Capital Capital Total Unusable Total No
Fund Balance Reserves General Receipts Grants Usable Reserves  Authority te
Balance Fund Reserve  Unapplied Reserves Reserves
Balance
£m £m £m £m £m £m £m £m
Movement In Reserves During 2022/23
Balance at 31 March 2022
29.3 2245 253.8 0.2 0.7 254.6 189.8 444 .4
Brought Forward
Total Comprehensive Income (54.9) 0.0 (54.9) 0.0 0.0 (54.9) 599.4 544.6
and Expenditure
Adjustments between
accounting basis & funding
. . 53.7 (2.2) 51.5 0.0 4.2 55.7 (55.7) 0.0
basis under regulation
Increase/ (Decrease) in Year (1.2) (2.2) (3.4) 0.0 4.2 0.9 543.7 544.6
Balance at 31 March 2023 28.1 2223 2504 0.2 49 2555 7335 989.0
Carried Forward
Movement In Reserves During 2021/22 (Restated)
Balance at 31 March 2021
26.7 175.0 201.7 0.1 1.5 203.3 (77.9) 1254
Brought Forward
Prior period adjustment 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 (36.8) (36.8)
Restated Balance 1 April 2021 26.7 175.0 201.7 0.1 1.5 2033 (114.7) 88.6
Total Comprehensive Income
. 20.1 0.0 20.1 0.0 0.0 20.1 335.6 355.7
and Expenditure
Adjustments between
accounting basis & funding
. . (17.6) 49.5 319 0.1 (0.8) 31.2 (31.2) 0.0
basis under regulation
Increase/ (Decrease) in Year 2.6 49.5 52.1 0.1 (0.8) 51.3 304.4 355.7
Balance at 31 March 2022 29.3 2245 2538 0.2 07 2546 189.8 444.4

Carried Forward

H Leicestershire
County Council
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Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement

2021/22 (restated) 2022/23
Gross Gross Net Note Gross Gross Net
Expenditure Income Expenditure Expenditure Income Expenditure
£m £m £m £m £m £m
CONTINUING SERVICES
299.7 (149.5) 150.2 Adults and Communities 309.7 (125.3) 184.5
22.9 (6.7) 16.2 Chief Executive’s 27.3 (8.5) 18.7
370.0 (231.4) 138.6 Childrenand Family Services 402.8 (272.6) 130.3
102.0 (46.9) 55.1 Corporate Resources 109.6 (44.5) 65.1
127.2 (23.7) 103.5 Environment and Transport 144.5 (25.7) 118.8
39.0 (47.0) (8.0) Public Health 36.3 (35.8) 05
0.3 (3.4) (3.1) Central Items 0.0 (3.8) (3.8)
961.1 (508.7) 452.4 NET COST OF SERVICES 1,030.2 (516.1) 514.1
Other Operating Expenditure
(Excluding transfer of
0.3 (0.5) (0.2) Academies) 12 0.3 (0.3) 0.0
Other Operating Expenditure
35 0.0 3.5 (Transfer of Academies) 12 26.7 0.0 26.7
Financingand Investment
62.2 (37.4) 248  Income and Expenditure 13 80.9 (57.2) 23.7
Taxation and Non-specific
0.0 (500.6) (500.6)  GrantIncome 14 0.0  (509.7) (509.7)
(20.1) (SURPLUS) / DEFICIT ON PROVISION OF SERVICES 54.9
Items that will not be reclassified to the (surplus) or deficit on the
provision of services:
(23.2) Surplus on Revaluation of Property, Plantand Equipment (note 16) (19.6)
(312.5) Remeasurement of the Net Defined Benefit Liability/(Asset) (note 15) (579.8)
Total Items that Will Not Be Reclassified to the (Surplus) or Deficit on the
(335.7) Provision of Services (599.4)
(355.8) TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE (INCOME) AND EXPENDITURE (544.6)

H Leicestershire
County Council

10
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Balance Sheet

Restated
1 April 2021 31 March 2022 Note 31 March 2023
£m £m £m
405.9 406.3 Land and Buildings 16 404.1
9.9 13.8 Vehicles, Plant, Furniture & Equipment 16 13.9
428.1 4395 Infrastructure Assets 17 446.1
11.3 11.3 Community Assets 16 11.3
65.1 70.0 Assets Under Construction 16 58.3
0.9 2.9 Surplus Assets 16 3.4
921.2 943.8 Total Property, Plant and Equipment 937.1
1.7 1.8 Investment Property 19 1.6
4.7 4.7 Heritage Assets 18 4.7
3.9 2.8 Intangible Assets 16 1.9
50.9 61.7 Long Term Investments 20 85.4
28.7 27.1 Long Term Debtors 22 26.3
1,011.1 1,041.9 TOTAL NON-CURRENT ASSETS 1,057.0
0.2 10.2 Assets Held for Sale 16 11.2
1.3 1.8 Inventories 21 1.8
139.7 126.1 Short Term Debtors 23 123.1
98.4 112.8 Cashand Cash Equivalents 24 71.1
210.2 290.5 Short Term Investments 20 364.8
449.8 541.4 TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS 572.0
(3.7) (3.7) Short Term Borrowing 20 (3.7)
(195.9) (191.8) Short Term Creditors 26 (188.4)
(12.5) (8.5) Short Term Capital Grants Receipts in Advance 36 (59.3)
(0.1) (0.1) Short Term Financelease Liabilities 40 (0.1)
(3.4) (5.8) Short Term Provisions 27 (6.8)
(215.6) (209.9) | TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES (258.3)
(265.3) (264.8) Long Term Borrowing 20 (264.3)
(1.0) (1.0) Long Term Finance Lease Liabilities 40 (0.9)
(7.2) (7.0) Long Term Creditors 25 (6.2)
(3.3) (1.8) Long Term Provisions 27 (1.7)
(835.6) (576.4) Net Pensions Liability 10 (34.6)
(44.3) (78.0) Long Term Capital Grants Receipts in Advance 36 (74.0)
(1,156.7) (929.0) TOTAL NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES (381.7)
88.6 444 .4 NET ASSETS / (LIABILITIES) 989.0
26.7 29.3 General Fund 11A 28.1
175.0 2245 Earmarked Revenue Reserves 11 2223
0.1 0.2 Capital Receipts Reserve 0.2
1.5 0.7 Capital Grants Unapplied 4.9
203.3 254.7 TOTAL USABLE RESERVES 255.5
1924 202.5 Revaluation Reserve 10 215.0
558.5 600.5 Capital Adjustment Account 10 589.1
(4.2) (4.0) Financial Instruments Adjustment Account 10 (3.7)
(835.6) (576.4) Pension Reserve 10 (34.6)
(8.0) (1.1) Collection Fund Adjustment Account 10 1.8
(6.7) (7.5) Accumulated Absences Adjustment Account 10 (6.2)
0.0 0.0 Pooled Investment Funds Adjustment Account 10 2.2
(11.1) (24.3) Dedicated Schools Grant Adjustment Account 10 (30.2)
(114.7) 189.7 TOTAL UNUSABLE RESERVES 7335
88.6 4444 | TOTAL RESERVES 989.0

H Leicestershire
County Council

11




26

Primary Statements

Cash Flow Statement

2021/22 (restated) 2022/23
£m Note £m
(20.1) Net (surplus) or deficiton the provision of services 1 54.9
(136.7) Adijustments to net (surplus) or deficit on the provision of 28 (155.0)
services for non-cash movements
55.3 Adjustments foritems includedinthe net (surplus) or deficit 28 31.8
on the provision of services thatare investingand financing
activities
(101.5) Net cashflows from Operating Activities (68.3)
86.6 Net cashflows fromInvesting Activities 29 109.5
0.5 Net cashflows fromFinancing Activities 30 0.5
(14.4) Net (Increase)/Decrease in Cash and Cash Equivalents 41.7
(98.4) Cash and Cash Equivalents at the Beginning of the Reporting 24 (112.8)
Period
(112.8) Cash and Cash Equivalents at the End of the Reporting 24 (71.1)

Period

The notes to the financial statements are detailed on pages 13— 80.

s}
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Notes to the Accounts

Note 1: Expenditure and Funding Analysis

The Expenditure and Funding Analysis shows how annual expenditure is used and the way in which itis funded from
resources (e.g. grants, council taxand business rates) by the Authority in comparison with those resources consumed or
earned in accordance with generally accepted accounting practices. It also shows how this expenditure is allocated for
decision making purposes between the Authority’s departments. Income and expenditure accounted for under generally
accepted accounting practices is presented more fullyinthe Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement.

Expenditure and Funding Analysis Statement 2022 /23

As Adjustments Net Adjustments Net
Reported to arrive at the Expenditure between Expenditure
to the net amount Chargeable to  Funding and in the CIES
Service Segment Cabinet funded from the General Accounting
May 2023 General Fund! Fund Basis
£m £m £m £m £m
Adults and Communities Department 189.5 (9.3) 180.2 4.3 184.5
Chief Executive’s Department 15.8 15 17.3 14 18.7
Children and Family Services Department 97.7 6.6 104.3 25.9 130.3
Corporate Resources Department 41.2 3.0 44.2 20.9 65.1
Environment and Transport Department 90.1 55 95.6 23.2 118.8
Public Health Department (1.4) 1.3 (0.1) 0.6 0.5
Central Items 47.1 (22.6) 24.5 (28.2) (3.8)
Net Cost of Services 480.0 (14.0) 466.0 48.1 514.1
Other Income and Expenditure (486.7) 24.0 (462.7) 3.4 (459.3)
(Surplus) or Deficit (6.7) 10.1 34 51.5 54.9
Opening General Fund Balance (253.8)
Less /Plus Surplus or (Deficit) on General Fund Balancein Year 3.4
Closing General Fund Balance (250.4)

1 Due to differences in the Cabinet re port compared with the require ments for the CIES. For example; capital financing costs are
reportedto the Cabinet as part of Central Items but are shown within Other Income and Expenditure forthe CIES, and also
move ments to reserves made inthe accounts afterthe Cabinetreport (use of the surplus to earmarked reserves).

Expenditure and Funding Analysis Statement 2021 /22 (restated)

As Adjustments Net Adjustments Net
Reported to arrive at the Expenditure between Expenditure
to the net amount Chargeable to Funding and in the CIES
Service Segment Cabinet funded from the General Accounting
May 2022 General Fund Fund Basis
£m £m £m £m £m
Adults and Communities Department 160.1 (18.6) 141.5 8.7 150.2
Chief Executive’s Department 12.9 (0.1) 12.8 3.4 16.2
Children and Family Services Department 86.8 1.0 87.8 50.8 138.6
Corporate Resources Department 36.5 0.6 37.1 18.0 55.1
Environment and Transport Department 81.0 0.0 81.0 224 1034
Public Health Department (1.3) (7.7) (9.0) 1.0 (8.0)
Central Items 34.8 (15.1) 19.7 (22.8) (3.1)
Net Cost of Services 410.8 (39.9) 3709 81.5 452.4
Other Income and Expenditure (418.7) (4.3) (423.0) (49.5) (472.5)
(Surplus) or Deficit (7.9) (44.2) (52.1) 31.9 (20.1)
Opening General Fund Balance (201.7)
Less /Plus Surplus or (Deficit) on General Fund Balancein Year (52.1)
Closing General Fund Balance (253.8)

M Leicestershire
County Council
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Note 2: Expenditure and Funding Analysis (a)
This note provides reconciliation for the main adjustments to Net Expenditure chargeableto the General Fund to arrive
at the amounts in the CIES. The relevant transfers between reserves are explained in the Movement in Reserves

Statement (MIRS).

Adjustments Between Funding and Accounting Basis 2022 /23

Adjustments from the GCF toarrive at the Adjustments for Adjustments for Other Total
CIES Capital Purposes  Pensions Purposes Adjustments Adjustments
£m £m £m £m
Service Segment
Adults & Communities Department 1.6 3.1 (0.4) 4.3
Chief Executive’s Department 0.1 1.5 (0.1) 1.4
Children and Family Services Department 11.9 8.1 6.0 259
Corporate Resource Department 15.8 5.6 (0.5) 20.9
Environment & Transport Department 20.2 3.3 (0.3) 23.2
Public Health Department 0.0 0.7 0.0 0.6
Central Items (28.2) (0.1) 0.0 (28.2)
Net Cost of Services 213 22.2 4.6 48.1

Other Income and Expenditure from the
Expenditure and Funding Analysis (10.3) 15.9 (2.2) 3.4

Difference between the GCF surplus or
deficit and the CIES surplus or deficit on
provision of services 11.1 38.0 24 51.5

Adjustments Between Funding and Accounting Basis 2021/22 - (restated)

Adjustments from the GCF to arrive at the Adjustments for Adjustments for Other Total
CIES Capital Purposes Pensions Purposes Adjustments Adjustments
£fm £m £m £m

Service Segment

Adults & Communities Department 2.2 6.5 0.0 8.7
Chief Executive’s Department 13 2.1 0.0 3.4
Children and Family Services Department 23.8 13.2 13.9 50.8
Corporate Resource Department 9.9 8.1 0.0 18.0
Environment & Transport Department 17.0 5.4 0.0 22.4
Public Health Department 0.0 0.9 0.0 0.9
Central Items (22.8) 0.0 0.0 (22.8)
Net Cost of Services 313 36.2 13.9 81.5

Other Income and Expenditure from the
Expenditure and Funding Analysis (67.5) 17.1 0.9 (49.5)

Difference between the GCF surplus or
deficit and the CIES surplus or deficit on
provision of services (36.2) 53.3 14.9 31.9

M Leicestershire
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1) Adjustments for capital purposes - this column adds in depreciation and impairment
and revaluation gains and losses in the services line, and for:

Other operating expenditure — The adjustments for capital disposals with a transfer of income on disposal of assets and
the amounts written off for those assets.

Financing and investment income and expenditure — The statutory charges for capital financingi.e. Minimum Revenue
Provision (MRP) and other revenue contributions are deducted from other income and expenditure as these are not
chargeableunder generally accepted accountingpractices.

Taxation and non-specific grant income and expenditure — Where capital grants areadjusted forincomenot chargeable
under generally accepted accounting practices. Revenue grants are adjusted from those receivable in the year to those
receivablewithout conditions or for which conditions were satisfied throughout the year. The Taxationand Non Specific
Grant Income and Expenditure lineis credited with capital grants receivablein the year without conditions or for which
conditions were satisfied in theyear.

2) Net change for the removal of pension contributions and the addition of IAS 19
Employee Benefits pension related expenditure and income:

For services - This represents the removal of the employer pension contributions made by the authority as allowed by
statute and the replacement with current service costs and pastservicecosts.

For financing and investment income and expenditure - This represents the net interest on the defined benefit liability
is charged to the CIES.

3) Other differences between amounts debited /credited to the Comprehensive Income
and Expenditure Statement and amounts payable/receivable to be recognised under
statute:

For Financing and investment income and expenditure - The other differences column recognises adjustments to the
General Fund for the timing differences for premiums and discounts.

The charge under taxation and non-specific grant income and expenditure — This represents the difference between
what is chargeableunder statutory regulations for council tax and NDR that was projected to be received at the startof

the year and the income recognised under generally accepted accounting practices in the Code.

Income received by the Authority is analysed on a segmental basis as follows:

2021/22 2022/23
Income from Services Service Segment Income from Services
£m £m

(149.5) Adults and Communities Department (125.3)

(6.8) Chief Executive’s Department (8.5)

(231.4) Children and Family Services Department (272.6)

(46.9) Corporate Resources Department (44.5)

(23.7) Environment and Transport Department (25.7)

(47.0) Public Health Department (35.8)

(3.4) Central items (3.8)

(508.7) Total Income Analysed on a Segmental Basis (516.1)

M Leicestershire
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Note 2: Expenditure and Funding Analysis (b)
The Authority's expenditure andincome is analysed as follows:

Restated! 2021/22 2022/23

£m

£m

Expenditure

322.1 Employee Benefits Expenses 3384
54.8 IAS 19 and Other Pension Cost Adjustments 39.5
547.8 Other Service Expenses 619.4
50.5 Depreciation,amortisation and impairment 52.1
14.2 Interest Payments 143
0.3 Precepts and Levies 0.3
3.0 Loss on Disposal of Non-Current Assets 26.4
992.8 Total Expenditure 1,090.4
Income
(184.4) Fees, Charges and Other Income (173.1)
(3.6) Interestand Investment Income (10.2)
(410.0) Council Taxand NNDR (444.3)
(414.9) Government Grants and Contributions (408.0)
1,012.9 Total Income (1,035.5)
(20.1) (Surplus) or Deficit on Provision of Services 54.9

1the Otherservice expenses row has beenincreased by £14m (andthe Depreciation, amortisation and impairment row reduced by
£14m), to correct the disdosure of Reffcus expenditure.
Note 3: Accounting standards issued but not yet adopted

At the balancesheet date, the following new standards and amendments to existing standards havebeen published but
not yet adopted by the Code of Practice of Local Authority Accounting inthe United Kingdom:

e Definition of Accounting Estimates (Amendments to IAS 8).
e Disclosureof Accounting Policies (Amendments to IAS 1 and IFRS Practice Statement 2).

e Deferred Taxrelated to Assets and Liabilities arising from a Single Transaction (Amendments to IAS 12).
e Updated to reference to the 2018 Conceptual Framework (Amendments to IFRS 3).

These changes are not expected to have a material impacton the Council’s statements of accounts.

Note 4: Critical Judgements in Applying Accounting Policies
In applyingthe accountingpolicies set outin Note 47, the Authority has had to make certain judgements about complex

transactions or those involving uncertainty about future events. There were no critical judgements made that need
reporting.:

M Leicestershire
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Note 5: Assumptions Made about the Future and Major Sources of

Estimation Uncertainty

The Statement of Accounts contains estimated figures that are based on assumptions made by the Authority about the
future or that are otherwise uncertain. Estimates are made taking into account historical experience, current trends and

other relevant factors. However, becausebalances cannotbe determined with certainty, actual results could be materially
different from the assumptions and estimates.

The items inthe Authority’s BalanceSheet at 31 March 2023 for which there is a significantrisk of material adjustmentin

the forthcoming financialyear areas follows.

ltems

Uncertainties

Effect if actual results differ from assumptions

Property, Plant
and Equipment

Asset valuations arebased on market prices and
are periodically reviewed to ensure that the
Council does not materially misstateits non-
current assets. The Council’s external valuers
provided valuations as at31 March 2023 for
over 50% of its operational portfolio. The
remainingbalance of operational properties
were alsoreviewed to ensure values reflect
current values.

The carryingvalue of Property, Plantand
Equipment at 31 March 2023 is £937m.

The net book value of non-current assets
subjectto potential revaluationis £404m.

A reductioninthe estimated valuations would
resultinreductions to the Revaluation Reserve
and/ ora lossrecorded as appropriateinthe
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure
Statement.

Ifthe value of the Council's operational
properties were to reduce by 10%, this would
resultina chargeto the Comprehensive
Income and Expenditure Statement and or
Revaluation reserve of approximately £40m

Pensions Liability

Estimation of the net liability to pay pensions
depends on a number of complex judgements
relatingto the discountrate used, the rate at
which salaries areprojected to increase,
changes inretirement ages, mortality rates and
expected returns on pension fund assets. An
independent firm of consultingactuariesis
engaged to providethe Authority with expert
adviceabout the assumptions to be applied,
although ultimate responsibility for forming
these assumptions remains with the Authority.

The carryingvalueof the net Pension Liability at
31 March 2023 is £35m.

The effects on the net pension liability of
changes inindividual assumptionscan be
measured. Forinstance,a 0.1% decreaseinthe
discountrate assumption would resultinan
increaseinthe pensionliability of £28m. A one
year increasein member life expectancy
compared with the assumption used would
increasethe liabilities by £66m.

However, the assumptions interactin complex
ways. During2022/23,the Authority’s Actuary
advised that the net pension liability had
increased by £245m as a result of estimates
being corrected as a resultof experience and
decreased by £839m attributableto updating
of the assumptions.

Note 6: Material Items of Income and Expense

There are no significant material items ofincome and expense that need reporting.

Note 7: Events after the Balance Sheet Date

The Statement of Accounts was authorised for issue by the Director of Corporate Resources on 24 May 2024. Events
taking placeafter this date are not reflected in the financial statements or notes. Where events taking place before this

M Leicestershire
County Council
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date provided information about conditions existingat31 March 2023, the figures inthe financial statements and notes
have been adjustedinall material respects to reflect the impactof this information.

Note 8: Prior Period Adjustments

Prior period adjustments may ariseas a resultofa change inaccounting policies or to correct a material error. Where a
changeis made, itis applied retrospectively by adjusting opening balances and comparativeamounts for the prior
period as ifthe new policy had always been applied. Changes inaccountingestimates are accounted for prospectively,
i.e.in the current and future years affected by the change, and do not give riseto a prior period adjustment.

Property, Plantand Equipment

A prior period adjustment of £40m (31 March 2022) has been made to correctthe valuations of maintained school
assets and to remove assets held at historic cost. Duringthe 2022/23 audititwas identified that school valuations
undertaken by the Councils external valuers were overstated. Non-school buildingareas wereincorrectly valued atthe
same rate as the buildingareas —which attracta higher valuation. Further investigation identified thatthe
overstatement originated in 2019/20. All school valuations since 2019/20 have now been updated resultingina
reduction inthe value of school land of £22m and a reduction of £8m in the value of school buildings.

Separately, the Council has also reviewed assets held at historic cost. This has identified thatsome of these assets were
no longer owned by the Council and needed removing from the fixed assetregister and some needed to be revalued
down. These adjustments amounted to £10m of the adjustment made.

The values of these assets aredeemed material andsoa prior period adjustmenthas been applied to the accounts. The
overall effect of the prior period adjustmentis as follows:

Balance Sheet: Closing balanceof Land and Buildings has reduced by £36.7min2020/21and £40.1min2021/22.
Balance Sheet: Closing balance of UnusableReserves has reduced by £36.7min2020/21and £40.1min 2021/22.
CI&ES: The Net Cost of Services in 2021/22 has decreased by £0.5m for Children and Family Services.

CI&ES: Surplus onrevaluation of Property, Plantand Equipment in2021/22 has decreased by £3.8m.

MIRS: Unusablereserves as at 31 March 2022 have decreased by £40.1m

MIRS: Total authority reserves as at31 March 2022 have decreased by £40.1m

Cashflow: The net surplus onthe Provision of Services has increased by £0.5m during2021/22

Cashflow: The adjustments to net (surplus) or deficiton the Provision of Services for non-cash movements has increased
by £0.5m during2021/22.

The followingtables showthe adjustments made.

Restated Balance Sheet Previous Asset Restated Previous Asset Restated
Balance Revaluatio Balance Balance Revaluatio Balance
31 March ns (Note 1 April 31 March ns (Note 31 March
21 17) 2021 22 17) 22
£m £fm fm £m £fm fm
Property, Plant & Equipment 957.9 (36.7) 921.2 983.9 (40.1) 943.8
Net Assets 125.3 (36.7) 88.6 484.5 (40.1) 444.4
UnusableReserves (78.0) (36.7) (114.7) 229.8 (40.1) 189.7
Total Reserves 125.3 (36.7) 88.6 484.5 (40.1) 444.4
Restated CIES Previous Asset Restated
Balance Revaluations Balance
Net (Note 17) Net
Expenditure fm Expenditure
31 March 22 31 March 22
fm £fm
Children & Family Services Net Expenditure 139.1 (0.5) 138.6
Net Cost of Services 4529 (0.5) 452.4
(Surplus) / Deficit on Provision of Services (19.6) (0.5) (20.1)

H Leicestershire
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Surplus on Revaluation of Property, Plant & Equipment (27.0) 3.8 (23.2)
Total Items that will notbe reclassified to the (surplus) or deficit
on the Provision of Services (339.5) 3.8 (335.7)
Total Comprehensive (Income) and Expenditure (359.1) 3.3 (355.8)
Restated MIRS Total Usable Unusable Total
Reserves Reserves Authority
Reserves
£m f£m £fm
Balance as at 31 March 2021 203.3 (77.9) 125.4
Prior Period Adjustment (Note 8) 0 (36.8) (36.8)
Restated as at 1 April 2021 203.3 (114.7) 88.6
Total Comprehensive Income and Expenditure 19.6 3395 359.1
Prior Period Adjustment (Note 8) 0.5 (3.9) (3.3)
Restated Comprehensive Income and Expenditure as at 31 20.1 335.6 355.7
March 22
Adjustments between accountingbasisand fundingbasisunder
regulation (Note 8) 31.7 (31.7) 0
Prior Period Adjustment (Note 8) (0.5) 0.5 0
Restated Adjustments between accounting basis and funding
basis under regulation (Note 8) as at 31 March 2022 31.2 (31.2) 0
Increase / (Decrease) in Year 51.3 3044 355.7
Restated Balance at 31 March 2022 carried forward 254.6 189.8 444.4
Restated Cashflow Previous Asset Restated
Balance Revaluations Balance
31 March 22 (Note 17) 31 March 22
fm £fm £m
Net (surplus) or deficiton the provision of services (19.6) (0.5) (20.1)
Adjustments to net (surplus)or deficiton the provision of services
for non-cash movements (137.2) 0.5 (136.7)
Adjustments foritems includedinthe net (surplus)or deficiton
the provision of services thatare investingand financing activities 55.3 0.0 55.3
Net cash flows from Operating Activities (101.5) 0.0 (101.5)

The primary statements and notes to the accounts have been updated for these changes.

Financial Instruments — Note 20

A prior period adjustment has been made to Note 20 to the accounts. The values reported for debtors and creditors
have been updated to exclude payments inadvanceandreceipts inadvance, respectively, that had been includedin
error. The adjustments made are reported below. Note 20 to the accounts has been updated for these changes.

31 March Adjustment Revised 31 March Adjustment Revised
2022 fm 31 March 2022 fm 31 March
Long Term 2022 Current 2022
fm Long Term fm Current
£m £m
Debtors 27.1 0.0 27.1 105.0 (21.1) 83.9
Total Financial Assets 88.8 0.0 88.8 508.3 (21.1) 487.2
Creditors 85.0 (78.0) 7.0 177.6 (32.1) 145.5
Total Financial Liabilities 351.0 (78.0) 273.0 181.3 (32.1) 149.2
H Leicestershire
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Note 9: Adjustments between Accounting Basis and Funding Basis under
Regulations

This note details the adjustments that are made to the total comprehensive income and expenditure recognised by the
Authority in the year in accordance with proper accounting practice to the resources that are specified by statutory
provisions as being available to the Authority to meet future capital and revenue expenditure. The following sets out a
description of the reserves that the adjustments aremade against.

General Fund Balance

The General Fund is the statutory fund into which all thereceipts of an Authority areto be paidintoand out of, which all
liabilities of the Authority are to be met, except to the extent that statutory rules might provide otherwise. These rules
canalsospecifythe financialyearin which liabilities and payments should impacton the General Fund Balance, whichis
not necessarily in accordance with proper accounting practice. The General Fund Balance therefore summarises the
resources that the Authority is statutorily empowered to spend on its services or on capital investment.

Capital Receipts Reserve

The Capital Receipts Reserve holds the proceeds from the disposal of land or other assets, which arerestricted by statute
from being used other than to fund new capital expenditure or to finance historical capital expenditure. The balanceon
the reserve shows the resources that have yet to be applied for these purposes at the year-end.

Capital Grants Unapplied

The Capital Grants Unapplied Reserve holds the grants and contributions received towards capital projects for which the
Authority has met the conditions thatwould otherwiserequirerepayment of the monies, but which haveyet to be applied
to meet expenditure. The balanceis restricted by grantterms as to the capital expenditureagainstwhichitcanbeapplied
and when this has to take placeby.

M Leicestershire
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Usable Reserves

2022/23

General Fund
Balance

£m

Capital
Receipts
Reserve

£m

Capital Grants
Unapplied

£m

Movement in
Usable
Reserves
£m

Adjustments to the Revenue Resources

Amounts by which income and expenditure includedinthe Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement aredifferent
from revenue for the year calculated in accordance with statutory requirements:

Pension Costs 38.0 38.0
Financial Instruments (0.2) (0.2)
Council Taxand NDR (2.9) (2.9)
Accumulated Absences (1.3) (1.3)
Pooled Investment Funds (2.2) (2.2)
Transferred to DSG Adjustment Account 5.9 5.9
Reversal of entries included inthe Surplus or Deficiton
the Provision of Services inrelation to capital expenditure 85.1 4.2 89.3
Total Adjustments to Revenue Resources 122.4 0.0 4.2 126.6
Transfer of Non-Current assetsale proceeds from revenue
to the Capital Receipts Reserve (1.1) 1.1 0.0
Statutory provision for the repayment of debt (MRP) (6.2) (6.2)
Principal repayments of transferred Debt

1.4 1.4
Capital expenditurefinanced from revenue balances (25.8) (25.8)
Total Adjustments between Revenue and Capital
Resources (31.7) 1.1 0.0 (30.6)
Use of the Capital Receipts Reserve to financecapital
expenditure (1.1) (1.1)
Application of capital grants to financecapital
expenditure (39.1) (39.1)
Total Adjustments to Capital Resources (39.1) (1.1) 0.0 (40.2)
Total Adjustments 51.5 0.0 4.2 55.7
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Usable Reserves

2021/22 (restated)

General Fund
Balance
£m

Capital
Receipts
Reserve

£m

Capital Grants
Unapplied

£m

Movement in
Usable
Reserves
£fm

Adjustments to the Revenue Resources

Amounts by whichincome and expenditure included inthe Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement aredifferent
from revenue for the year calculated in accordance with statutory requirements:

Pension Costs 53.3 53.3
Financial Instruments (0.3) (0.3)
Council Taxand NDR (6.9) (6.9)
Accumulated Absences 0.8 0.8

Transferred to DSG Adjustment Account 13.2 13.2

Reversal of entries included in the Surplus or Deficiton

the Provision of Services inrelation to capital expenditure 60.5 (0.8) 59.7

Total Adjustments to Revenue Resources 120.6 (0.8) 119.8

Adjustments between Revenue and Capital Resources

Transfer of Non-Current assetsale proceeds from revenue

to the Capital Receipts Reserve (7.2) 7.2 0.0

Statutory provision for the repayment of debt (MRP) (18.2) (18.2)
Principal repayments of transferred Debt & Local

Authority Mortgage Scheme (LAMS) 1.4 1.4

Capital expenditurefinanced from revenue balances (5.9) (5.9)
Total Adjustments between Revenue and Capital

Resources (29.9) 7.2 (22.8)
Adjustments to Capital Resources

Use of the Capital Receipts Reserve to financecapital

expenditure (7.1) (7.1)
Application of capital grants to financecapital

expenditure (58.7) (58.7)
Total Adjustments to Capital Resources (58.7) (7.1) (65.8)
Total Adjustments 31.9 0.1 (0.8) 31.2

'd Leicestershire
County Council

22




37

Notes to the Accounts

Note 10: Unusable Reserves
Revaluation Reserve

The revaluation reserve contains the gains made by the Authority arising fromincreases in the value of Property, Plant
and Equipment, and Intangible Assets. The balanceis reduced when assets withaccumulated gains are:

= revalued downwards or impaired and the gains arelost.
= used in the provision of services and the gains are consumed through depreciation or disposed of and the gains
arerealised.

The Reserve contains only revaluation gains accumulated since 1 April 2007, the date that the Reserve was created.
Accumulated gains arising beforethat date are consolidated into the balanceon the Capital Adjustment Account.

(Restated)
2021/22 2022/23
£m £m
215.0 Balance at 1 April 202.5
(22.6)  Prior Period Adjustment (Note 8) 0.0
192.4 Restated balance 1 April 202.5
(1.8) Adjustment between Revaluation Reserve and Capital 0.0
’ Adjustment Account?! ’
41.3 Upward revaluation ofassets 51.0
(18.1) Downward revaluation of assets losses notcharged to the (31.4)
’ Surplus or (Deficit) on the Provision of Services ’
(7.5) Amounts of non-current assets written off on disposal orsale (2.4)
’ as partof the gain/loss on disposal to the CIES ’
(3.7) Difference between fair valuedepreciation and historical cost (4.7)
’ depreciation ’
202.5 Balance at 31 March 215.0

1 Correction of past revaluationreserveand capital adjustmentaccountbalances to the fixed assetregister

Capital Adjustment Account

The Capital Adjustment Account absorbs the timing differences arising from the different arrangements for accounting
for the consumption of non-current assets and for financing the acquisition, construction or additions to those assets
under statutory provisions. The Account is debited with the cost of acquisition, construction or subsequent costs as
depreciation,impairmentlossesand amortisationsare charged to the CIES (with reconciling postings from the Revaluation
Reserve to convert fair valuefigures to a historical costbasis).

The Account is credited with the amounts set aside by the Authority as financefor the costs of acquisition, construction
andsubsequent costs. The accountalso contains revaluation gainsaccumulated on Property, Plantand Equipment before

1 April 2007, the date that the Revaluation Reserve was created to hold such gains.

Note 8 to the accounts provide details of the source of all the transactions posted to the Account, apart from those
involving the Revaluation Reserve.
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(Restated)
2021/22 2022/23
£m £m

572.6 Balance at 1 April 600.5

(14.1) Prior Period Adjustment (Note 8) 0.0

558.5 Restated balance 1 April 600.5

1.8 Adjustment between Revaluation Reserve and Capital Adjustment Account?! 0.0
Reversal of items relating to capital expenditure debited or credited to
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure:

(36.8) Charges for depreciation of non-current assets (26.5)
(9.0) Revaluationlosses on Property, Plantand Equipment (20.0)
(1.1) Amortisation of intangibleassets (0.9)
(3.6) Revenue expenditure funded from capital under statute (0.1)

(13.9) Amounts of non-current assets written off on disposal or saleas partofthe (32.2)

gain/lossondisposal to the CIES

496.1 520.8
11.3 Adjustingamounts written out of the revaluation reserve 7.1

507.4 Net written out amount of the costs of non-current assets consumedinyear 527.9

Capital financing applied in year:
7.1 Use of the Capital Receipts Reserve to financenew capital expenditure 1.1
Capital grants and contributions credited to the Comprehensive Income and
58.8 . . . ) . 34.9
Expenditure Statement that have been appliedto capital financing
08 Application of grants to capital financing fromthe Capital Grants Unapplied 0.0
’ Account .
Statutory provision for the financing of capitalinvestment charged againstthe
18.2 6.2
General Fund Balance
3.7 Fairvalueprofitand (loss)valuations (5.4)
14 -
=5 Principal Repayments of transferred Debt (1.4)
6.0 Capital expenditurecharged againstthe General Fund Balance 25.8
0.0 Movements inthe Fair Valueof Investment Properties 0.0
600.5 Balance at 31 March 589.1

A

1 Correction of past revaluationreserveand capital adjustmentaccountbalances to the fixed assetregister

Financial Instruments Adjustment Account

Leicestershire
County Council

The Financial Instruments Adjustment Account absorbs the timing differences arising from different arrangements for
accounting for income and expenses relating to certain financial instruments and for bearing losses or benefitting from
gains per statutory provisions. The Authority uses the Account to manage premiums paid and discounts received on the
early redemption ofloans.Premiums and discounts are taken to the CIES when they are incurred, but reversed out of the
General Fund Balanceto the Account inthe MIRS.

Over time, the expense is posted back to the General Fund Balance in accordance with the statutory arrangements for
spreading the burden on council tax. For early repayments since 1 April 2007, this period is the lesser of the remaining
period of the loan(s) being repaid or a maximum of 10 years. All premiums and discounts prior to this date are charged
over a period of up to 25 years.
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2021/22 2022/23
£m £m
(4.2) Balance at 1 April (4.0)
Amounts by which financecosts charged to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement are
different from finance costs chargeablein the year inaccordance with statutory requirements:

0.4 Annual write down of premiums paid on rescheduled debt 0.4
(0.2)  Annual write down of discounts received on rescheduled debt (0.1)
(4.0) Balance at 31 March (3.7)

Pensions Reserve

The Pensions Reserve absorbs the timing differences arising from the different arrangements for accounting for post-
employment benefits and for fundingbenefits inaccordance with statutory provisions.

The Authority accounts for post-employment benefits inthe CIES as the benefits are earned by empl oyees accruingyears
of service, updating the liabilities recognised to reflect inflations, changing assumptions and investment returns on any
resources set aside to meet the costs. However, statutory arrangements require benefits earned to be financed as the
Authority makes employer’s contributions to pension funds or eventually pays any pensions for which itis directly
responsible.

The debit balance on the Pension Reserve therefore shows a substantial shortfall in the benefits earned by past and
current employees andthe resources the Authority has set asideto meet them. The statutory arrangements will ensure
that funding will have been set aside by the time the benefits come to be paid.

2021/22 2022/23
£m £m
(835.6) Balance at 1 April (576.4)
312.8 Remeasurements of the net defined benefit liability 579.8
(101.2) Reversal of items relatingto retirement benefits debited or (91.0)
credited to the Surplus or (Deficit) on the Provision of Services in
the CIES
47.6 Employer’s pensions contributions and direct payments to 53.0

pensioners payablein the year

(576.4) Balance at 31 March (34.6)

Collection Fund Adjustment Account

The Collection Fund Adjustment Account manages the differences arising from the recognition of council tax and non-
domestic rates income in the CIES as it falls due from council tax payers and business rates payers compared with the
statutory arrangements for payingacross amounts to the General Fund from the Collection Funds (of billingauthorities).

2021/22 2022/23
£m £m

(8.0) Balance at 1 April (1.1)
Amount by which council tax and non-domestic ratingincome
credited to the CIES is different from council tax and non-domestic
ratingincome calculated for the year inaccordance with statutory
6.9 requirements. 29

(1.1) Balance at 31 March 1.8

M Leicestershire
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Accumulated Absences Account

The Accumulated Absences Account absorbs the differences that would otherwise arise on the General Fund from
accruing for compensated absences earned but not taken inthe year, e.g. annual leave entitlement carried forward at31
March. Statutory arrangements require that the impact on the General Fund is neutralised by transfers to or from the
Account.

2021/22 2022/23
£m £m
(6.7) Balance at 1 April (7.5)
6.7 Settlement or cancellation of accrual madeat the end of the preceding year 7.5
(7.5) Amounts accrued at the end of the current year (6.2)
Amount by which officer remuneration chargedto the CIES on an accruals
(0.8) basisisdifferentfrom remuneration chargeableinthe year inaccordance 14

with statutory requirements

(7.5) Balance at 31 March (6.2)

Pooled Investment Funds Adjustment Account

The pooled investment funds adjustment accountis a mechanismthatis required by the Capital Financeand Accounting
regulations to hold the fair value movements in those pooled investment funds specified by the regulations. The
difference between the amount charged or credited in the year to the surplus or deficit on the provision of services in
accordancewith the Code and the amount charged or credited to the General Fund inaccordance with regulations should
be debited or credited to the General Fund with the double entry going to the pooled investment funds adjustment
accountsuchthat the General Fund is charged or credited with the amount that accords with the applicableregulations.

2021/22 2022/23
£m £m
0.0 Balance at 1 April 0.0
Fair value movements transferred to/from the General Fund in
0.0 accordance with the statutory regulations 2.2
0.0 Balance at 31 March 2.2

Dedicated Schools Grant Adjustment Account

The Dedicated Schools Grant adjustment account holds accumulated deficits relating to the schools budget. Where the
authority has incurred a deficit on its schools budget in years beginning 1 April 2020 ending 31 March 2026, the Local
Authorities (Capital Financingand Accounting) Regulations do not allow for such amounts to be included in the General
Fund and instead must be held in this adjustment account.

2021/22 2022/23
£m £m
(11.1) Balance at 1 April (24.3)
School budget deficittransferred from General Fund in
(13.2) accordance with statutory requirements (5.9)
(24.3) Balance at 31 March (30.2)

M Leicestershire
County Council 26
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Note 11A: General Fund Balance

The balanceofthe fund includes thefollowingsums:

2021/22 2022/23
£m £m
113 Delegated Funding for Schools 9.1
0.0 Carry forward of underspend across other services 0.0

113 Earmarked Reserves as at 31 March 9.1

18.0 Uncommitted balance 19.0

293 Balance at 31 March 28.1

Note 11: Movements in Earmarked Revenue Reserves
The followingtable outlines the movements inthe Authority’s earmarked reserves:
Balance Transfers Transfers  Balance Transfers  Transfers Balance
at 31 From To at 31 From To at 31
March Revenue Revenue March Revenue Revenue March
2021 2022 2023
£m £fm £m £m £fm £m £m

Insurance 13.8 1.9 0.0 15.7 1.3 (1.2) 15.9
Renewals of Vehicles & Equipment 4.2 0.6 (0.8) 4.0 1.1 (3.1) 2.0
Children & Family Services
- C&FS Developments 1.0 1.7 (0.6) 2.1 3.0 (2.2) 2.8
Adults & Communities
- A&C Developments 5.6 0.5 (3.8) 2.3 0.2 (0.8) 1.8
- Health & Social Care Outcomes 8.9 9.0 (3.0) 14.9 2.7 (4.5) 13.1
Public Health
- General 1.8 9.7 (0.2) 113 0.0 (2.8) 8.4
- Active Together 1.4 0.0 0.0 1.4 0.1 (0.0) 1.5
Environment & Transport
- Commuted Sums 3.1 0.8 (0.6) 3.3 0.6 (1.2) 2.7
- LLITM 2.1 0.0 (0.5) 1.6 0.5 (0.8) 1.3
Corporate
- Capital Financing 64.4 58.2 (11.7) 110.9 28.7 (28.3) 111.3
- Transformation Fund 9.2 1.9 (3.6) 7.5 5.0 (3.3) 9.3
- Broadband 2.4 0.5 (0.5) 2.4 0.0 (0.3) 2.1
- Business Rates Retention 8.1 33 (7.5) 3.9 0.0 (3.3) 0.6
- Budget Equalisation 24.0 7.9 0.0 31.9 25.8 (18.3) 39.5
- Carbon Neutral Investment Fund 0.0 2.0 0.0 2.0 0.0 (0.0) 2.0
Other (reserves below £1m at 31 March 23) 25.0 9.0 (24.7) 9.3 2.3 (3.5) 8.1
TOTAL 175.0 107.0 (57.5) 2245 713 (73.5) 2223

The followingarethe mainreserves held by the Authority, as at315tMarch 2023:

M Leicestershire
County Council
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Insurance - the insurancepolicies held by the Authority require a significantlevel of self-insurance, the level of this
being recommended by independent advisers. The monies set asidefor self-insurancearesplitbetween a provision
representing outstanding liabilities, unsettled at 31 March 2023, and a reserve to meet future claims.

Health & Social Care Outcomes - reserve usedin conjunction with Health partners across Leicestershire.

Public Health - to fund Public Health initiatives within Leicestershire. The Department has a detailed plan of public
health initiatives, includingthoserelatingto Covid-19, to be implemented over the next two to three years.

Capital Financing - revenue contributions to fund capital expenditurein future years.

Transformation Fund - a programme of projects to deliver efficiency savings and serviceimprovements across the
Authority and to fund potential restructuring costs of reconfiguringthose services.

Budget Equalisation - fundingset asideto manage variationsinfundingacrossfinancialyears.

Note 12: Other Operating Expenditure

2021/22 2022/23
£m £m
0.3 Flood Defence Levies 0.3
(0.5) (Gains)/losses onthe disposalof non-currentassets (Excluding (0.3)
Academies)
3.5 (Gains)/losses onthe disposal of Academies 26.7
3.3 Total 26.7

Note 13: Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure

2021/22 2022/23
£m £m
14.0 Interest payableandsimilar charges 14.0
17.1 Net Pensionsinterestcostand expected return on pensions 15.8
assets
(3.6) Interestreceivableand similarincome (10.2)
0.0 Income & Expenditure inrelationto investment properties and 0.0
changes intheir fairvalue
(2.8) Gains/losses on financial instruments classified as fair value 3.7
through profit or loss
0.1 Other investment income & Expenditure 0.3
248 Total 23.7

Note 14: Taxation and Non-Specific Grant Incomes

2021/22 2022/23
£m £fm
(339.4) Council taxincome (354.3)
(70.6) Non-domestic rates (90.0)
(32.0) Non ring-fenced government grants (26.2)
(58.7) Capital grants and contributions (39.2)
(500.6) Total (509.7)

H Leicestershire
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Note 15: Pensions Revenue Costs

a) Local Government Pension Scheme - A defined benefit scheme

As part of the terms and conditions of employment of its officers, the Authority makes contributions towards the costof
post-employment benefits. Although these benefits will notactually be payableuntil employees retire, the Authority has
a commitment to make the payments that need to be disclosed atthetime that employees earn their future entitlement.

The Authority participates in the Local Government Pension Scheme (LGPS) for employees, administered locally by
Leicestershire County Council — this is a funded defined benefit final salary scheme, meaning that the Authority and
employees pay contributions intoa fund, calculated ata level intended to balancethe pension liabilities with investment
assets.

The Leicestershire County Council Pension Scheme is operated under the regulatory framework for the LGPS and the
governance of the scheme is the responsibility of the Local Pension Committee of Leicestershire County Council. Policyis
determined in accordance with the Pension Fund Regulations. The investment managers of the fund are appointed by
the committee.

The principal risks to the authority of the scheme are the longevity assumptions, statutory changes to the scheme,
structural changes to the scheme (i.e. large-scale withdrawals from the scheme), changes to inflation, bond yields and
the performance of the equity investments held by the scheme. These are mitigated to a certain extent by the statutory
requirements to chargeto the General Fund the amounts required by statute as describedinthe accounting policies note
47.

The Authority recognises the cost of retirement benefits in the reported cost of services when they are earned by
employees, rather than when the benefits are eventually paid as pensions. However, the charge required to be made
against council tax is based on the cash payable in year, so the real cost of post-employment / retirement benefits is
reversed out of the General Fund via the Movement in Reserves Statement.

The IAS 19 balancesheet net pensiondeficitas at 315t March 2023 has decreased sincethe previous year. The discount
rate usedinthe valuationincreased (inlinewith AArated corporatebondyields)from 2.7% to 4.8%, which had the impact
of decreasingthe present valueof future liabilities. Overallthenet pension liability decreasedto £35m(31 March 2022,
£576m).

The followingtransactions have been made inthe Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement and the Movement
in Reserves Statement duringthe year:

2021/22 2022/23
£m £m

Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement
Cost of Services

Service cost comprising:

84.7 Current servicecost 81.5
0.1 Pastservicecosts 0.3
(0.7) Settlements and Curtailments (6.6)

Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure:
17.1 Net Interest expense 15.8

Total Post Employment Benefit Charged to the Surplus or Deficiton the Provision of
101.2 Services 91.0

M Leicestershire
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Other PostEmployment Benefit Charged to the Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure Statement

Remeasurement of the net defined benefit liability comprising:
Return on planned assets (excludingthe amount included in the net interest

(144.8) expense) 65.8
Actuarial gains/losses arising from changes in demographic assumptions

(12.5) Actuarial gains/losses arising fromchanges in financial assumptions (14.2)

(156.7) Other (824.3)

1.7 192.8

Total Post Employment Benefit Charged to the Comprehensive Income and
(211.1) Expenditure Statement (488.9)

Movements in Reserves Statement
Reversal of net charges made to the Surplus or Deficitfor the Provision of Services for

101.2 post-employment benefits inaccordancewith the code 91.0
Actual amount charged againstthe General Fund Balancefor Pensions inthe year

(45.2) Employers contributions payableto scheme (50.3)

(2.8) Unfunded benefits (2.7)

53.2 Total amount charged againstthe General Fund Balancefor Pensions in the year 38.0

The cumulativeamount of actuarial gains and losses recognised in Other Comprehensive Income and Expenditure in the
actuarialgainsorlosseson pensionassets and liabilities lineat31 March 2023 was aloss of £35mand at 31 March 2022
was a loss of £576m.

b) Pension Assets and Liabilities in Relation to Post-employment Benefits

The fair valueof the assets of the Authority at 31 Marchis as follows:

2021/22 2022/23
£m £m
1,506.9 As at 1 April 1,680.8
30.1 Interest Income 453
Remeasurement gain/(loss):
144.8 Return on planassets (65.8)
0.0 Other experience (25.1)
447 Employer contributions 50.3
10.5 Contributions by scheme participants 11.0
(58.5) Benefits paid (60.1)
2.9 Contributions inrespect of unfunded benefits 2.9
(0.6) (Losses)/ Gains on settlements (5.8)
0.0 Asset ceilingadjustment (14.2)
1,680.8 As at 31 March 1,619.2

M Leicestershire
County Council 20



45

Notes to the Accounts

The present value of the liabilities (defined benefit obligation) of the Authority at 31 Marchis as follows:

2021/22 2022/23
£fm £m
(2,293.9) Present valueof funded obligations (2,214.9)
Present value of unfunded obligations:
(10.4) - Local government pension scheme (9,2)
(38.1) - Teachers scheme (33.1)
(2,342.4) As at 1 April (2,257.2)
(84.7) Current servicecost (81.6)
(47.2) Interest Cost (61.2)
(10.5) Contributions by scheme participants (11.0)
Remeasurement (gains)andlosses:
125 Changes in demographic assumptions 14.2
156.7 Changes infinancialassumptions 824.3
(1.3) Other experience (153.7)
Pastservicecosts:
(0.1) (Losses)/ Gains on curtailments (0.1)
58.5 Benefits paid 60.1
1.3 Liabilities extinguished on settlements 12.4
(2,257.2) As at 31 March (1,653.8)
(2,214.9) Present valueof funded obligations (1,619.3)
Present value of unfunded obligations:
(9,2) Local government pension scheme (7.7)
(33.1) Teachers scheme (26.8)

The expected return on scheme assets is determined by considering the expected returns available on the assets
underlyingthe currentinvestment policy. Expected yields on fixed interest investments are based on gross redemption
yields as at the Balance Sheet date. Expected returns on equity investments reflect long-term real rates of return
experienced inthe respective markets.

In2022/23,the local government pension scheme (LGPS) has net assets of £14.2m due to changes in the financial
assumptions andin particular theincreasein the discountrateused. Inaccordancewith proper accounting practice,an
assetceilingcalculation has been undertaken which shows that the net assetcannot be realised. As a result, the
Councils netassets (and the net pension liability)is reduced by £14.2m.

Local Government Pension Scheme assets comprised:

2021/22 2022/23
% of total % of total
£m assets £fm assets
Equity Securities:
14.0 1% Other 5.1 0%
Debt Securities:
84.4 5% UK Government 75.2 5%
3.1 0% Other 6.9 0%
112.4 7% Private Equity 111.8 7%
Real Estate:
129.3 8% UK Property 115.8 7%

Investment Funds and Unit

H Leicestershire
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Trusts:
773.9 46% Equities 715.2 44%
0.0 0% Bonds 0.0 0%
0.0 0% Hedge Funds 0.0 0%
42.2 3% Commodities 42.0 3%
87.9 5% Infrastructure 133.6 8%
345.2 20% Other 390.2 24%
Derivatives
Interest rate
35 0% Foreign Exchange 1.0 0%
84.9 5% Cashand Cash Equivalents 36.7 2%
0,
1,680.8 100% As at 31 March 1,633.5 L)
The scheme history of the pensionfund is as follows:
2018/19 2019/20 2020/21 2021/22 2022/23
£m £m £m £m £m

Present value

of liabilities: (2,043.9) (1,813.7) (2,342.4) (2,257.2) (1,653.8)
Fairvalue

of assets: 1,302.2 1,207.1 1,506.9 1,680.8 1,633.5
Asset Ceiling Adjustment 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 (14.2)
Surplus / (Deficit) (741.7) (606.6) (835.5) (576.4) (34.6)

The liability shows the underlying commitment that the Authority has in the long run to pay post-employment
(retirement) benefits. This total liability of £35m has a substantial impact on the net worth of the Authority as recorded
inthe BalanceSheet. However, statutory arrangements for funding the deficitwill resultinthe deficit being made good
by increased contributions by the employer, over the remaining working life of employees, as assessed by the actuary.

Basis for estimating assets and liabilities

Liabilities have been assessed on an actuarial basis using the projected unit credit method, an estimate of the pensions
that will be payablein future years dependant on assumptions about mortality rates, salary levels, etc. The Authority’s
Pension fund liabilities have been assessed by Hymans Robertson LLP, anindependent firm of actuaries, estimates for the
County Council fund being based on the latestfull valuation of the Pension Fund as at 315tMarch 2022.

The principalassumptions used by the actuary have been:

31 March 31 March
2022 2023

Mortality assumptions (inyears):
Longevity at 65 for current pensioners:

21.5 = Men 21.5

24.0 = Women 24.3
Longevity at 65 for future pensioners:

224 = Men 22.2

25.7 = Women 25.7

H Leicestershire
County Council

32



47

Notes to the Accounts

3.7% Rate of inflation 3.5%
3.7% Rate of increasesinsalaries 3.5%
3.2% Rate of increasein pensions 3.0%
2.7% Rate for discounting schemeliabilities 4.8%

Proportion of employees opting to commute part of their

annual pensiontoa retirement lump sum:
50% Pre April 2008 Service 55%
75% Post April 2008 Service 55%

The estimation of the defined benefit obligations is sensitive to actual assumptions setout in the table above. The
sensitivity analyses belowhavebeen determined basedon reasonably possible changes of the assumptions occurring at
the end of the reporting period and assumes for each change that the assumption analysed changes while all the other
assumptions remain constant.

The assumptions inlongevity, for example, assumethat lifeexpectancy increases or decreases for men and women. In
practice, thisis unlikelyto occur,and changes in some assumptions may be interrelated.

The estimations in the sensitivity analysis have followed the accounting policies for the scheme, on an actuarial basis,
usingtheprojected creditmethod. The methods and types of assumptions used in preparingthesensitivity analysis below

did not change from those used in previous years.

Sensitivities regarding the principal assumptions used to measure the scheme liabilities at31 March 2023:

Approximate % Approximate
Increase in Employer monetary amount
Liability (Em)
0.1% decrease in Real DiscountRate 2% 27.5
1 year increasein member life expectancy 4% 66.2
0.1% increaseinthe SalaryIncreaseRate 0% 2.8
0.1% increaseinthe PensionIncreaseRate 2% 25.2

The impact of a change, either from increase to decrease or vice versa, would be as above but with the values being
reversed.

Pension Fund Risk Management Strategy

The Fund’s primarylong-termriskis thatthe Fund’s assets will fall shortof its liabilities (i.e. the promised benefits payable
to members). Therefore, the aim of investment risk management is to minimise the risk of an overall reduction in the
value of the Fund and to maximise the opportunity for gains across the whole Fund portfolio. The fund achieves this
through assetdiversification toreduce exposure to market risk (pricerisk, currencyriskandinterestrate risk) and credit
risk to an acceptable level. In addition, the Fund manages its liquidity risk to ensure that there is sufficient liquidity to
meet the Fund’s required cash flows. These investment risks are managed as part of the overall pension fund risk
management programme.

Responsibility for the Fund’s risk management strategy rests with the Pension Fund Management Board andis monitored

annually or more frequently if required. Further details can be found within the Pension Fund Statement of Accounts,
included atthe end of this document.
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Impact on the Authority’s Cash Flows

The objectives of the scheme areto keep employers’ contributions ata constantrateas possible. The Authority has agreed
a strategy with the scheme’s actuaryto achievea fundinglevel of 100% over the next 17 years.The lasttriennial valuation
was completed on 31 March 2022.

The scheme will need to take account of the national changes to thescheme under the Public Pensions Services Act2013.
Under the Act, The Local Government Scheme inEngland and Wales and the other main existing public serviceschemes
may not provide benefits inrelation to serviceafter 31 March 2014 (or service after 31 March 2015 for other main existing
public service pension schemes in England and Wales). The Act provides for scheme regulations to be made within a
common framework, to establish new career average revalued earnings schemes to pay pensions and other benefits to
certain public servants.

The authority anticipates to pay £52.0m expected contributions to thescheme in 2023/24. The weighted average duration
of the defined benefit obligation for scheme members is 17 years, (2021/22,19 Years).

c) Teachers and Lecturers

Teachers employed by the Authority are members of the Teachers’ Pension Scheme, administered by the Department for
Education. The Scheme provides teachers with specified benefits upon their retirement. The Authority contributes
towards the costs by making contributions based on a percentage of members’ pensionablesalaries.

The Scheme is technically a defined benefitscheme. However, the Scheme is unfunded, and the Department for Education
uses a notional fund as the basis for calculating the employers’ contribution rate paid by Local Authorities. The Authority
is not able to identify its share of the underlying financial position and performance of the Scheme with sufficient
reliability for accounting purposes. For the purposes of this Statement of Accounts, itis therefore accounted for on the
same basis asa defined contribution scheme.

In 2022/23 the Authority paid £10.5m (2021/22 £10.7m) to the Teachers’ Pension Scheme in respect of teachers’
retirement benefits, representing 23.7%(2021/22 23.7%) of teachers’ pensionable pay. This is also the amount recognised
as an expense in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement with regards to this scheme. In addition, the
Authority is responsible for all pension payments relating to pension enhancements for added years’ service it has
awarded, together withthe related increases. In2022/23 theseamounted to £1.9m (2021/22 £1.9m), representing 4.6%
(2021/22 4.8%) of pensionable pay.

The Authority is responsiblefor the costs of any additional benefits awarded upon early retirement outside of the terms
of the teachers’ scheme. These costs are accounted for on a defined benefit basis and detailedin note 15b.

d) Public Health

Public Health staff who transferred to the Authority with effect from 1 April 2013 areand will continue to be members of
the NHS pension scheme administered by NHS Pensions. Any new employees to the Authority sincethis transfer will be
inthe Local Government Pension Scheme (LGPS), administered locally by Leicestershire County Council.

The NHS pension scheme provides public health staff with specified benefits upon their retirement. The Authority
contributes towards the costs by making contributions based on a percentage of members’ pensionable salaries.
However, the arrangements for NHS schemes mean that liabilities of these benefits cannot ordinarily be identified
specifically to the Authority. The scheme is therefore accounted for as ifthey are a defined contribution scheme and no
liability for future payments of benefits is recognisedinthe balancesheet.

In2022/23 the Authority paid £0.1mto the NHS pensionscheme (£0.1min2021/22)inrespectof public health staff. This
amount is recognised as an expense inthe CIES under the Public Health services line.
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Note 16: Property, Plant and Equipment, Intangible and Held for Sale Assets
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£m £fm £m £m £m £m £m £m
Gross Carrying Amount as at
31 March 2022 419.8 33.7 113 70.0 2.9 537.7 7.4 10.2
Additions 9.9 4.1 0.0 155 0.0 294 0.0 0.0
Capital Expenditure Not Adding (3.4) (0.3) 00 00 0.0 (3.7) 0.0 00
Value
RevaluationIncreases/
(Decreases) recognised inthe 18.6 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.2 18.8 0.0 0.0
Revaluation Reserve
Revaluation Increases/
(Decreases) recognised inthe (21.3) 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 (21.3) 0.0 0.0
Surplus/ Deficit
Disposals (28.3) (5.5) 0.0 0.0 0.0 (33.8) 0.0 0.0
Asset Reclassifications 25.5 0.2 0.0 (27.2) 0.3 (1.2) 0.0 1.0
Gross Carrying Amount as at
31 March 2023 420.7 32.2 113 58.3 34 525.9 7.4 11.2
Accumulated Depreciation as at 1
April 2022 (13.5) (19.8) 0.0 0.0 0.0 (33.3) (4.6) 0.0
Depreciation (9.9) (4.0) 0.0 0.0 0.0 (13.9) (0.9) 0.0
Depreua.tlon written out to the 07 0.0 00 0.0 0.0 07 0.0 0.0
Revaluation Reserve
Depreciation written out to the
- 13 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 13 0.0 0.0
Surplus/ Deficit
Impairment Losses/(reversals)
recognisedinthe Surplus/Deficit 35 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 35 0.0 0.0
on the provision of services
Derecognition Depreciation 1.3 5.5 0.0 0.0 0.0 6.8 0.0 (0.1)
Accumulated Depreciation as at
31 March 2023 (16.6) (18.3) 0.0 0.0 0.0 (34.9) (5.5) (0.1)
Net Book Value as at 31 March
404.1 139 113 58.3 34 491.0 1.9 11.1

2023

*IncludesTravellers’ Sitesvaluation of £1.8m not shown under Council Dwellings due to materiality.
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£m £m £m £m £m £m £m £m
Gross Carrying Amount as at 4567  26.9 113 65.1 09 5609 7.4 0.2
31 March 2021
Prior period adjustment (Note 8) -36.8 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 -36.8 0.0 0.0
Restated Gross Carrying Amount 419.9 26.9 113 65.1 0.9 524.1 7.4 0.2
as at 1 April 2021
Additions 5.9 6.7 0.0 345 0.0 47.1 0.0 0.0
Capital Expenditure Not Adding (14.1) (0.2) 0.0 0.0 0.0 (14.3) 0.0 0.0
Value
Revaluation Increases/ (Decreases) 19.2 0.0 0.0 0.0 2.0 21.2 0.0 0.0
recognised inthe Revaluation
Reserve
Revaluation Increases/ (Decreases) (11.5) 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 (11.5) 0.0 0.0
recognisedinthe Surplus/ Deficit
Disposals (14.7) 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 (14.7) 0.0 (0.2)
Asset Reclassifications 15.1 0.2 0.0 (29.6) 0.0 (14.3) 0.0 10.2
Gross Carrying Amount as at 4198 336 113  70.0 29 5376 74 102
31 March 2022
Accumulated Depreciation as at 1
April 2021 (14.1) (17.0) 0.0 0.0 0.0 (31.1) (3.6) 0.0
Depreciation (8.6) (2.8) 0.0 0.0 0.0 (11.4) (1.0) 0.0
Depreciation written out to the 2.1 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 2.1 0.0 0.0
Revaluation Reserve
Depreciation written out to the 0.7 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.7 0.0 0.0
Surplus/ Deficit
Impairment Losses/(reversals) 6.1 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 6.1 0.0 0.0
recognisedinthe Surplus/Deficit
on the provision of services
0.3 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.3 0.0 0.0
Derecognition Depreciation
Accumulated Depreciation as at (13.5) (19.8) 0.0 0.0 0.0 (333) (4.6) 0.0
31 March 2022 ’ ’ ’ ’ ’ ’ ’ ’
Net Book Value as at 31 March 406.3 13.8 113 700 29 5043 28 102

2022

*IncludesTravellers’ Sitesvaluation of £1.8m not shown under Council Dwellings due to materiality.
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Capital Commitments

As of 31 March 2023, the Authority has entered into a number of contracts for the acquisition, construction or
enhancement of Property, Plantand Equipment in2022/23 and future years budgeted to cost£16.1m (commitments at
31 March 2022,£12.7m). The followingtableoutlines the major contracts:

Major Contracts £m

Old Dalby Primary School 1.4

Melton John Fernley Secondary School 3.6

Castle Donington Secondary School 2.4

Foxfields School SEND - Expansion 35

Melton Mowbray Distributor Road — North East 4.4
Revaluations

The Authority carries outa rolling programmethatensure that all Property, Plantand Equipmentrequired to be measured
at fair valueis revalued at least every five years. Valuations are carried out by Internal valuers and an external firm of
valuers, Bruton Knowles LLP, who are both qualified Royal Institution of Chartered Surveyors (RICS) qualified Valuers.
Valuations of land and buildings were carried outin accordance with the methodologies and bases for estimation set out
inthe professional standards of RICS.

Land and Buildings Surplus Assets Total
£m £m £m
Carried at Historical Cost: 7.6 0.0 7.6
Valued at Fair Value as at:
31 March 2023 295.6 3.1 298.7
31 March 2022 39.2 0.0 39.2
31 March 2021 15.6 0.0 15.6
31 March 2020 18.7 0.3 19.0
31 March 2019 274 0.0 27.4
Total Cost or Valuation 404.1 34 407.5

Non-Current Intangible Assets

The Authority has non-currentintangibleassets of £1.9m (£2.8m 2021/22). This includes ICT softwarelicences required
to supportand safeguardthe ICT systems operated by the Authority.

Fair Value Hierarchy

The Authority’s surplus property portfolio has been assessed as Level 2 for valuation purposes. Please refer to Note 47
for further details concerningfairvalueand the input hierarchy.

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
Quoted Prices in Active Other Significant Significant
Markets for Identical Assets Observable Inputs Unobservable Inputs
£m £m £m
Total - Surplus Properties 2021/22 0.0 29 0.0
Total - Surplus Properties2022/23 0.0 3.4 0.0
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Note 17: Highway Infrastructure Assets
Movements on balances

Inaccordancewith the temporary relief offered by the update to the code on infrastructureassets, this note does not
includedisclosureof gross costand accumulated depreciation for infrastructureassets, because historical reporting
practices and resultantinformation deficits mean that this would not faithfully representthe assetpositiontothe users
of the financial statements. The authority has chosen not to disclosethis information as the previously reported
practices and resultantinformation deficits mean that gross costand accumulated depreciation arenot measured
accurately,and would not providethe basis for the users of the financial statements to take economic or other
decisions relatingtoinfrastructureassets.

2021/22 2022/23
£m £m
Net Book Value (modified historical cost) at 1 April 428.1 439.5
Additions 21.8 23.5
Depreciation (14.6) (17.0)
Impairment 0.0 0.0
Disposals 0.0 0.0
Asset Reclassifications 4.2 0.1
Net book Value at 31 March 439.5 446.1

The authority has determined inaccordancewith Regulation 30M England of the Local Authorities (Capital Financeand
Accounting) (England/Wales) (Amendment) Regulations 2022 thatthe carryingamounts to be derecognised for
infrastructureassets when there is replacement expenditure is nil.

Note 18: Heritage Assets

Historic Museum Art Archaeo- Fashion  Working Civic Total
Buildings Art Works logical  Collection Life Collectio
Collectio Collectio Collectio Collection n
n n n
£m £m £m £m £m £m £m £m
Net book value
as at 31 March 2022 04 0.7 25 04 0.1 04 0.2 4.7
Additions 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0
. 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

Disposals
Revaluation Increases/
(Decreases) recognised 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0
inthe Revaluation
Reserve
Revaluation Increases/ 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

(Decreases) recognised
inthe Surplus/ Deficit

Net Book Value as
at 31 March 2023 04 0.7 2.5 0.4 0.1 0.4 0.2 4.7
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Net book value

as at 31 March 2021 0.4 0.7 2.5 0.4 0.1 0.4 0.2 4.7
0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

Additions 0.0 0.0

Disposals 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

Revaluation Increases/

(Decreases) recognised 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

inthe Revaluation

Reserve

RevaluationIncreases/ 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

(Decreases) recognised
inthe Surplus/ Deficit

Net Book Value
as at 31 March 2022 04 0.7 2.5 04 0.1 04 0.2 4.7

As per the accounting policy for Heritage Assets within note 47, assets and additions areinitially recognised atcost.
Revaluations arebased on specialistorinsurancevaluations.Sale proceeds are accounted for inaccordance with
statutory requirements as these assets would meet the definition of a capital receipt.

Heritage Asset Collections:

Historic Buildings

This category includes a number of historicalancillary buildings atSnibston Museum and Country Park that were partof
the former colliery. At the same location, it includes the Blue Box Century Theatre. This is the only fully equipped solid
structure, mobile theatre inthe world. The dream of John Ridley, an engineer, was turned into realityina Hinckleyyard
between 1948 and 1952. Many famous names are associated with the theatre including Laurence Olivier, Agatha Christie,
Enid Blyton, Judi Dench, Helen Mirren, Tom Courtney, Derek Fowlds and Eileen Derbyshire.Alsoincludedis the medieval
Manor House Museum at Donington le Heath.

The Museum Art Collection
Some of the notable paintings of most value areworks by the nineteenth century local artistJohn Ferneley Snr.
The Artworks Collection

The collection consists of works of artwhich were initially acquired by the former Education Authority for loan to schools
and colleges. Artists represented include Christopher Wood and William Scott.

The Archaeological Collection
This collection includes the Hallaton treasure, the largest hoard of British Iron Age coins, which was initially discovered

near Hallatonin 2000. The hoard includes over 5,000 silver and gold coins, a silver-giltRoman parade helmet, jewellery,
and other objects. Most of the items date to around the time of the Roman Conquest of Britaininthe 1stcentury AD.

The Fashion Collection

This collection includes the Symington collection which was created by the Market Harborough Company R. & W. H.
Symington, which began to make corsets inthe 1850s. The company eventually grew into an international concernand
one of its most famous products, the Liberty Bodice, was produced for almostseventy years. This unique collection was
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donated to the Authority's Museums Servicein 1980 and tells the story of the Company over a period of one hundred
andthirty years.Itincludes garments and supportingadvertising material, which providean insightinto the development
of corsetry, foundation garments and swimwear from the late 19th century through to the beginningof the 1990s.

The Working Life Collection

The collection includes steam and diesel locomotives (from the mid to late 20th century) the Whitwick hearse; steam
traction engines, battery electric vehicles (includinga local icecreamvan).

The CivicCollection
This collectionincludes the ceremonial insigniaand presentation silver held by the Authority. It alsoincludes the painting

‘The Melton Mowbray Horse Fair’ by John Ferneley Snr which was presented to the County council by Major Guy Paget
inthe 1930s.

Note 19: Investment Property

Investment property assets are held specifically to generate rental income and/or for capital appreciation and are
considered within the scope of IFRS 13 Fair Value measurement.

The following items of income and expenditure have been accounted for in the Financing and Investment Income and
Expenditure linein the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement:

2021/22 2022/23
£m £m
(0.1) Rental Income From Investment Property (0.1)
0.0 Direct Operating Expenses 0.0
(0.1)  (Surplus) / Deficit (0.1)

There are no restrictions on the Authority’s ability to realise the value inherent in its investment property or the
Authority’s right to the remittance of income and the proceeds of disposal. The Authority has no contractual obligations
to maintain,enhanceor develop investment properties.

The followingtablesummarises the movement inthe fair value of investment properties over the year:

2021/22 2022/23
£m £m
1.7 Opening Balance as at 1st April 1.8
0.0 Additions — Purchases 0.0
0.0 Additions — Construction 0.0
0.0 Additions - Subsequent Expenditure 0.0
0.0 Disposals (0.2)
0.1 Gain/Loss From Fair Value Adjustments 0.0
Transfers:
0.0 (To)/From Inventory 0.0
0.0 (To)/From Property, Plant & Equipment 0.0
1.8 Closing Balance as at 31st March 1.6

As of 315tMarch 2022 no investment properties areclassified as assets held for sale.
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Fair Value Hierarchy

The Authority’s investment property portfolio has been assessed as Level 2 for valuation purposes. Note 47 provides
details of fair valueand the inputlevel hierarchyas specified by IFRS 13.

2022/23
£m £m £m
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
Investment Properties Quoted Prices in Active Other Significant Significant
Markets for Identical Observable Inputs Unobservable

Assets Inputs
Commercial 0.0 0.6 0.0
Community 0.0 0.8 0.0
Residential 0.0 0.2 0.0
Total 0.0 1.6 0.0

2021/22
£m £m £m
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
Investment Properties Quoted Prices in Active Other Significant Significant
Markets for Identical Observable Inputs Unobservable

Assets Inputs
Commercial 0.0 0.6 0.0
Community 0.0 0.8 0.0
Residential 0.0 04 0.0
Total 0.0 1.8 0.0

Valuation Techniques

In estimating the fair value of the Authority’s investment properties, the highest and best use is deemed to be their

current value.

The investment property portfolio has been measured using the market approach. This valuation technique maximises
the use of prices (rentvalues) and relevant observable inputs such as information generated from comparable market
transactions to reach suitable valuation. The objective of this technique is to estimate the price at which an orderly
transactiontosell anassetor transfer a liability would take place between market participants at the measurement date

under current market conditions.

Valuers

The investment property portfolio has been valuedinaccordancewith the methodologies and bases for estimation as set
outinthe professional standardsand valuation manual of the Royal Institution of Chartered Surveyors (RICS). Investment
property valuations areundertaken annually by a firm of external valuers, Bruton Knowles LLP who were commissioned
by the Estates section of the Authority’s Corporate Resources Department inaccordancewith the prescribed standards.
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Note 20: Financial Instruments

The following categories of financialinstruments arecarried in the Balance Sheet:

Restated? Restated?
31 March 31 March 31 March 31 March
2022 2022 2023 2023
Long Term Current Long Term Current
£m £m £m £m
Financial Assets at Amortised Cost:
10.0 290.5 Investments 10.0 364.9
27.1 83.9 Debtors 26.3 75.6
0.0 112.8 Cash and Cash Equivalents 0.0 71.1
Financial Assets at Fair Value through
Profit and Loss:
51.7 0.0 Investments 75.4 0.0
88.8 487.2 Total Financial Assets 111.7 511.6
Financial Liabilities at Amortised Cost:
264.8 3.7 Borrowing 264.3 3.7
7.0 145.5 Creditors 6.3 139.5
1.2 0.0 Financelease Liabilities 1.1 0.0
273.0 149.2 Total Financial Liabilities 271.7 143.2

1 prioryearrestatedto exclude receipts inadvance and payments inadvance (not financial i nstruments).

As at 315t Match 2023, the authority has a long term investment of £10.0m with a bankinginstitution, £22.5min pooled
property investments, £8.7m in pooled infrastructureinvestments, £28.7min private debt investments and £15.5min
capital releasefunds.Pooled property is valued per the year end bid priceor net assetvalue (NAV) statement. Private
debt, pooled infrastructureand capital releasefunds are valued per year end NAV statements.

The value of debtors and creditors reported inthe Notes to the Statement of Accounts are solely thoseamounts
meeting the definition of a financial instrument. The balances of debtors and creditors reported in the balancesheet
and Notes includebalances which do not meet the definition of a financial instrument, such as tax-based debtors and
creditors.

The followinggains and losses arerecognised in the Surplus or Deficiton the Provision of Services in the Comprehensive
Income and Expenditure Statement:

2021/22 2022/23
£m £m

Net Gains/(Losses) on:

2.8 Financial Assets measured atFair Valuethrough Profitand Loss 3.7
2.8 Total Net Gains/ (Losses) 3.7
5.2 Total Interest Income 11.6
153 Total Interest Expense 15.2
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Fair Value of Assets and Liabilities carried at Amortised Cost

Financialliabilities and financial assets represented by Borrowings, Investments and Cash arecarriedintheBalance Sheet
atamortised costor fair value. Their fair valuecan beassessed by calculating the present value of the cash flows thatwil |
take placeover the remainingterm of the instruments.

31 March 2022 (Restated?) 31 March 2023
Carrying At Fair Carrying At Fair
Amount Value Amount Value

£m £m £m £m
576.1 575.4 Financial Assets 623.3 622.6
422.1 597.4 Financial Liabilities 414.8 457.7

1 prioryearrestatedto exclude receipts inadvance and payments inadvance (not financial i nstruments).

The fair valueoffinancialliabilities is greater than the carrying value becausethe Authority’s portfolio of loans includes a
number of fixed rate loans where the interest payableis higher than the rates available for similar loans at the Balance
Sheet date. This commitment to payinterest above current market rates increases the amount that the Authority would
have to payifthe lenders requested or agreed to early repayment of the loans.

Fair Value Hierarchy

The Authority’s financial assets and liabilities have been assessed as Level 2 for valuation purposes. Note 47 (sub section
25) provides an explanation of fair valueand the inputlevel hierarchy.

2022/23
£m £m £m
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
Fair Value Quoted Prices in Active Other Significant Significant Unobservable
Markets for Identical Observable Inputs Inputs
Assets
Financial Assets 0.0 75.4 0.0
Financial Liabilities 0.0 0.0 0.0
Total 0.0 75.4 0.0
2021/22
£m £m £m
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
Fair Value Quoted Prices in Active Other Significant Significant Unobservable
Markets for Identical Observable Inputs Inputs
Assets
Financial Assets 0.0 51.7 0.0
Financial Liabilities 0.0 0.0 0.0
Total 0.0 51.7 0.0

Except for the financial assets carried atfair value(described inthe table above), all other financial
liabilities and financial assets held by the authority are carried in the Balance Sheet at amortised cost.
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Note 21: Inventories

Leicestershire Leicestershire School Food Sub-total Other Total
Highways Highways (consumables) (less than
(stores) (fuel) £0.1m)
£m £m £m £m £m £m
Opening Balance 1.1 0.1 03 1.5 03 1.8
31 March 2022
Purchases 1.7 0.7 3.7 6.1 2.5 8.6
Recognised as an
expense duringthe year (1.8) (0.7) (3.7) (6.2) (2.4) (8.6)
Closing Balance
31 March 2023 1.0 0.1 0.3 14 0.4 1.8
Note 22: Long Term Debtors
31 March 2022 31 March 2023
£m £m
Long Term Debtors
(amounts falling due after one year)
24.4 Outstanding debt relatingto transferred 23.1
services (e.g. Leicester City, Police, ESPO)
2.2 Residential CareCharges 2.7
(secured againstproperties)
0.5 Other Long Term Debtors 0.5
27.1 Total Long Term Debtors 26.3
Note 23: Short Term Debtors
31 March 2022 31 March 2023
£m £m
Debtors Payments in Total Debtors Payments in Total
Advance Advance
105.1 21.0 126.1 Total Short Term Debtors 102.7 204 123.1

Debtors are shown net of a credit loss allowanceof£11.6masat31March 2023 (£6.5m 31 March 2022), reported in

Note 44 to the accounts.
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Note 24: Cash & Cash Equivalents

31 March 2022

31 March 2023

£m £m
Net Cash Balance at Year End:
0.0 School & Imprest Accounts 0.1
0.9 Main Bank Accounts 0.4
0.9 Subtotal Cash In Hand / (Overdrawn) 0.5
. 15.1
15.1 Service User Funds Bank Account*
96.8 Sho'rt—jl'erm Deposits with Banks and Building 555
Societies
112.8 Total Cash and Cash Equivalents 711

* uninvested funds held in separate bank accounts on behalf of serviceusers. An equivalent amountis shown
within creditors on the balancesheet.

Note 25: Long Term Creditors

31 March 2022
£m

31 March 2023
£m

7.0

Amounts Received in Advance:
(more than one year)

Section 106 Housing Developer Revenue
Contributions

6.3

7.0

Total Long Term Creditors

6.3

Note 26: Short Term Creditors

31 March 2022

31 March 2023

£m £m
Receipts in Receipts in
Creditors Total Creditors Total
Advance Advance
168.2 23.6 191.8 Total Short Term Creditors 162.6 25.8 188.4
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Note 27: Provisions

31 March Additional Provisions

2022 Provisions Used Ll

£m £m £m £m
Short Term
Non Domestic Rates 2.0 0.0 (0.2) 1.8
Insurance 0.4 0.3 (0.0) 0.7
County Farms Restoration 2.4 0.0 (0.0) 2.4
Other 1.0 0.9 (0.0) 1.9
Total Short Term Provisions 5.8 1.2 (0.2) 6.8
Long Term
Insurance 1.8 0.2 (0.3) 1.7
Total Long Term Provisions 1.8 0.2 (0.3) 1.7
Total Provisions 7.6 14 (0.5) 8.5

Details of Provisions Held:

Non Domestic Rate Appeals

The provisionrepresents the Authority’s proportionate share, on an agency basis, of all Leicestershirebillingauthorities
Non Domestic Rate arrears.

Insurance

The insurance policies held by the Authority require a significant level of self-insurance, the level of this being
recommended by independent advisers. The monies set aside for self-insurance are split between a provision
representing outstanding, unsettled claims at 31 March 2022 and a reserve to meet future claims. The provision is
expected to be used within the next seven years. The Insurance provision includes Public/Employers Liability, Fire and
Uninsured Losses.

County Farms Restoration
Provision for the restoration costs of a County Council tenanted farm, Firs Farm in Husbands Bosworth, due to
environmental damage relatingto illegal wastedisposal. Aremediation strategy for the farm has been agreed with the

Environment Agency for the removal and proper disposal of the waste on the farm and reinstatement of the farmland
planned to take placein2023/24.
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Note 28: Cash Flow Statement - Operating Activities

2021/22 2022/23
(restated)
£m £m
The cash flows for operating activities include the following items:
(4.9) Interest Received (7.2)
15.7 Interest Paid 15.8
The surplus or deficit on the provision of services has been adjusted
for the following non-cash movements:
(27.1) Depreciation (31.8)
(23.3) Impairmentand Downward Revaluations (20.3)
(24.4) (Increase)/ decreaseinCreditors (41.7)
(8.9) Increase/ (decrease)in Debtors (3.4)
0.5 Increase/ (decrease)inlnventories (0.1)
(53.3) Movement inPension Liability (38.0)
(10.1) Carryingamount of Non-Current Assets Sold or De-recognised (27.5)
(0.8) Other non-cashitems charged to the net surplus or deficiton the (0.8)
(136.7) Total adjustments to the net surplus or deficit on the provision of (155.0)
services for non-cash movements )
The surplus or deficit on the provision of services has been adjusted
for the following items that are investing and financing activities:
Proceeds from the saleof property, plantand equipment
7.2 investment property andintangibleassets 0.9
0.0 Proceeds from the saleof other investment assets 0.2
(10.6) Servicingof Finance (4.2)
58.7 Capital Grants and Contributions 34.9
Total adjustments for items included in the net surplus or deficit
55.3  on the provision of services that are investing and financing 31.8
activities
Note 29: Cash Flow Statement - Investing Activities
2021/22 2022/23
£m £m
61.7 Purchaseof property, plantand equipment, investment property 51.6
90.8 Purchaseof short-term and long-term investments 939
Proceeds from the sale of property, plantand equipment,
(7.2) investment property andintangibleassets (0.9)
(58.7) Capital Grants and Contributions (34.9)
0.0 Other receipts frominvestingactivities (0.2)
86.6 Net Cash Flows from Investing Activities 109.5
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Note 30: Cash Flow Statement - Financing Activities

2021/22 2022/23
£m £m
0.0 Cashreceipts of short-term and long-term borrowing 0.0
05 Repayments of short-term and long-term borrowing 0.5
0.5 Net Cash Flows from Financing Activities 0.5

Note 31: Pooled Budgets

The Authority’s Adults and Communities department participates in three pooled budget arrangements with local health
authorities, the details of which areoutlined below.

a) Integrated Community Equipment Service

The other members that contribute to this pool are Leicester City Council, Rutland County Council, NHS Leicester,
Leicestershire and Rutland Integrated Care Board (ICB). Leicester City Council acts as the host authority. The Authority
contributed £1.5m (2021/22 £1.2m) to the pool. The memorandum accountshows total expenditure of £7.1m (2021/22
£6.6m) and gross income of £7.1m (2021/22 £6.6m). Funding commenced in2005/06 and the partners have agreed to
commission this serviceuntil March 2027.

2021/22 2022/23
£m £m

Funding Provided to the Pooled Budget

(2.2) Leicestershire County Council (1.5)
(5.4) Integrated Care Board (5.6)
(6.6) Total (7.1)
Expenditure Met from the Pooled Budget
1.2 Leicestershire County Council 15
5.4 Integrated Care Board 5.6
6.6 Total 7.1
0.0 Net Position on the Pooled Budget 0.0
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b)

The provision of services for adults with learning disabilities

Partners who contribute to this pool are NHS Leicester, Leicestershire and Rutland Integrated Care board and
Leicestershire County Council. Leicestershire County Council acts as host to the arrangement. The Authority
contributed £11.6m (2021/22 £9.4m). The memorandum accountshows total expenditure of £19.4m (2021/22
£16.9m) and gross income from the partners of £19.4m (2021/22 £16.9m). Any net over/underspend arisingon
the pooled budget is paid by/returned to the partners through revised contributions to the pool. Funding for
this servicecommenced in 2005/06. Partners have a pooled budget agreement in placeoperated under section
75 of the NHS Act 2006.

2021/22 2022/23

£m £m

Funding Provided to the Pooled Budget

(9.4) Leicestershire County Council (11.6)
(7.5) Integrated Care Board (7.8)
(16.9) Total (19.4)

Expenditure Met from the Pooled Budget

9.4 Leicestershire County Council 11.6
7.5 Integrated Care Board 7.8
16.9 Total 19.4
0.0 Net Position on the Pooled Budget 0.0
0.0 Surplus to the Authority 0.0

The Better Care Fund.

On the 1st April 2018, the Authority's Adults and Communities Department entered into a mandatory pooled
budget arrangement under Section 75 of the NHS Act 2006 with NHS West Leicestershire Clinical Commissioning
Group and NHS East Leicestershire and Rutland Clinical Commissioning Group. The Better Care Fund enables
local authorities and the NHS to jointly planand deliver local health and social careservices. During 2022/23 the
Clinical Commissioning Groups were replaced by the NHS Leicester, Leicestershire and Rutland Integrated Care
Board. Leicestershire County Council acts as the hostto the arrangement but not all expenditureincurred by the
pool is passed through the Authority’s ledger. The following memorandum accountreflects the actual funding
and expenditure values which have gone through each partner's ledger. In total the pooled budget had gross
expenditure of £73m (21/22 £76.7m) and gross income of £73m (21/22 £76.7m).

2021/22 2022/23
£m £m
Funding Provided to the Pooled Budget
(21.6) Leicestershire County Council (24.1)
(55.1) Integrated Care Board (48.9)
(76.7) Total (73.0)

Expenditure Met from the Pooled Budget

59.1 Leicestershire County Council 52.7
17.6 Integrated Care Board 20.3
76.7 Total 73.0

0.0  Net Position on the Pooled Budget 0.0

A
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Note 32: Senior Officers’ Remuneration

a) The Accounts and Audit (England) Regulations 2015 require the Authority to disclose remuneration for all
employees earningover £50,000, plus additional disclosure for those senior officers who have the power to direct
or control the major functions of the Authority.

Total Total
Remuneration Remuneration
- excluding Employers - including
Compensation Employers Pension Employers
Post holder Information (Post for loss of Benefits Pension Contributions Pension
title) Salary office in kind Contribution (N1) Contribution
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
2022/23
Chief Executive - John Sinnott 214 0 0 214 5 219
Director of Adults & Communities 143 0 0 143 41 184
Director of Public
Health 143 0 0 143 21 164
Director of Children & Family
Services 143 0 0 143 41 184
Director of Corporate Resources -
S151 Officer 143 0 0 143 41 184
Director of Environment &
Transport 143 0 0 143 41 184
Director of Law and
Governance -Monitoring Officer 139 0 0 139 39 178
Total 1,068 0 0 1,068 229 1,297
2021/22
Chief Executive - John Sinnott 212 0 0 212 0 212
Director of Adults & Communities 141 0 0 141 39 180
Director of Public
Health 141 0 0 141 20 161
Director of Children & Family
Services 141 0 0 141 39 180
Director of Corporate Resources -
$151 Officer 141 0 0 141 39 180
Director of Environment &
Transport 141 0 0 141 39 180
Director of Law and
Governance — Monitoring Officer 132 0 0 132 36 168
Total 1,049 0 0 1,049 212 1,261

There were no payments made for bonuses, expense allowances or other payments.
N1 — Revised employer’s pension contribution rates in 2022/23.
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b) The Authority’s other employees whose remuneration, taxable expenses and severance (ifapplicable), was

£50,000 or more aredetailed below. This information does not include employer’s pension contributions.

2021/22 2022/23
Including Excluding Including Excluding
Severance Severance Severance Severance
No. of No.of No. of No. of
Employees Employees Remuneration Band Employees Employees
183 183 £50,000-£54,999 132 131
76 76 £55,000-£59,999 121 119
72 72 £60,000-£64,999 73 73
32 32 £65,000-£69,999 37 36
33 33 £70,000-£74,999 36 36
6 6 £75,000-£79,999 5 5
7 7 £80,000-£84,999 9 9
7 6 £85,000-£89,999 8 8
1 2 £90,000-£94,999 1 1
3 3 £95,000-£99,999 2 2
9 8 £100,000-£104,999 7 7
1 1 £105,000-£109,999 0 0
2 3 £110,000-£114,999 2 2
1 0 £115,000-£119,999 1 1
2 2 £120,000-£124,999 1 1
0 0 £125,000-£129,999 2 2
1 0 £155,000-£159,999 0 0
436 434 Total 437 433

Note: the numbers above include Leicestershire maintained schools.

c) The numbers of exit packages with total costper band and total costof compulsory and other redundancies
aresetout inthe tablebelow:

Total cost of Exit
Exit Package Cost Number of Compulsory Number of Other Total number of Exit Packages in each Cost
Band Redundancies Departures Agreed Packages by Cost Band Band*
2021/22 2022/23 2021/22 2022/23 2021/22 2022/23 2021/22 2022/23
£m £fm
£0-£20,000 10 18 35 17 45 35 0.2 0.3
£20,001 - £40,000 1 2 3 2 4 4 0.1 0.1
£40,001 - £60,000 0 1 2 2 2 3 0.1 0.2
£60,001 - £80,000 0 1 1 0 1 1 0.1 0.1
£80,001 - £100,000 1 0 0 0 1 0 0.1 0.0
Total 12 22 41 21 53 43 0.6 0.7
i) The above table includes accrued liabilities. See note 42 for further details.
ii) The numbers of officers shown are the actual number, not full time equivalents.
Note 33: Members’ Allowances
Amounts were paidto Members of the Authority as follows:
2021/22 2022/23
£m £m
0.7 Basic Allowance 0.7
0.4 Special Responsibility Allowances 0.4
1.1 Total 1.1
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Note 34: External Audit Costs

The Authority has incurred the following costs in relation to the audit of the statement of accounts:

2021/22 2022/23
£ £
Fees payable to external auditor:
139,777 Annual audit 179,000
6,917 Other services provided duringthe year 10,000
146,694 Total 189,000

Note 35: Dedicated Schools Grant

The council’s expenditure on schools is funded primarily by grant monies provided by the Education and Skills
Funding Agency (ESFA), the Dedicated Schools Grant (DSG). The DSG is ringfenced and canonlybe applied

to meet expenditure properlyincludedinthe schools budget, as defined in the School Financeand Early
Years (England) Regulations 2021. The schools budgetincludes elements for a range of educational services
provided on anauthority-widebasis and for the individual schools budget (1ISB), whichis divided into a budget
sharefor each maintained school.

Details of the deployment of DSG receivablefor 2022/23 are as follows:

2021/22 Schools Budget Funded by DSG 2022/23
£m £m £m £m £m £m
Central Individual Total Central Individual Total
Exp Schools Exp Schools
Budget Budget

Final DSG for 2022/23 before academy and high

(577.9) (606.4)
needs recoupment
S Academy and high needs figure recouped for o
’ 2022/23 ’
Total DSG after academy and high needs
7 recoupment for 2022/23 TS
0.0 Plus:brought forward from 2021/22 0.0
0.0 Less: Carry forwardto 2023/24 agreed in 00
advance
(111.3) (86.6) (197.9) Agreed initial budgeted distribution in 2022/23 (123.4) (82.0) (205.4)
0.4 0.0 0.4 Inyear adjustments (0.2) 0.0 (0.2)
(110.9) (86.6) (197.5) Final budgeted distribution for 2022/23 (123.6) (82.0) (205.6)
126.4 0.0 126.4 Less:Actual central expenditure 129.6 0.0 129.6
0.0 84.3 84.3 Less:Actual ISBdeployed to schools 0.0 81.9 81.9
0.0 0.0 0.0 Plus:Local Authority contribution for 2022/23 0.0 0.0 0.0
15.5 (2.3) 13.2 In year carry forward t02023/24 5.9 0.0 5.9
0.0 Plus:Carry-forward to 2023/24 agreed in 00
advance
0.0 Carry-forwardto 2023/24 0.0
11.1 DSG unusablereserve atthe end of 2021/22 24.3
Addition to DSG unusablereserve atthe end of
13.2 2022/23 5.9
243 Total of DSG unusablereserve at the end of 302
) 2022/23 '
243 NetDSG position at the end of 2022/23 30.2
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Note 36: Grant Income

The Authority credited the followinggrants and contributions to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure

Statement (CIES):

(i) Credited to the Taxationand Non Specific Grantincome inthe CIES.

2021/22 2022/23
£m £m
Revenue:
0.0 Revenue Support Grant (RSG) 0.0
143 Social Care General Grant 19.9
0.0 Services Grant 4.3
2.6 New Homes Bonus Scheme Grant 2.1
15.1 Covid-19 Grant 0.0
32.0 26.3
Capital:
Department for Education:
16.7 Basic Need 0.0
4.1 Maintenance 0.0
3.6 High Needs Provision 0.0
Department for Transport:
79 Local TransportPlan - Maintenance 7.9
2.7 Local TransportPlan —Integrated TransportSchemes 2.8
2.0 Maintenance Incentive Element 2.0
7.9 Pothole Funding 7.9
0.0 National Productivity Investment Fund 2.4
Department for Business, Energy and Industrial Strategy
3.6 Public Sector Decarbonisation Scheme 0.0
6.6 Section 106 Housing Developer Contributions 14.1
3.6 Other Capital Contributions (below £1m at 31 March 2023) 2.0
58.7 39.1
90.7 Total (Note 14 non ring-fenced government grants and capital 65.4

grants and contributions)
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(ii) Credited to gross income within the Continuing Services section of the CIES:

2021/22 2022/23
£m £m
Children and Family Services — Education:
197.5 Dedicated Schools Grant 204.0
5.2 Pupil Premium Grant 5.5
2.1 Asylum Seekers 4.4
2.6 Universal Infant Free School Meals 2.5
0.0 Maintained Schools Supplementary Grant 2.5
0.0 Homes for Ukraine Education Grant 1.9
0.6 Devolved Formula Capital 1.7
13 Pupil Premium — Covid Grant 1.5
1.5 Music Grant 1.5
1.1 Troubled Families Programme 1.5
1.6 PE & Sports Grant 1.5
1.0 Children’s Innovation Partnership 1.2
1.0 Adoption Support Fund 1.1
13 Domestic Abuse Services Fund 1.1
216.8 231.9
Adults and Communities — Dept of Health:
17.2 Improved Better CareFund 17.7
0.0 Better Care Fund Discharge Grant 2.0
4.7 Skills Funding Agency 4.2
0.0 Market Sustainability Fund 1.6
1.2 Independent living Fund 1.2
23.1 26.7
Public Health
25.5 Public Health Grant 26.2
12.4 Covid— Contain Funding 1.7
1.0 Green Homes Grant 2.0
38.9 29.9
Environment & Transport
1.2  BusService Operators Grant 2.2
1.2 Home to School TransportGrant 0.9
Corporate Resources
3.6 Household Support Fund 7.2
Chief Executives
0.0 Homes for Ukraine— Guest payment 1.9
0.0 Homes for Ukraine— Sponsor payment 1.1
10.1  REFCUS Capital Grants 32.7
29.1 Other income (below £1m at 31 March 2023) and REFCUS 8.1
324.0 Total 342.6

b) The Authority has received grants and contributions thathaveyetto be recognised as incomeas they have conditions
attached to them that will requirethe monies to be returned to the giver.The balances attheyear end areas follows:

31 March 2022 Short-Term Capital Grants Receipts in Advance: 31 March 2023
£m £m
0.0 Dept. for Education: High Needs Capital Grant 5.1
0.0 Dept. for Transport: Melton Distributor Road 439
4.0 Dept. for Transport: Pothole Funding 3.4
0.0 Dept. for Transport: A511 Major Road Network Grant 2.4
1.9 Section 106 Housing Developer Contributions 3.7
2.6 Other Grants and Contributions 0.8
8.5 Total 59.3

H Leicestershire
County Council 54



69

Notesto the Accounts

31 March 2022 Long-Term Capital Grants Receipts in Advance: 31 March 2023
£m £m
78.0 Section 106 Housing Developer Contributions 74.0
78.0 Total 74.0

Note 37: Related Parties

Details of the total Government grants received are shown in Notes 15 and 36. The employers’ contribution paid to
the Pension Fund is shownin Note 16. Interests in consortia and other organisations aredisclosed in Note 38. Details
of the related party transactions with the Eastern Shires Purchasing Organisation (ESPO) areincluded within Note 38.
The Authority is required to disclose material transactions with related parties, bodies or individuals that have the
potential to control orinfluencethe Authority or be controlled or influenced by the Authority.

Central Government

Central Government has significantinfluence over the general operations of Authority. Itis responsiblefor providing
the statutory framework within which the Authority operates, provides the majority ofits fundingin theform of grants
and prescribes the terms of many of the transactions that the Authority has with other parties (e.g. Council Tax).
Grants received from government departments are set out in the analysis in Note 36. Grant receipts outstanding at
31 Marcharealsoshownin Note 36.

Members
Members of Leicestershire County Council havedirect control over the council’s financial and operating policies. The
total of members’ allowances paidin2022/23isshownin Note 33.

The Authority has contracts with voluntary and community sector organisations to the value of less than £0.2m
(2021/22, £0.3m), in which 4 members (2021/22, 8 members) have an interest. In addition, payments totalling less
than £0.2m have been made during 2022/23(2021/22, less than £0.2m) to organisations,in which 3 members hada
position on the governing body (2021/22, 4 members). In all instances, the payments were made with proper
consideration of declarations of interest. The relevant members did not take partinanydiscussion or decision relating
to the payments. Details of all thesetransactions arerecorded in the Register of Members’ Interest, whichis available
for publicinspection at www.leicestershire.gov.uk

Officers
During2022/23,no works and services wereprocured (2021/22 none) in which senior officer’s or their family member
hadan interest.

Other Public Bodies (Subject to Common Control by Central Government)

The Authority has three pooled budget arrangements with local health authorities for thesupply of aids for daily living,
the Better Care Fund, drugs and alcohol support and the provision of services for adults with learning difficulties.
Transactions and balancesaredetailed in Note 31.

Note 38: Interests in Other Consortia
a) Eastern Shires Purchasing Organisation (ESPO)

The Authority is a member of the Eastern Shires Purchasing Organisationinvolvedinthe negotiation of contracts for
supplies to its members and the provision of a central warehouse for the supply of items in common use. The
Authority had an outstanding creditor balance of less than £0.1m (2021/22, less than £0.1m) and an outstanding
debtor balance of £0.4m as at 31 March 2023 (2021/22 £0.4m). In 2005, the Authority entered into a 25 year
borrowing arrangement of £12.5m on behalf of the constituent members of the consortiumto financethe provision
of a new warehouse and integrated offices. The loan outstanding as at 31 March 2023 was £3.8m (31 March 2022
£4.3m).
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The Authority in effect owns approximately one sixth of ESPO assets and liabilities, whichin2022/23 were net assets
of £37.7m (Leicestershire County Council £6.3m). These are notincluded on the Authority’s BalanceSheet. A copy of
ESPQO’s statement of accounts is available fromESPO, Barnsdale Way, Grove Park, Enderby, Leicester. LE19 1ES.

b) Leicester, Leicestershire and Rutland Combined Fire Authority

The Authorityis a constituentmember of Leicester, Leicestershireand Rutland Combined Fire Authority. The Authority
had an outstanding debtor balance of £0.2m as at 31 March 2023 (2021/22 £0.3m). A copy of the Fire Authority
statement of accounts is available from: Leicester, Leicestershire and Rutland Combined Fire Authority at 12 Geoff
Monk Way, Birstall, Leicester, LE4 3BU.

c) East Midlands Shared Services

The Authority runs a joint operation with Nottingham City Council (NCC) to provide shared transactional finance,
human resources and payroll services to both authorities under the name of East Midlands Shared Services (EMSS).
EMSS operates under aJoint Committee established under section 102 of the Local Government Act 1972. The Joint
Committee does not have a separatelegal personalityandis therefore not a separateentity.

Operations relating to EMSS are carried out at both LCC and NCC premises with LCC being the employing authority
and NCC the host authority. In line with the partnership agreement the net expenditure is shared between the two
authorities by allocatingan equal share of the financial benefits (savings)accruing from the operation of EMSS. This
has resultedin a shareof net costs for the Authority of 44.9%. EMSS does not separately own any assets or liabilities.

A summary of the income and expenditure of EMSS and the associated amounts includedinthe Authority’s accounts
are as follows:

Total EMSS Amounts Total Amounts
2021/22 Included in LCC EMSS Included in
CIES 2022/23 LCC CIES
£m 2021/22 2022/23
£m £m £m
Income:
(1.2) (1.2) Direct external income - LCC (1.8) (1.8)
(0.5) (0.0) Direct external income — NCC (0.5) (0.0)
(0.0) (2.7) NCC shareof net LCC directcosts 0.0 (1.4)
(1.7) (3.9) Total Income (2.3) (3.2)
Expenditure:
6.0 6.0 Direct costs incurred by LCC 5.0 5.0
04 0.0 Direct costs incurred by NCC 1.9 0.0
6.4 6.0 Total Expenditure 6.9 5.0
4.7 21 Net Expenditure 4.6 1.8

d) Active Together

Active Together is anactive partnership working collaboratively with a range of partners across Leicestershire,
Leicester and Rutland, to help communities realisethe benefits of a more physically activelife. Active Together is
funded from different sources including Leicestershire County Council (LCC) and Sport England. LCC is the host
Authority and Active Together accounts form a partof the overall PublicHealth budget. A summary of the income
and expenditure specific to Active Together follows:
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Other
2021/22 Income and Expenditure Sport Local Public Non.- 2022/23
Category England  Authority  Sector public
Income Income
£m £m £m £m £m £m

Income:
(2.7) Revenue Grants (1.2) (1.7) (0.0) (0.0) (2.9)
(0.0) Membership Income (0.0) (0.0) (0.0) (0.0) (0.0)
(0.0) Sponsorshipincome (0.0) (0.0) (0.0) (0.0) (0.0)
(0.4) Other Income (0.0) (0.0) (0.4) (0.1) (0.5)
(0.0) Enterprise & Innovation (0.0) (0.0) (0.0) (0.0) (0.0)
(3.1) Total Income (1.2) (1.7) (0.4) (0.1) (3.4)

£m £m £m £m £m £m

Expenditure:
1.3 Support costs 0.6 0.8 0.0 0.0 1.4
0.1 Overheads 0.0 0.1 0.0 0.0 0.1
1.0 Get Active 0.4 0.7 0.3 0.0 1.4
0.1 Stay Active 0.1 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.1
0.0 Active Economy 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0
0.0 Wellled 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0
0.1 Workforce 0.0 0.1 0.1 0.0 0.2
0.2 MarComms 0.0 0.1 0.0 0.0 0.1
0.2  Active Places 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0
0.0 Enterprise & Innovation 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0
3.0 Total Expenditure 1.1 1.8 0.4 0.0 33
(0.1) Net (0.1) 0.1 (0.0) (0.1) (0.1)
(0.1) Earmarked Deferred project Expenditure/(Net Deficit Required from Reserves) (0.1)

e) Leicestershire County Council Pension Fund

Leicestershire County Council is theadministeringauthority for the purposes of the Leicestershire County Council
Pension Fund (the Fund) under the Local Government Pension Scheme (Administration) Regulations 2013.
Recharges from the Authority to the Fund for Pension scheme administration, and oversightand governance,
totalled £3.2m (2021/22, £2.8m). The majority of transactions for the Fund are processed by the Authority and are
recovered from the Fund. At 31 March 2023 the Authority had a debtor with the fund of less than £10,000 (31
March 2022, debtor £1.7m).

It has not been possibletoapportion,on a reasonablebasis, the costs and benefits of key management personnel
between the Council and the Fund. However, Members’ Allowances and Officers’ Remuneration are disclosedin
Notes 32 and 33.

LGPS Central Limited became operational on 1 April 2018.LGPS Central has been established to manage investment
assets on behalf of the Local Government Pension Scheme (LGPS) funds across the Midlands. Itis jointly ownedin
equal shares by the eight administeringauthorities participatingin the LGPS Central Pool. The Company aims to use
the combined buying power of its Partner Funds to reduce costs,improve investment returns and widen the range
of availableassetclasses for investmentfor the benefit of local government pensioners, employees and employers.

Representatives of each of the funds siton the LGPS Central Joint Committee which provides oversightof the
delivery of the objectives of the pool, the delivery of clientservice, the delivery againstthe LGPS central business
caseandto deal with common investorissues.The jointcommittee provides assistance, guidanceand
recommendations to the individual councils, takinginto consideration the conflicting demands and interests of the
participants within the pool. The jointcommittee does not have delegated authorityto make bindingdecisionson
behalf of the participating councils.

Further details inrespectof the LGPS Central Pool are set outinthe Pension Fund Accounts.
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f) Leicester and Leicestershire Business Rates Pool

The Local Government Finance Act 2012 introduced the business rates retention system from 1 April 2013. The
arrangements enable local authorities to retain a proportion of the business rates generated in their area. Billing
authorities collect rates on behalf of Central Government (50%), Major Preceptors — Leicestershire County Council
(9%) and the LeicestershireFire and Rescue Service (LFRS) (1%) —and themselves (40%).

There aretwo “baselines” for each local authority -a funding baselineand a rates baseline. Where the funding baseline
is higher than the rates baseline(as is the casefor the Council) the authority requires a “top-up” andis not subjectto
a levy on any business rates growth. Where an authority’s rates baselineis higher than its funding baseline, the
authorityisina “tariff” position and will contributeto a central fund whichis redistributed to “top-up” authorities.

“Tariff” authorities aresubjectto a levy on any real terms growth in business rates ata maximum rate of 50%. In non -
Pooled areas the levy is payable to the Government and will be used to fund “safety net” payments to authorities
which have seen significantreductions in businessrates income.The safety net is currently activated if retained rates
fall below 92.5% of the funding baseline for the authority. Any safety net amounts that may arise within the Pool
would need to be met from the levy income to the Pool.

Authorities areinvited to form Pools. For tariff and top-up purposes and also regarding levy and safety net calculations,
the Government treats a Pool as if it were a single entity. The Council, Leicester City Council, the Combined Fire
Authority and all the Leicestershire District Councils have agreed to operate a pooling agreement for business rates
levies and safety net payments, the Leicester & LeicestershirePool (LLP). The Council is thelead authority for the LLP.
A summary of the positionfor2022/23 is shown below which shows an overall surplus on the Pool of £17.0m.

2022/23 Funding Rates Retained Levy Safety Net
Baseline Baseline Rates
£m £m £m £m £m
Blaby 2.2 16.8 22.5 2.9 0.0
Charnwood 4.3 19.7 22.0 1.2 0.0
Harborough 1.8 15.4 22.9 3.7 0.0
Hinckley & Bosworth 2.6 12.2 16.6 2.2 0.0
Melton 1.3 5.7 6.8 0.6 0.0
NW Leicestershire 2.4 20.6 33.0 6.1 0.0
Oadby & Wigston 1.5 53 6.0 0.3 0.0
Total 16.1 95.7 129.8 17.0 0.0
2022/23 Net Gain 17.0
Net Gain b/f 24.8
Less allocationsinyear (0.0)
Total 31 March 2023 41.8
2021/22 Funding Rates Retained Levy Safety Net
Baseline Baseline Rates
£fm £m £m £m £m
Blaby 2.2 16.8 20.6 1.9 0.0
Charnwood 4.3 19.7 21.2 0.8 0.0
Harborough 1.8 154 19.9 2.2 0.0
Hinckley & Bosworth 2.6 12.2 15.2 1.5 0.0
Melton 13 5.7 7.0 0.6 0.0
NW Leicestershire 24 20.6 32.6 6.0 0.0
Oadby & Wigston 1.5 53 6.0 0.3 0.0
Total 16.1 95.7 1225 133 0.0
2021/22 Net Gain 13.3
Net Gain b/f 11.5
Less allocationsinyear (0.0)
Total 31 March 2022 248
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The total of £41.8masat31 March 2023 comprises af£2.0m contingency towards future years, with the balance
of £39.8m for investment in the wider Leicestershire area, via allocations of one third each to the County
Council, Leicester City Council and the seven District Councils. The Authority’s accounts includeadditional NDR
income as a resultof the pool of £13.3m together with a creditor of £13.3m to Leicester City Council for their
share of the Surplus on the pool and a net debtor of £26.5m from the District Councils representing the net
position of the levy due from them, in total £39.8m offset by their share of the pool of £13.3m. The £2m
contingency is shown in the Authority’s accounts as a receipt in advance; £1.4m held on behalf of the Pool
members and the balance of £0.6m, the Authority’s share, is held as part of the Business Rates Retention
Reserve.

g) East Midlands Development Corporation

Leicestershire County Council is one of five East Midlands local authority owners of EM DevCo Ltd. The companyis
working with partners from business,academia, and government to superchargethe local economyand create tens
of thousands of new jobs via three landmark developments of national significance. The three developments of
regeneration sites are:

e Toton & Chetwynd East Midlands Hub
e Ratcliffe-on-Soar Power Station area
e EastMidlands Airportarea

The developments cover the size of three Olympic Parks with transformational opportunities around three main
growth clusters situated within the borders of Nottinghamshire, Derbyshireand Leicestershire, and closeto the core
cities of Nottingham, Derby and Leicester. These new plans could create 84,000 jobs and add billions invalueto the
regional economy. The Net Zero ambitions for future infrastructure developments will ensurelocal growth, full and
productive employment for all,and inclusive communities arecreated.

During2022/23 Leicestershire County Council madeno contributions to the company. In2021/22 the County
Council contributed £0.5m towards the set up and operational costs of the company.

The draft 2022/23 financial statements for the company report a net balanced position, total assets equal total
liabilities.

Further information can be found on the EM DevCo website www.emdevco.co.uk/about-us

h) East Midlands Freeport

On the 30t March 2023 the East Midlands Freeport (EMF) was granted formal government approval andis nowin
operation. Leicestershire County Council is theaccountable body for EMF.

Freeports are a flagship Government programme that will play animportantpartinthe UK’s post Covid economic
recovery and contribute to realising the levelling up agenda, bringingjobs, investment and prosperity to some of the
most deprived communities, with targeted and effective support. The EMF is the UK’s onlyinland Freeport and
features three main ‘tax sites’ straddlingthree East Midlands counties.

The EMF brings together a mix of industries and collaborating partners, combining public and privatesector
oversightand expertise from key sectors includinglogistics, technology, transportand education.

Membership of the EMF board comprises of 12 organisations; Leicestershire County Council (Lead Authority),
Nottinghamshire County Council, Derbyshire County Council, North West Leicestershire District Council, Rushcliffe
Borough Council, South Derbyshire District Council, East Midlands Airport, SEGRO, Maritime Transport, Goodman,
Etwall Land Ltd and Uniper UK.

The key funding stream for Freeports is retained business rates. In designated areas 100% of growth in business rate
revenues is retainedto allowthese funds to be invested inthe local area rather thana shareneeding to be returned
to central government. In advance of growth, and retained business rates beingavailable, the County Council has
agreed to provide a cash flowloanto the EMF to cover set up and operations of up to £4m. This loanis at
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commercial rates to ensure the County Council gets anappropriatereturn on investment. As the accountablebody
for EMF, the role includes providing supportto the Freeport in deliveringthe objectives set by the Government.

Security of the loanis through over £800m of retained business rates is expected to be generated over 25 years.This
is likely to exceed £10m per year from 2027/28 and continue to rise. Repayment of County Council funds is the first
call onretained business rates after covering operational costs. Development has already commenced. Inaddition,
the use of retained business rates will beavailableto supplement developer funding, thereby mitigatingadverse
impacts of development.

As at 31 March 2023, £1.8m of the loan had been drawn down (£0.7m as at 31 March 2022). No debtor has yet been
recorded inthe Council’s accounts until all of the governance agreements and related documents, includingthe
loan agreement, are finalised. The Council has temporarily funded the loan advancefrom earmarked reserves.

Note 39: Capital Expenditure and Capital Financing

The total amount of capital expenditureincurredinthe yearis shown in the table below, together with the resources
that have been used to fund it. Where capital expenditureis to be financed in future years by charges to revenue as
assets areused by the Authority, the expenditure resultsinanincreaseinthe Capital Financing Requirement (CFR), a
measure of the capital expenditureincurred historically by the Authority that has yet to be financed.

2021/22 2022/23
£m £m

232.3 Opening Capital Financing Requirement 214.0
Capital Investment:

69.0 Property, Plantand Equipment 52.9

13.7 Revenue Expenditure Funded from Capital under Statute 32.7

0.0 Long Term Investment 8.7
Sources of Finance:

(7.1) Capital Receipts (1.1)

(69.7) Government grants and other contributions (67.6)

(6.0) Direct revenue contributions (25.7)

(6.2) Statutory Minimum Revenue Provision (6.1)

(12.0) Additional (Voluntary) Minimum Revenue Provision (N1) 0.0

2140 Closing Capital Financing Requirement 207.8

Explanation of Movements in Year
Increasein underlying need to borrow:

0.0 Supported by government financial assistance 0.0
0.0 Unsupported by government financial assistance 0.0
(18.2) Minimum Revenue Provision (N1) (6.1)
(18.2) Increase/(Decrease) in Capital Financing Requirement (6.1)

(N1) During2021/22 the Council made £12m additional MRP contributions, funded from revenue & reserve balances,
to reduce the capital financing requirement. This reduces the need to borrow, savingfuture capital financingcosts.
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Note 40: Leases

a) Amounts Paid to Lessors

Financeleaserentals paidtolessors intheyear totalled £0.3m (2021/22,£0.3m). Lease rentals paidtolessors during
the year inrespect of operating leases totalled £2.0m (2021/22 £1.8m).

b) Amounts Received from Lessees

Lease rentals on Authority owned buildings received from lessees during the year in respect of operating leases
totalled £7.6m (2021/22 £8.4m). Expected Lease rentals projected to be received in 2023/24is £7.5m.

c) Finance Leased Assets

The Council has four buildings that it uses under finance leases. These assets are carried as Property, Plant and
Equipment inthe balancesheet, atavalueof £0.6masat31 March2023 (31 March2022 £0.6m).

The Council has a liability to make payments under these leases during2022/2023 and beyond:

2021/22 2022/23

Finance Finance Finance Finance Finance Finance

Lease Cost Leases Lease Cost Leases

Principal Total Principal Total

(NPV) (NPV)
£m £m £m £m £m £m
Lease Payments due:

Within 1 year 0.1 0.2 0.3 0.1 0.2 0.3
2 to 5 years 0.3 0.8 1.1 0.3 0.8 1.1
Over 5 years 0.7 2.7 34 0.5 2.5 3.0
Total 1.1 3.7 4.8 0.9 3.5 4.4

Note 41: Impairment Losses

During 2022/23, the Authority has not recognised any impairment losses (2021/22 nil). However, revaluations
downwards of £18.7m (2021/22 £27.4.m) have been recognised in the Revaluation Reserve and revaluations
downwards of £21.3m (2021/22 £10.8m) have been recognised in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure
Statement. There have also been reversal of historical downwards revaluations of £3.5m (2021/22 £6.1m) in the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement.

Note 42: Termination Benefits

Termination benefits arise when employment is terminated by the Authority before the normal retirement date, or
whenever an employee accepts voluntary redundancy in exchange for these benefits. The Authority recognises
termination benefits as a liability and an expenseifthe Authority is demonstrably committed to a detailed formal plan
without realistic possibility of withdrawal. In the case of an offer made to encourage voluntary redundancy,
termination benefits are measured based on the number of employees expected to accept the offer. The total
termination benefits for 2022/23 are £0.7m (2021/22 £0.6m).
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Note 43: Contingent Liabilities

Municipal Mutual Insurance Limited (MMI), the Authority’s former insurer between November 1969 and October
1991, ceased writing insurance business owing to financial difficulties in September 1992. MMI made a scheme of
arrangement with its creditors in the event of the company becoming insolvent.

The latestfinancialinformation for MMI, as disclosed in their Accounts for the year to 30 June 2023, shows a balanced
position. As a result, the scheme administrators do notintend to request any additional contributions. However, it
should be noted that there is a contingent liability for any additional deficit due to the uncertainty of the value of
incurred but not reported (IBNR) claims. Areserve has been established to reduce the risk to the Authority of any
further liabilities under the MMI scheme of arrangement and in respect of any other uninsured losses.

Note 44: Nature and Extent of Risks Arising from Financial Instruments

The Authority’s activities exposeitto a variety of financialrisks:

0] Credit risk—the possibility that other parties might fail to pay amounts due to the Authority

(ii) Liquidity risk —the possibility that the Authority might not have funds available to meet its commitments to
make payments

(iii) Market risk — the possibility that financial loss might arise for the Authority as a result of changes in such
measures as interest rates and stock market movements

The Authority’s overall risk management programme focuses on the unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to
minimise potential adverseeffects on the resources availableto fund services. Risk managementis carried outby the
Corporate Resources Department, under polices approved by the Authority in the Annual Treasury Management
Strategy. The Authority provides written principles for overall risk management, as well as written policies covering
specificareas,suchasinterestraterisk, creditriskand the investment of surplus cash.

(i) Creditrisk

Credit risk arises from deposits with banks and financial institutions, as well as credit exposures to the Authority’s
customers.

This riskis minimised through the Annual Investment Strategy. This requires thatdeposits are not made with financial
institutions unless they meet certain identified minimum credit criteria as laid down by Link Asset Services, who act
as treasury management advisors to the Authority. These minimum criteria include a number of factors including
credit ratings assigned by Fitch and Moody’s Ratings Services, the rating of the counterparty’s sovereign government
andthe costof Credit Default Swaps (in effect, the cost of insuringagainstthe risk of default by a counterparty).

Maximum limits for funds on loan and maturity dates exist for each acceptable counterparty and vary according to
Link Asset Services assessmentof their overall financial strength. The Authority will onlylend for a maximum of one
year (Link Asset Services have a two year period for a small number of counterparties) and will not lend to any
counterparty that has a maximum period of less than six months within Link Asset Services matrix.

Customers are not assessed for creditrisk other than for tenancy agreements and major contracts.

The matrixinrespect of money market loans madeby the Authority are detailed below:
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Matrix for UK Banks and Building Societies

Maximum Sum Outstanding

£70m

£50m

£30m

Maximum Loan Period

1 vyear

1 year

6 months

General Description

‘Special Instructions’ (i.e.
significant element of
UK-Government

Not ‘special instructions’
andincludedinlink list
for period of 1 year or

Includedin Link listfor
period of 6 months

ownership)and included more
inLink listfor period of 1
year or more
Matrix for Overseas Banks
Maximum Sum Outstanding £20m £10m
Maximum Loan Period 1 year 6 months

Minimum Fitch Ratings

IncludedinLink listfor
period of 1year or

Includedin Link listfor
period of 6 months

more
A maximum of £50m can be invested with all banks domiciled within a single country (note: there is no limitfor total
lendingto UK financialinstitutions)

Other UK Local Authorities
A maximum of £10m can be invested per authority for up to 1year.

Money Market Funds

AAA-rated only

Maximum amount inanysinglefund = £30m
Maximum amount in all Money Market Funds = £125m

Debt Management Office (DMO) (Executive Agency of HM Treasury)
No restriction onloan amounts or periods. In the event that the maximum loan length is extended beyond the current
6 month period, no loan will havea maturity above 12 months.

Exposure to Credit Risk

The Authority’s maximum exposure to creditriskinrelationtoits investments in banks and buildingsocieties is 100%
of its investments, but this cannotbe assessed generally astherisk of any institution failing to makeinterest payments
or repay the principal sum will be specific to each individual institution. Recent experience has shown that itis rare
for such entities to be unable to meet their commitments. A risk of irrecoverability applies to all of the Authority’s
deposits, but there was no evidence at 31 March 2023 that this was likely to crystallise.

No credit limits were exceeded during the reporting period and the Authority does not expect any losses from non-
performance by any of its counterparties inrelation to deposits.

The Authority does not generally allowcreditfor customers. The pastdue but notimpaired Sales ledger debt can be
analysed by age as follows:

2021/22 2022/23
£m £m

25.8 Less than three months 22.0

3.9 Three to six months 3.3

4.7 Six months to one year 4.0

7.6 More than one year 11.0

42.0 Total 403
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Inrespect of the above sales ledger debt, the Authority has made a creditloss allowance of £11.6m for potential
doubtful debts.

(ii) Liquidityrisk

The Authority has a record of expected cash flows which is used to ensure that cash is available as needed. If
unexpected movements happen, the Authority has ready accessto borrowings fromthe money markets and the Public
Works Loans Board. There is no significantriskthatit will be unable to raise finance to meet its commitments under
financialinstruments. Instead, the riskis that the Authority will be bound to replenish a significantproportion of its
borrowings at a time of unfavourableinterest rates. The Authority sets limits on the proportion of its fixed rate
borrowingduring specific periods. Thestrategyis to ensure that not more than 50% of loans aredueto mature within
anyrollingfive-year period through a combination of careful planning of new loans taken outand (whereitis economic
to do so) makingearly repayments.

The maturity analysis of financial liabilities is as follows:

31 March 2022 31 March 2023
£m £m
Analysis of Loan Maturity Profile:

3.7 Less than 1year 3.7

3.7 Total Short Term Loans by Maturity 3.7

1.0 Between 1 and 2 years 5.8

6.5 Between 2 and5 years 1.7

1.6 Between 5 and 10 years 1.1

0.3 Between 10 and 15 years 0.3

0.4 Between 15 and 20 years 04

23.7 Between 20 and 25 years 45.8

58.2 Between 25 and 30 years 714

109.5 Between 30 and 35 years 84.1

9.9 Between 35 and40 years 0.1

20.1 Between 40 and45 years 20.1

33.5 Greater than 45 years 335

264.7 Total Long Term Loans by Maturity 264.3

268.4 Total Loans by Maturity 268.0

All trade and other payables aredue to be paidinless thanone year.
(iii) Market risk

Interestrate risk

The Authority is exposed toriskin terms of its exposureto interestrate movements onits borrowings and investments.
Movements ininterestrates havea complex impacton the Authority. Forinstance,ariseininterestrates would have
the following effects:

=  Borrowings at variable rates — the interest expense charged to the Surplus or Deficit on the Provision of
services will rise

=  Borrowings at fixed rates —the fair value of the liabilities borrowings will fall

= |nvestments at variablerates — the interest income credited to the Surplus or Deficit on the Provision of
services will rise

= |nvestments at fixed rates —the fair valueof the assets will fall

Borrowings are not carried at fair value, so nominal gains and losses on fixed rate borrowings would notimpact on
the Surplus or Deficiton the Provision of Services in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement. However,
changesininterest payableandreceivableon variablerateborrowings and investments will be posted to the Surplus
and Deficiton the Provision of Services and affectthe General Fund Balance. Movements inthe fair value of fixed rate
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investments that have a quoted market price will be reflected in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure
Statement.

The Authority has a number of strategies for managinginterest rate risk. Policyis to aim to keep a maximum of 50%
of its borrowings in variable rate loans. During periods of falling interest rates, and where economic circumstances
make it favourable, fixed rate loans will berepaid early to limitexposure to losses.The risk of loss is ameliorated by
the fact that a proportion of government grant payableon financingcosts will normally move with prevailinginterest
rates or the Authority’s cost of borrowingand provide compensation for a proportion of any higher costs.

The treasury management team has an active strategy for assessinginterest rate exposure that feeds into the setting
of the annual budget and which is used to update the budget quarterly during the year. This allows any adverse
charges to be accommodated. The analysis will also advise whether new borrowingis taken out as fixed or variable.

Accordingto this assessmentstrategy, at 31 March 2023, ifinterest rates had been 1% higher with all other variables
held constant, the financial effect would be:

£m

Increaseininterest payableonvariablerateborrowings N/A
Increaseininterest receivableon variablerateinvestments 3.8
Increasein government grant receivableforfinancingcosts 0.0
Impact on Surplus or Deficit on the Provision of Services 3.8
Decrease infairvalueof fixed rate investment assets (1.6)
Impact on Other Comprehensive Income and Expenditure (1.6)
Decrease infairvalue of fixed rate borrowings liabilities (noimpacton the Surplus or

Deficiton the provision of Services or Other Comprehensive Income and

Expenditure) (42.0)

The impactof a 1% fall ininterestrates would be as above but with the movements being reversed.

Price risk

The authority does not generallyinvestin equity shares but does have investments to the value

of £75m in private debt, pooledinvestment funds and capital release funds. The authority is consequently
exposed to gains and losses arising from movementsin the valuation of these investments. The authority
actively manages these investmentsinawayto limitits exposure to price movements by diversifyingits
portfolio. These investments are classified at fair value through profit orloss, meaning that all movements
invaluation will impact on gainsand losses recognisedinthe surplus of deficit on the provision of
services. A change of 1% in the valuations of the investments (positive or negative) would have resulted in
a £0.75m gainor loss beingrecognisedin the surplus of deficit on the provision of services as at 31 March
2023. Foreign exchange risk

The Authority has no financial assets or liabilities denominated in foreign currencies and thus have no exposureto loss
arising from movements in exchange rates.

Note 45: Self-Insurance

Provisions and reserves are operated to meet the self-insured deductibles for the following policies, however, stop
loss insuranceapplies to fireand public/employers’ liability policies.

Deductible per Claim
£
Fire 500,000
Public/Employers’ liability 425,000
Fidelity guarantee 100,000
Motor 1,250
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Apart from Museums, the Authority has no general insurancecover for accidental damage to or the theft of contents
from buildings. Similarly, the Authority does not purchase money insurance. Schools, however, have the option to
joinagroup self-insurance schemeto cover the above risks.

Note 46: Trust Funds (excluded from the Balance Sheet)

The Authority acts as trustee and/or administrator for approximately 20 prize funds, endowments, scholarships and
bequests. The original bequests areinvested in either the Authority’s trust fund pooling scheme or in a range of other
directexternal investments.

Trustees arenominated by Leicestershire County Council, Leicester City Council and the National Trustto the Bradgate
Park and Swithland Wood charity. This is the largest Trust the Authority is involved with. Due to the timing of the
production of the Authority’s Statement of Accounts, the figures shown below are compiled on an estimated basis.

To the extent that income from these investments has not been utilised for prizes etc., the surplus funds areinvested
inshortterm deposits with various financialinstitutions. Themain trustfunds areas follows:

Balance at 31 Income Expenditure  Balance at 31
March March
2022 2023
£m £m £m £m

Trust Funds:
Bradgate Park & Swithland Wood Charity * 1.7 1.9 (1.6) 2.0
Kibworth High School Endowment 0.3 0.1 (0.0) 0.4
Others 0.3 0.0 (0.0) 0.3
Total Trust Funds 23 2.0 (1.6) 2.7

* Notsoletrustee. The Authority administers the funds and is represented on the board of trustees.
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Note 47: Accounting Policies

1. General Principles

The Statement of Accounts summarises the Authority’s transactions for the 2022/23 financial year and its position at
the year-end of 31 March 2023.The Authority is required to preparean annual Statement of Accounts by the Accounts
and Audit Regulations 2015. These regulations require the accounts to be prepared in accordance with proper
accounting practices. These practices primarily comprise the Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting (the
‘Code’) inthe UK 2022/23 supported by International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) and statutory guidance
issued under section 12 of the Local Government 2003 Act.

The accounting convention adopted in the Statement of Accounts is primarily historic cost, modified by therevaluation
of certain categories of non-current assets and financial instruments.

In preparing the Statement of Accounts itis notthe Council’s policy to adjustforimmaterial cross-casting differences
between the mainstatements and disclosurenotes.

2. Provisions

Provisions are made where an event has taken place that gives the Authority a legal or constructive obligation that
probably requires settlement by a transfer of economic benefits or service potential, and a reliable estimate can be
made of the amount of the obligation. For instance, the Authority may be involvedina courtcasethatcould eventually
resultinthe making of a settlement or payment of compensation.

Provisions arecharged as an expense to the appropriateservicewithinthe Comprehensive Income and Expenditure
Statement when the Authority has an obligation.Provisions aremeasured at the best estimate at the BalanceSheet
date of the expenditure required to settle the obligation, takingintoaccountrelevantrisks and uncertainties.

When payments are eventually made, they are charged to the provision carried in the Balance Sheet. Estimated
settlements are reviewed at the end of the financial year. Where it becomes less than probable that a transfer of
economic benefits will be required (or a lower settlement than anticipated is made) the provision is reversed and
credited back to the relevant service.

Where some or all of the payment required to settle a provisionis expected to be recovered from another party (e.g.
from an insurance claim), this is only recognised as income for the relevant service if it is virtually certain that
reimbursement will be received if the Authority settles the obligation.

3. Reserves

The Authority sets asidespecificamounts as reserves for future policy purposes or to cover contingencies. Reserves
arecreated by transferringamounts out of the General Fund Balance. When expenditure to be financed froma reserve
isincurred,itis chargedto the appropriateservicein thatyear to scoreagainsttheSurplus or Deficiton the provision
of services in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement. The reserve is then transferred back into the
General Fund inthe Movement in Reserves Statement so that there is no net charge against council tax for the
expenditure.

Certain reserves are kept to manage the accounting processes for non-current assets, financial instruments,
retirement and employee benefits and do not represent usableresources for the Authority. The reserves operated by
the Authority areexplained further:

a) Revenue

The General Fund Balancerepresents a workingbalancederived from pastsavings disclosed intheincome and
expenditure account or budgeted contributions. This balance incorporates both school balances, which as a
result of legislation are retained by each individual school, and underspends on services that have been
approved for carry forward to the followingyear.
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Inaddition, a number of earmarked revenue reserves are maintained for future expenditure which falls outside
the definition of a provision.

b) Capital

In accordancewith standard accounting practicefor local authorities, three non-cash backed capital reserves
existas partof the system of capital accounting. These are:

Revaluation Reserve

The Revaluation Reserve represents the gainsinassetvalues arisingfromthe revaluation of fixed assets since
1 April 2007. Gains arising beforethis date have been consolidated into the Capital Adjustment Account. The
balancethus represents unrealised gains sincethatdate.

Capital Adjustment Account

A store of capital resources set aside from revenue, capital receipts and the provision for repayment of debt
(MRP) set asideto finance pastcapital expenditure.

Deferred Capital Receipts Reserve

There is an additional Unusable Capital Reserve for deferred capital receipts as these are not recognised as
Usable Capital receipts until they are backed by cash receipts, at which point they will be transferred to the
Usable Capital Receipts Reserve.

Capital Receipts Reserve and Capital Grants Unapplied

There are also two Usable Capital Reserves. For further details of the Capital Receipts Reserve and Capital
Grants Unapplied see accounting policies 11 and 13 respectively.

c) Other

i

There are also other non-cash backed reserves that are held for statutory accounting purposes. These are:

Financial Instruments Adjustment Account

The Financial Instruments Adjustment Account absorbs the timing differences arising from the different
arrangements for accounting forincome and expenses relatingto certain financial instruments and for bearing
losses or benefiting from gains per statutory provisions.

Pensions Reserve

The Pensions Reserve absorbs the timing differences arising from the different arrangements for accounting
for post-employment benefits and for funding benefits inaccordancewith statutory provisions. The Authority
accounts for post-employment benefits in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement as the
benefits are earned by employees accruingyears of service, updating the liabilities recognised to reflect
inflation, changing assumptions and investmentreturns onanyresources setasideto meet the costs. However,
statutory arrangements require benefits earned to be financed as the Authority makes employer’s
contributions to pension funds or eventually pays any pensions for which itis directly responsible. The debit
balance on the Pensions Reserve therefore shows a substantial shortfall in the benefits earned by pastand
current employees and the resources the Authority has set aside to meet them. The statutory arrangements
will ensurethat funding will have been set asideby the time the benefits come to be paid.

Short-Term Accumulating Compensated Absences Adjustment Account

The Short-Term Accumulating Compensated Absences Adjustment Account absorbs the differences that would
otherwise arise on the General Fund Balance from accruing for compensated absences earned but not taken
in the year, e.g. annual leave entitlement carried forward at 31 March. Statutory arrangements require that
the impacton the General Fund Balanceis neutralised by transfers to or from the account.
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4. Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cashisrepresented by cashinhand and deposits with financial institutions repayable without penalty on notice not
more than 24 hours. Cash equivalents arehighly liquid investments that mature in three months or less from the date
of acquisitionandthat are readily convertibleto known amounts of cash withinsignificantrisk of changeinvalue. In
the Cash Flow Statement, cashandcash equivalents areshown net of bank overdrafts that are repayableon demand
andform anintegral partof the Authority’s cash management.

5. Prior Period Adjustments, Changesin Accounting Policies and Estimates and
Errors

Prior period adjustments mayariseas a resultina change of accounting policies or to correcta material error. Changes
in accounting estimates are accounted for prospectively, i.e.in the currentand future years affected by the change
anddo not giveriseto a prior period adjustment.

Changes in accountingpolicies areonly made when required by proper accounting practices or the change provides
more reliableor relevantinformation aboutthe effect of transactions, other events and conditions on the Authority’s
financial position or financial performance. Where a change is made, itis applied retrospectively by adjusting opening
balances and comparativeamounts for the prior period as if the new policy had always been applied. Material errors
discovered in prior period figures are corrected retrospectively by amending opening balances and comparative
amounts for the prior period.

6. Non- Current Assets

Assets that have physical substanceandareheldfor use inthe production or supply of goods or services, for rental to
others, or for administrative purposes and that are expected to be used during more than one financial year are
classified as Property, Plantand Equipment.

Recognition:

Expenditure on the acquisition, creation or enhancement of anassetis capitalised on accruals basis, provided that it
is probable that future economic benefits will flow to the Authority and the cost can be measured reliably. The
Authority operates a de-minimis limit of £10,000 for individual items; relatively minor items may be financed from
revenue. The purchase of single items below £10,000 may be capitalised in certain circumstances, for example, the
need to comply with grant conditions. Expenditure that maintains butdoes not add to anasset’s potential to deliver
future economic benefits or service potential (i.e. repairs or maintenance) is charged as an expense when itis
occurred.

= Measurement of assets areinitiallyatcost, comprising:
- the purchaseprice
- any costs attributableto bringingthe assetto the locationand condition necessary forit to be capable
of operating inthe manner intended.

The Authority does not capitalise borrowingcosts incurred whilstassets are under constructi on. Some categories of
Non-Current Assets are revalued on the basis recommended by the COPLAA and in accordancewith the Statements
of Asset Valuation Principles and Guidance Notes issued by the Royal Institution of Chartered Surveyors (RICS).
The basis of valuation of the various categories of assets is as follows:
= Intangible Assets
Expenditure on non-monetary assets which do not have a physical substance (i.e. software licences) but are
controlled by the Authority as a result of a past event is capitalised when it is expected that future economic

benefits or service potential will flow to the Authority. The valuation is based on amortised historical cost for all
assets withan original costin excess of £20,000.
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Property, Plant and Equipment- divided into the following sub-categories;

Land and Buildings are included in the Balance Sheet at current value for existing use or, where because of the
specialised naturethis could notbeassessed (there being no market for such an asset), atdepreciated replacement
cost.

Valuationis carried outon a selective on-going basis suchthatallassets arerevalued atleastonceevery fiveyears,
and on completion ofa capital schemeabove £100,000. Inaddition, the top twenty valued assets arevalued each
year. Assets under Construction (AUC) that become operational in year are held at historic cost and re-classified
to theirrelevant assetcategory atthe balancesheetdate, with a subsequent valuation taking placein the following
financialyear. Valuationsare carried out by qualified Chartered Surveyors, who arealso Registered valuers .Assets
Held for Saleare revalued within the year to ensure the open market valueis accurate.

The currentassetvalues usedintheaccounts arebased on a certificateissued by the Authority’s Strategic Property
Manager as of 1 October 2022. Additions sincethat date areincludedinthe accounts at their cost of acquisition.
The additionis then reviewed, andifthe actual capital expendituredoes notincreasethe assetvaluationorifthe
expenditure is less than the Authority’s £100,000 capital de-minimislevel then this valuewill berecognisedin the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement as capital expenditurenot addingvalue.

Land and Buildings — Schools: the Code confirms thatlocal authority maintained schools (and the governing bodies
thereof) are to be treated as entities for control purposes, and that the transactions of said schools shall be
consolidated into the local authority single entity financial statements. Non-current assets attributed to schools
aretherefore recognisedinthe Authority’s balancesheet, subjectto the Authority (or the school’s governing body)
having control over the asset and it being probable that future service potential will flow to the Authority (or to
the school). The Authority therefore recognises the non-current assets of its maintained community and voluntary
controlled schools onits balancesheet. The balanceof control and service potential is considered to reside with
independent trustees for foundation and voluntary aided schools, and so these assets are not consolidated into
the Authority’s balancesheet (the Council retains the statutory responsibility for land at voluntary aided schoals,
so this is recognised as an asset of the Authority). A number of schools in the County now hold academy status.
Academies are managed completely independently of the Authority, and funding is provided directly by central
government. Whilst the Authority retains the freehold of the land, premises are leased to the academy on a
finance-lease basis (for a 125 year term). Therefore academy buildings are derecognised from the Authority’s
balancesheet, and landis retained ata nominal valuereflectingits restricted use.

Vehicles, Plant, Furniture and Equipment: valuationis based on depreciated historical costforall assets withan
original costin excess of £20,000, with the exception of Leicestershire Highways who occasionally capitalise assets
under £20,000. Additions below the £20,000 deminimis level are then recognised in the Comprehensive Income
and Expenditure Statement as capital expenditurenotincreasinginvalue.

Infrastructure Assets: include carriageways, footways and cycle tracks, structures (e.g. bridges), street lighting,
street furniture (e.g. illuminated traffic signals, bollards), traffic management systems and land which together
form a singleintegrated network. Expenditure on the acquisition or replacement of components of the network is
capitalised onan accrual basis, provided that itis probable that the future economic benefits associated with the
item will flow to the authority and the cost of the item canbe measured reliably. Highways infrastructure assets
aregenerally measured atdepreciated historical cost. However, this is a modified form of historical cost —opening
balances for highways infrastructure assets were originally recorded in balance sheets at amounts of capital
undischarged for sums borrowed as at 1 April [1994 England and Scotland] [1996 Wales], which was deemed at
that time to be historical cost.

Community Assets are assets that the Authority is likely to keep in perpetuity for the benefit of local people, e.g.
country parks and reclaimed land. Such assets arevalued at nominal values for assets acquired prior to 1994 and

historical costthereafter.

Assets Under Construction are based on actual payments made to date.
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= School Buildings are held at current value but because of their specialist nature are measured at depreciated
replacement cost.

= Surplus Assets are surplus to servicerequirements. The current value measurement base s fair value, estimated
at highest and best use from the market participant’s perspective.

= Assets Held for Sale are assets thatare actively being marketed for sale,the assetsaleis highly probable,and the
saleis expected within 12 months. An assetis classed as held for sale when the carrying value will be principally
recovered through a saletransactionrather thanthrough its continuinguse. The assetis revalued immediately on
anopen market basis andanylossis posted to the other operating expenditure linein the Comprehensive Income
and Expenditure Statement.

Componentisation

IAS 16 requires significant components of assets to be recorded separately where they have substantially different
useful lives to enabledepreciationto be calculated separately.

The Authority componentises assets into blocks thathavea significantvalueagainstthe total value of the assetorare
naturally identifiable i.e. swimming pool or external building. The Authority also recognises a significant component
within a block to be any component over £100,000 that individually exceeds 25% of the total value of the blockand
has a substantially differentlifeto the overall structure.

School assets, where appropriate, have been componentised in line with the methodology for Modern Equivalent
Asset (MEA) on a Depreciated Replacement Cost basis.

Revaluation of Assets

Increases invaluationsresultin a debit being posted to the non-current assetaccount and matched by credits to the
Revaluation Reserve to recognise unrealised gains. Exceptionally, gains are credited to the Comprehensive Income
and Expenditure Statement where they arisefromthe reversal of an impairment loss previously charged to a service
revenue account.

The Revaluation Reserve contains revaluation gains recognised since 1 April 2007 only, the date of its formal
implementation. Gains arising beforethat date have been consolidated into the Capital Adjustment Account.

Revaluationlosses dueto a general fall in market priceare firstoffset againstany balancethatis on the Revaluation
Reserve and are only charged to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement when the Revaluation
Reserve has been cleared to nil.

Upon disposal of a non-currentassetanyrevaluation gains for thatassetaretransferred fromthe Revaluation Reserve
to the Capital Adjustment Account. Revaluation gains are also subject to depreciation, with an amount equal to the
difference between current value depreciation charged on assets and the depreciation that would have been
chargeable based on their historical cost being transferred each year from the Revaluation Reserve to the Capital
Adjustment Account.

When a component of infrastructureassets are disposed of or decommissioned, the carryingamountof the
component inthe BalanceSheet is written off to the ‘Other operating expenditure’ lineinthe Comprehensive
Income and Expenditure Statement as part of the gainorloss ondisposal. Receipts from disposals (ifany)are
credited to the same lineinthe Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement, alsoas partofthe gainor loss
on disposal(i.e. netted off againstthe carryingvalueofthe assetat the time of disposal). The written-off amounts of
disposalsarenota chargeagainstcouncil tax, as the costof non-current assets is fully provided for under separate
arrangements for capital financing. Amounts are transferred to the capital adjustment accountfrom the General
Fund Balanceinthe Movement in Reserves Statement.

Impairment of Assets

Assets are assessed at each year end as to whether there is any indication thatan asset may be impaired. Where
indications exist, and any possible differences are estimated to be material, the recoverable amount of the asset is
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estimated and, where this is less than the carrying amount of the asset, an impairment loss is recognised for the
shortfall. Whereimpairment losses areidentified, they are accounted for by:

e  Where there is a balanceof revaluation gains for the asset in the Revaluation Reserve, the carryingamount
of the assetis written down againstthatbalance (up to the amount of the accumulated gains).

e Where there is nobalanceinthe Revaluation Reserve or an insufficientbalance, the carryingamount of the
asset is written down against the relevant service line(s) in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure
Statement.

Where an impairment loss is reversed subsequently, the reversal is credited to the relevant service line(s) in the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement, up to the amount of the original loss, adjusted for depreciation
that would have been charged ifthe loss had not been recognised.

7. Heritage Assets

The Authority’s Heritage Assets are held in the Authority’s museums and other cultural sites. Heritage Assets are
categorisedinto 7 collections, which areheld primarily to increase the knowledge, understandingand appreciation of
the Authority’s history and local area. Heritage Assets are recognised and measured (including the treatment of
revaluation gainsandlosses)in accordance with the Authority’s accounting policies on Property, Plantand Equipment.
However, some of the measurement rules arerelaxedinrelationto Heritage Assets as detailed below. The Authority’s
collections of Heritage Assets are as follows;

= Historic Buildings

= The Museum Art Collection

= The Art Works Collection

= The Archaeological Collection
= The Fashion Collection

= The WorkingLife Collection

. The Civic Collection

Heritage Assets — General

The carryingamounts of Heritage Assets arereviewed where there is evidence of impairment to Heritage Assets, e.g.
where anitem has suffered a physical deterioration or wherethere is a doubt to the authenticity of a pieceof art. Any
impairment is recognised and measured in accordance with the Authority’s general policies on impairment
(accounting policy 6 above). Proceeds from the sale of Heritage Assets are disclosed separately in the notes to the
financial statements and are accounted for inaccordancewith statutory accounting requirements relatingto capital
receipts (accounting policy 11 below). Assets areinitially recognised at cost and will then be revalued for insurance
purposes.

8. Leases

Leases are classified as financeleases where the terms of the leasetransfer substantially all of the risks and rewards
incidental to ownership of property, plant or equipment from the lessor to the lessee. All other leases are classified
as operatingleases.

Where a lease covers both land and buildings, the land and buildings elements are considered separately for
classification. Arrangements that do not have the legal status of a lease but convey the right to usean assetinreturn
for payment are accounted for under this policy where fulfilment of the arrangement is dependent on use of specific
assets.

Authority as a Lessee:

FinanceLeases:
When assessing whether the leaseis a financeleasethe followingcriteria have been considered:

. Lease transfers ownership atthe end of the term.
. Lessee has optionto purchaseassetatpricelower than fair value.
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. Lease term is major partof economic life of the asset.
. Present value of minimum lease payments is substantially all of the fair value of the asset.
. Leased assets aresospecialisedin naturethat only the lesseecan use them without major modifications.

Property, plantand equipment held under finance leases arereflected in the appropriate category of non-current
asseton the BalanceSheet. The assetrecognisedis matched by a deferred liability to pay future rentals. Inaddition,
assets financed by a deferred purchasearrangement are similarly reflected in non-current assets, with the liability to
the merchant bankincludedinlongterm borrowings.

Operating Leases:

Rentals paid under operatingleases are charged directly to Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement as an
expense in the services benefiting from use of the leased property, plantand equipment. Charges are made on a
straightlinebasisover the life of the lease, even if this does not match the pattern of payments.

The Authority as Lessor:

FinancelLeases:
The Authority does not have any financeleases as a Lessor. Whereoperatingleases exist, the assets arestill shown on
the BalanceSheet and anyrental incomeis credited to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement.

Operating Leases:

Where the Authority grants an operating lease over a property or anitem of plantor equipment, the assetis retained
inthe BalanceSheet. Rental income is credited to the Other Operating Expenditure lineinthe Comprehensive Income
and Expenditure Statement.

9. Revenue Expenditure Funded From Capital Under Statute

Expenditure incurred during the year that may be capitalised under statutory provisions but that does not resultin
the creation of a non-current asset has been charged as expenditure to the relevant servicein the Comprehensive
Income and Expenditure Statement. Where the Authority has determined to meet the cost of this expenditure from
existing capital resources, or by borrowing, a transfer in the Movement in Reserves Statement from the General Fund
to the Capital Adjustment Account reverses out the amounts charged sothere is noimpacton the level of council tax.

10.Charges to Revenue for Non-current Assets

Services, supportservices and tradingaccounts are debited with the followingamounts to record the cost of holding
non-current assets duringthe year:

a) Depreciation

Depreciationis provided on all property, plantand equipment by the systematic allocation of their depreciable
amounts over their useful lives. Buildings are depreciated over their remaining useful economic lives as
assessed by the property valuer, with no allowance for a residual value. Assets are depreciated using the
straightline method over the following periods:

= Intangible Assets—5 years

. Buildings - varies from asset to asset (the remaining useful economic life of each assetis reviewed at
the same time as the revaluationis completed, new builds areusually estimated to have a useful life of
70 years).

= Infrastructure - useful lives of the various parts of the highways network are assessed by the Chief

Highways Engineer usingindustry standards where applicableas follows:

Part of the highways network Useful Life (years)
Carriageways 25
Footways and cycletracks 25
Structures (bridges) 100
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b)

<)

Street lighting 40

Street furniture 25

Traffic management systems 20
= Vehicles, Plant, Furniture and Equipment - estimated useful life (averagingaround 5 years).
= Components - will vary between 20 — 50 years for new components/blocks

Land, community assets, assets under construction, surplus assets and assets held forsale -are held at costor
market valueor have anindefinitelifeand arenot depreciated.

Where anitem of property, plantand equipment has major components whose costis significantinrelation to
the total cost of the asset, the components aredepreciated separately. No depreciationis chargedinthe year
of acquisition, whereas a full year’s depreciationis chargedin the year of disposal.

Revaluation gains are also depreciated, with an amount equal to the difference between current value
depreciation charged and the depreciation that would have been chargeable based on historical cost being
transferred from the Revaluation Reserve to the Capital Adjustment Account.

Revaluation and Impairment

Revaluation andimpairmentlosses on assets used by the servicewhere there areno accumulated gains in the
Revaluation Reserve againstwhich thelosses can bewritten off arecharged to the Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure Statement.

Amortisation

Intangible Assets are amortised over their useful life of no more than 5 years. The Authority is not required to
raise council tax to fund depreciation, revaluation and impairment losses or amortisation. However, it is
required to make an annual contribution from revenue towards the reduction in its overall borrowing
requirement. Depreciation, revaluationandimpairmentlosses and amortisation aretherefore replaced by the
contribution in the General Fund Balance by way of an adjusting transaction with the Capital Adjustment
Account inthe Movement in Reserves Statement for the difference between the two.

11.Capital Receipts

Proceeds from the saleof assets (ifover £10,000) are credited to the Capital Receipts Reserve. All such receipts are
availableto the Authority to enhance its programme of capital expenditureor to reduce external borrowing. Receipts
used are transferred to the Capital Adjustment Account. The extent to which receipts have not been utilised atyear
end are reflected in the Balance Sheet as Capital Receipts Reserve. Where Capital Receipts are deferred they are
recognised in the Unusable Deferred Capital Receipts Reserve until backed by cash receipts at which point they are
transferred to the Usable Capital Receipts Reserve.

Any gains/losses on disposal of assets aretaken to the Other Operating Expenditure linein the Comprehensive Income
and Expenditure Statement. Statutory regulations requirea reversal of this entry to the Capital Adjustment Account
via the Movement in Reserves Statement.

12. Accruals of Income and Expenditure

Activity is accounted for in the year that it takes place, not simply when cash payments are made or received. In
particular:

=  Revenue from contracts, whether for services or the provision of goods, is recognised when the goods or services
are transferred to the recipientinaccordancewith the performance obligationsinthe contract.

=  Supplies arerecorded as expenditure when they are consumed. Where there is a gap between the date supplies
arereceived and their consumption, they are carried as inventories on the Balance Sheet.

i
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=  Expenses inrelationtoservices received (including services provided by employees) arerecorded as expenditure
when the services arereceived rather than when payments are made.

= Interest receivable on investments and payable on borrowings is accounted for respectively as income and
expenditure on the basis of the effective interest rate for the relevant financialinstrumentrather than the cash
flows fixed or determined by the contract.

=  Where revenue and expenditure have been recognised but cash has not been received or paid, a debtor or
creditor for the relevant amount is recorded in the BalanceSheet. Where debts may not be settled, the balance
of debtors is written down and a chargemade to revenue for the income that might not be collected.

13. Government Grants

Whether paid onaccount, byinstalments orinarrearsgovernmentgrants and third-party contributions arerecognised
as due to the Authority when there is reasonableassurancethat:

= the Authority will comply with the conditions attached to the payments, and
= the grants or contributions will bereceived.

Amounts recognised as due to the Authority are not credited to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure
Statement until conditions attached to the grant or contribution have been satisfied. Conditions arestipulations that
specify that the future economic benefits or service potential embodied in the asset in the form of the grant or
contribution are required to be consumed by the recipient as specified, or the future economic benefits or service
potential must be returned to the transferor.

Monies advance as grants and contributions for which conditions have not been satisfied are carried in the Balance
Sheet as creditors. When conditions are satisfied, the grant or contribution is credited to the relevant service line
withinthe Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement.

Where capital grants arecredited to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement, they arereversed from
the General Fund via the Movement in Reserves Statement. Where the grant has yet to be used to finance capital
expenditure, itis posted to the Capital Grants Unapplied Account. Where ithas been applied,itis posted to the Capital

Adjustment Account.

Any amounts in the Capital Grants Unapplied reserve are transferred to the Capital Adjustment Account once they
have been appliedto fund capital expenditure.

14.Inventories and Long-Term Contracts

Inventories areincluded within the Balance Sheet atthe lower of costand net realisablevalue. The cost of inventories
is assigned usingthe average costing formula.

Long term contracts areaccounted for on the basis of chargingthe Surplus or Deficiton the Provision of Services with
the valueof works and services received under the contract duringthe financial year.

Other immaterial stocks, e.g. cleaning materials, books and stationery, are fully charged to the Comprehensive Income
and Expenditure Statement inthe year of purchase. Work in progress is shown at cost price.

15.Financial Instruments

Financialinstruments arerecognised on the Balance Sheet when the Council becomes party to the contractual
provisions of a financial instrument. They are classified based on the business model for holdingthe instruments and
their expected cashflow characteristics.

u Financial Liabilities

Financialliabilities areinitially measured atfair valueand subsequently measured at amortised cost. For the
Council’s borrowing this means that the amount presented inthe BalanceSheet is the outstanding principal
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repayable(plus accruedinterest). Annual charges to the Financingand Investment Income and Expenditure
lineinthe Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement are based on the carryingamount of the liability,
multiplied by the effective rate of interest for the instrument.

Loans at stepped interest rates (LOBO’s) are recorded at fair value with interest charged to the Comprehensive
Income and Expenditure Statement calculated atthe effective rate of interest, which discounts estimate future
cash payments over the life of the instrument (essentially an averagerate for the expected duration of that
loan), rather than the cash paidinayear.

Statutory regulations enablethe Authority to negate the additionalinterestarisingon LOBQO’s (if loanarranged
before November 2007) by postinga reversal within the Movement in Reserves Statement to the Financial
Instruments Adjustment Account.

= Financial Assets
Financial assets areclassified into one of three categories:

I Financialassets held atamortised cost. These represent loans and loan-typearrangements where
repayments orinterest and principaltakeplaceonset dates and at specified amounts. The amount
presented inthe BalanceSheet represents the outstanding principal received plus accrued interest.
Interest credited to the CIES is the amount receivableas per the loan agreement.

. Fair Value Through Other Comprehensive Income (FVOCI). These assets aremeasured and carried atfair
value. All gains and losses dueto changes infairvalue(both realised and unrealised) areaccounted for
through a reserve account, with the balancedebited or credited to the CIES when the assetis disposed
of.

1. Fair ValueThrough Profit and Loss (FVTPL). These assets aremeasured and carried atfairvalue. All gains
andlosses dueto changesinfairvalue(both realised and unrealised) arerecognisedinthe CIES as they
occur.

Allowances for impairment losses have been calculated for amortised costassets, applying the expected credit
losses model.Changes inloss allowances (including balances outstanding atthe date of derecognition of an
asset) are debited/credited to the Financingand Investment Income and Expenditure lineinthe CIES.

Changes inthe valueof assets carried atfair valuearedebited/credited to the Financingand Investment
Income and Expenditure lineinthe CIES as they arise.

The value of debtors and creditors reported inthe Notes to the Statement of Accounts are solelythose
amounts meeting the definition of a financialinstrument. The balances of debtors and creditors reported in the
balancesheet and Notes include balances which do not meet the definition of a financialinstrument, such as
tax-based debtors and creditors.

= Soft Loans

Under certain criteria the Authority provides loans to foster parents and to older people with physical disabilities.
These loans are interest free. The total value is considered to be immaterial to the Authority’s accounts;
therefore, these loans havenot been revalued on a fair valuebasisinaccordancewith the Code.

16. Employee Benefits

= Benefits Payable During Employment

Short term employee benefits arethose due to be settled wholly within 12 months of the year end. They include
such benefits as; wages, salaries, paid annual leave, paid sick leave and non-monetary benefits (e.g. cars) for
current employees and are recognised as an expense for services in the year the employees render services to
the Authority. An accrual is made for the cost of holiday entitlements, outstanding flexi leave and Time Off in
Lieu earned by employees but not taken before the year-end, which employees can carry forward into the
followingfinancial year.The accrual ismadeat the wage and salaryrates applicablein the followingaccounting
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year, being the period in which the employee takes the benefit. The accrual is charged to the Surplus or Deficit
on the Provision of Services within the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement but then reversed out
through the Movement in Reserves Statement so that holiday entitlements are charged to revenue in the
financial yearin which the holiday absenceoccurs.

= Termination Benefits

Termination benefits are amounts payable as a result of a decision by the Authority to terminate an officer’s
employment before the normal retirement date or an officer’s decision to accept voluntary redundancy in
exchange for those benefits. Redundancy costs arerecognised onanaccruals basisin the Comprehensivelncome
and Expenditure Statement againsttheappropriateservicelineattheearlier of when the Authority can nolonger
withdraw the offer of those benefits or when the Authority recognises the costs for a restructuring.

Where termination benefits involve the enhancement of pensions, statutory provisions requirethe General Fund
Balanceto be charged with the amount payableby the Authority to the Pension Fund or pensionerin the year,
not the amount calculated according to the relevant accounting standards. In the Movement in Reserves
Statement, appropriations are required to and from the Pensions Reserve to remove the notional debits and
credits for enhanced pension benefits and replace them with the debits for the cash paid to the Pension Fund
and pensioners and any such amounts payablebut unpaid atthe year-end.

= Post-Employment Benefits
Pension Schemes
Employees of the Authority are members of two separate pensionschemes:

= The Local Government Pensions Scheme (LGPS) (administered by the Authority)
= The Teachers’ Pension Scheme (administered by Capita Teacher’s Pensions on behalf of the Department for
Education)

Both schemes provide defined benefits to members (retirement lump sums and pensions) earned as employees
work for the Authority.

However, the arrangements for the teachers’ scheme mean that liabilities for these benefits cannot ordinarily be
identified specifically to the Authority. The scheme is therefore accounted for as ifitwere a defined contribution
scheme and no liability for future payments of benefits is recognised in the Balance Sheet. The Children and
Family Services line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement is charged with the employer’s
contributions payableto Teachers’ Pensions inyear

The Local Government Pension Scheme

The Local Government Scheme is accounted for as a defined benefits scheme. The liabilities of the scheme
attributable to the Authority are included in the Balance Sheet on an actuarial basis using the ‘projected unit
method’. This is based onan assessment of future payments that will bemade inrelation to retirement benefits
earned to date by employees and assumptions about mortality rates, employee turnover and projected earnings
for current employees.

Liabilities are discounted to their value at current prices using a discount rate as shown in the assumptions in
Note 16 to the accounts.The assets of the fund attributableto the Authority areincludedinthe Balance Sheet at
fairvalue:

- Quoted securities -current bid price

- Unquoted securities - professional estimate

- Unitised securities - current bid price

- Property - market value

The changeinthe net pension liabilityis analysed into the following components:
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e Service Cost comprising:

- Current service cost - the increaseinliabilitiesas a resultof years of service earned this year - allocated
in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement to the services for which the employees
worked.

- Past service cost - the increase in liabilities as a result of a scheme amendment or curtailment whose
effect relates toyears of serviceearned in earlier years-debited to the Surplus or Deficiton the Provision
of Services inthe Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement.

- Net interest on the net defined benefit liability (asset) - e.g. net interest expense for the Authority -
the change duringthe period inthe net defined benefit liability (asset) that arises from the passage of
time charged to the Financingand Investment Income and Expenditure line in the Comprehensive
Income and Expenditure Statement. This is calculated by applying the discount rate used to measure
the defined benefit obligation at the beginning of the period to the net defined liability (asset) at the
beginning of the period, takinginto accountany changes in the net defined benefit liability (asset) during
the period as a resultof contribution and benefit payments.

e Remeasurements comprising:

- The returnon plan assets - excludingamounts included in netintereston the net defined benefit liability
(asset) - charged to the Pension Reserve as Other Comprehensive Income and Expenditure.

- Actuarial gains and losses - changes in the net pensions liability that arise because events have not
coincided with assumptions madeat the lastactuarial valuation or becausethe actuaries haveupdated
their assumptions -charged to the Pension Reserve as Other Comprehensive Income and Expenditure.

- Contributions paid to the Pension Fund - cash paid as employer’s contributions to the Pension Fund in
settlement of liabilities; not accounted for as an expense.

Inrelationto retirement benefits, statutory provisions requirethe General Fund Balance to be charged with the
amount payable by the Authority to the Pension Fund or directly to pensioners in the year, not the amount
calculated accordingto the relevant accounting standards. Inthe Movement inReserves Statement this means
that there are transfers to and from the Pensions Reserve to remove the notional debits and credits for
retirement benefits and replace with debits and credits for the cash paid to the pension fund and pensioners and
any such amounts payable but unpaid at the year end. The negative balance that arises thereby measures the
beneficial impactto the General Fund of being required to account for retirement benefits on the basis of cash
flows rather than as benefits are earned by employees.

= Discretionary Benefits

The Authority also has restricted powers to make discretionary awards of retirement benefits in the event of
early retirements. Any liabilities estimated to arise as a result of an award to any member of staff (including
teachers) are accrued inthe year of the decision to make the award and accounted for usingthe same policies
as areapplied to the LGPS.

17. Value Added Tax (VAT)

VAT payableisincluded as an expense onlyto the extent that itis not recoverable from Her Majesty’s Revenue and
Customs. VAT receivableis excluded from income.

18. Contingent Liabilities

A contingent liability arises where an event has taken place that gives the Authority a possible obligation whose
existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence of uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the
Authority.

Contingent liabilities also arisein circumstances where a provision would otherwise be made but either it is not

probablethat an outflow of resources will be required or the amount of the obligation cannotbe measured reliably.
Contingent liabilities arenotrecognised inthe BalanceSheet but disclosed in a note to the accounts.
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19. Contingent Assets

A contingent assetarises where an event has taken placethat gives the Authority a possibleassetwhose existence of
suchanassetwill only be confirmed by the occurrence of uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the
Authority. Contingent assets arenotrecognisedinthe BalanceSheet but disclosedina note to the accounts where it
is probablethatthere will bean inflow of economic benefits or service potential.

20. Events after the Reporting Period

Events after the BalanceSheet date are those events, both favourableand unfavourable, thatoccur between the end
of the reporting period and the date when the statement of accounts is authorised forissue. Two types of events can
be identified:
a) Those that provide evidence of conditions that existed at the end of the reporting period - the Statement of
Accounts is adjusted to reflect such events.
b) Those that are indicative of conditions that arose after the reporting period - the Statement of Accounts are
not adjusted to reflect such events, but where a category of events would have a material effect, disclosureis
made inthe notes of the nature of the events and their estimated financial effect.

Events takingplaceafter the date of authorisationforissuearenot reflected inthe Statement of Accounts.
21. Collection Fund Adjustment Account

The Authority is a precepting authority who levies a precept on the collection funds of billing authorities
(District/Borough Councils).

Billingauthoritiesactas agents, collecting council tax and non-domestic rates (NDR) on behalf of the major preceptors
and, as principals, collecting council tax and NDR for themselves. Billing Authorities arerequired by statute to maintain
a separate fund for the collection and distribution of amounts due in respect of council taxand NDR income. Under
the legislativeframework all parties to the collection fund share proportionately therisks and rewards thattheamount
of council taxand NDR collected could be less than or more than predicted.

The council taxand NDR income for the year credited to the collectionfundis the accruedincome for the year.
Regulations determine when it should be released from the collection fund and transferred to the General Fund of
the billingauthority or paid out of the collection funds to the major preceptors, (and central government for NDR)
andin turn credited to their General Fund.

The difference between the income includedinthe CIES and the amount required by regulation to be credited to the
General Fund is taken to the Collection Fund Adjustment Account and is included as a reconciling item in the
Movement in Reserves Statement.

Since the collection of council taxand NDR income s in substance an agency arrangement, the cash collected by the
billing authority from council tax and NDR debtors belongs proportionally to the billing authority and the major
preceptors (and Central Government for NDR). There will therefore be a debtor / creditor position between the billing
authority and each major preceptor (and Central Government) to be recognised sincethe net cash paidtoeach major
preceptor inthe year will notbe its shareof cash collected from council taxand non-domestic rates payers.

22. Schools

The Code of Practiceon Local Authority Accounting inthe UK confirms that the balance of control for Local Authority
maintained schools (those categories of school identified in the School Standards Framework Act 1998, as amended)
lies with the Authority. The Code also stipulates that those schools’ assets, liabilities, reserves and cash flows are
recognised inthe Local Authority financial statements. Therefore, schools’ transactions, cash flows and balancesare
recognised in each of the financial statements of the Authority as if they were the transactions, cash flows and
balances of the Authority. The Authority does not recognise, in the case of Voluntary Aided (VA) or Voluntary
Controlled (VC) schools,anyland or building assets controlled and owned by the church diocese.
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23. Investment Properties

Investment properties are those that areused solelyto earn rentals and/or for capital appreciation. The definition is
not met ifthe property is used to facilitatethe delivery of services, production of goods or is held for sale.

Investment properties are measured initially at cost and subsequently at fair value, being the price that would be
received to sell such an assetin an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. As a
non-financial asset, investment properties are measured at highest and best use. Properties are not depreciated but
arerevalued annuallyaccordingto market conditions atyear-end. Gains and losses onrevaluation are posted to the
Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure linein the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement.
The same treatment is applied to gains and losses on disposal.

Rentals received in relation to investment properties are credited to the Financing and Investment Income line and
result in a gain for the General Fund Balance. However, revaluation, gains and disposal gains and losses are not
permitted by statutory arrangements to have an impact on the General Fund Balance. The gains and losses are
therefore reversed out of the General Fund in the Movement in Reserves Statement and posted to the Capital
Adjustment Account and (for proceeds inexcess of £10,000) to the Capital Receipts Reserve.

24. Joint Operations

Joint operations arearrangements where the parties thathave jointcontrol of the arrangement have the rights to the
assets and obligations for the liabilities relating to the arrangement. The activities undertaken by the Authority in
conjunction with other operators involve the use of the assets and resources of those joint operators. In relation to
itsinterestinajointoperation, the Authority as a jointoperator recognises:

- its assets, includingshareofassets held jointly;

- its liabilities, includingshare of any liabilities incurred jointly;

- its revenue from the saleofits share of the output;

- its shareof the revenue from the sale of the output by the jointoperation;

- its expenses, includingits shareofany expenses incurred jointly.

25. Fair Value Measurement

The Authority measures some of its non-financialassets such as surplus assets and investment properties and some
of its financialinstruments atfair valueateach reporting date. Fair valueis the pricethat would be received to sell an
asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date.
The fair value measurement assumes that the transactionto sell the assetor transfer the liability takes placeeither:
° Inthe principal marketfor the assetor liability;

° Inthe absenceof a principal market,inthe most advantageous market for the assetor liability.

The Authority measures the fair valueofanassetor liability using theassumptions that market participants would use
when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that the market participants actin their economic best interest. When
measuring the value of a non-financial asset, the Authority takes into accounta market participant’s ability to generate
economic benefits by using the assetinits highest and best use or by sellingitto another market participant that
would use the assetinits highestand best use.

The Authority uses appropriate valuation techniques for which sufficient data is available, maximising the use of
relevant observable inputs and minimising the use of unobservable inputs. Inputs to the valuation techniques in
respect of assets and liabilities for which fair valueis measured or disclosed in the Authority’s financial statements are
categorisedinaccordancewith the fairvaluehierarchy, as follows:

Level 1 - unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for identical assets of liabilities thatthe Authority canaccess at
the measurement date.

Level 2 - inputs other than quoted prices inactivemarkets includedinlevel 1 that are observablefor the assetor
liability, either directly or indirectly.

Level 3 - unobservableinputs for the assetor liability.
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Statement of Responsibilities for the Statement of Accounts

THE AUTHORITY’S RESPONSIBILITIES

The Authority is required to:

= Make arrangements for the proper administration of its financial affairs and to secure that one of its
officers has the responsibility for the administration of those affairs. In this Authority, that officer is the
Director of Corporate Resources.

= Manageits affairs to secure economic, efficient and effective use of resources and safeguardits assets.

= Approve the statement of accounts.

MR. L. BRECKON
CABINET LEAD MEMBER FOR CORPORATE RESOURCES
24 MAY 2024

THE DIRECTOR OF CORPORATE RESOURCES RESPONSIBILITIES

The Director of Corporate Resources is responsible for the preparation of the Authority’s Statement of
Accounts in accordancewith proper accounting practices as set out inthe CIPFA/LASAAC Code of Practiceon
Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom (‘the Code’).

In preparingthis Statement of Accounts, the Director of Corporate Resources has:

=  Selected suitableaccounting policiesandthen applied them consistently,

= Madejudgements andestimates that were reasonableand prudent,

=  Complied with the Local Authority Code,

=  Kept proper accounting records which were up to date,

= Taken reasonablesteps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities.

= Assessedthe Authority’s ability to continue as a goingconcern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related
to goingconcern;

=  Used the goingconcern basis of accounting onthe assumption thatthe functions of the Authority will
continue in operational existencefor the foreseeable future; and

=  Maintained suchinternal control as they determine is necessaryto enable the preparation of financial
statements that arefree from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

| certify that the Statement of Accounts has been prepared inaccordancewith proper practices and presents a

true and fair view of the financial position of Leicestershire County Council andits incomeand expenditure for
the year ended 31 March 2023.

D KEEGAN
DIRECTOR OF CORPORATE RESOURCES
24 MAY 2024
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Leicestershire County Council Pension Fund Accounts 2022 /23
(Registration number: 00328856RQ)

Introduction

The Leicestershire County Council Pension Fund (the Fund) is part of the Local Government Pension Scheme (LGPS) and
is administered by Leicestershire County Council.

General

The scheme is governed by the Public Service Pension Act 2013. The fund is administered in accordance with the
following secondary legislation:

° the Local Government Pension Scheme Regulations 2013 (as amended)

° the Local Government Pension Scheme (Transitional Provisions, Savings and Amendment) Regulations 2014 (as
amended)

° the Local Government Pension Scheme (Management and Investment of Funds) Regulations 2016

Itis a contributory defined benefit pension scheme administered by Leicestershire County Council to provide pensions
and other benefits for pensionable employees of Leicestershire County Council, Leicester City Council, the district
councilsin Leicestershireand a range of other scheduled and admitted bodies within the county area. Teachers, police
officers and firefighters arenot included as they come within other national pension schemes. The fund is overseen by
the Leicestershire County Council Pension Fund Committee, whichis a committee of Leicestershire County Council.

The Pension Committee consists of ten voting members and three non-voting staff representatives. The voting members
aresplitinto five County Council members, two from Leicester City Council and two representing the District Councils
and a single member representing Universities. The Committee receives investment advice from the funds Actuary,
Hymans Robertson LLP, and meets quarterlyto consider relevantissues.

Membership

Membership of the LGPS is voluntary and employees are free to choose whether to join the scheme, remain in the
scheme or make their own personal arrangements outsidethe scheme.

Organisations participatingin thefund includethe following:

° Scheduled bodies, which are automatically entitled to be members of the fund.

. Admitted bodies, which participate in the fund under the terms of an admission agreement between the fund
and the employer. Admitted bodies include voluntary, charitable and similar not for profit organisations, or
private contractors undertakinga local authority function following outsourcingto the private sector.
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Membership details areset out below:

31-Mar-22 31-Mar-23

Number of active employers* 195 189

Number of employees in the scheme (Actives)

County Council 8,554 8,596
Other employers 28,585 30,227
Total 37,139 38,823

Number of pensioners

County Council 11,962 12,126
Other employers 19,435 20,434
Total 31,397 32,560

Deferred pensioners

County Council 9,791 9,853
Other employers 20,913 21,958
Total 30,704 31,811
Total number of members in the pension scheme 99,240 103,194

*This figure has been restated from 2021/22 to onlyinclude active employers in the scheme (defined as employers with
one or more actively contributing employees).

Funding

Benefits arefunded by contributions and investment earnings. Contributions are made by active members of the fund
in accordance with the Local Government Pension Scheme Regulations 2013 and range from 5.5% and 12.5% of
pensionable pay for the financial year ending 31 March 2023. Employers contributions are set based on triennial
actuarialfundingvaluations. In2022/23 the average employer rate was 26.3% of pay (25.6% 2021/22).

Benefits

Prior to 1 April 2014, pension benefits under the LGPS were based in final pensionable pay and length of pensionable
service. From 1 April 2014, the scheme became a career average scheme, whereby members accruebenefits based on
their pensionable pay in that year at an accrual rate of 1/49t™. Accrued pension is updated annuallyin line with the
Consumer Prices Index. A range of other benefits are also providedincluding early retirement, disability pensions and
death benefits, as explained onthe LGPS website, https://www.leicestershire.gov.uk.
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Fund Account for the Year Ended 31 March 2023

2021/22 2022/23
£m Notes £m
Contributions
(192.5) Employer Contributions 6 (212.0)
(47.0) Member Contributions 6 (50.2)
(9.9)  Transfers infrom Other Pension Funds 7 (12.4)
(249.4) Total Contributions (274.6)
Benefits
137.3 Pensions 8 146.5
34.2 Commutation of Pensions and Lump Sum Retirement Benefits 8 37.8
5.7 Lump Sum Death Benefits 4.1
17.4 Payments to and on Account of Leavers 9 13.6
194.6 Total Benefits 202.0
(54.8) Net (Additions)/Withdrawals from Dealings with Members (72.6)
42,5 Management Expenses 10 54.5
(12.3) Net (Additions)/Withdrawals Including Fund Management (18.1)
Expenses
Returns on investments
(43.6) Investment income 11 (43.8)
(551.9)  (Profit)and Losses on Disposal of Investments and Changes in 12 776
Value of Investments '
(595.5) Net Returns on Investments (Sub Total) 33.8
Net (Increase) / Decrease in the Net Assets Available for
(607.8) Benefits fund During the Year 15.7
Net assets of the scheme
(5,182.2) Opening (5,790.0)
Net assets of the scheme
(5,790.0)  Closing (5,774.3)
Net Assets Statement as at 31 March 2023
2021/22 2022/23
£m Notes £m
5,771.2 Investment assets 12 5,751.4
(0.7) Investment liabilities 12 (0.1)
5,770.5 5,751.3
254 Current Assets 15 26.7
(5.9) Current Liabilities 15 (3.8)
5,790.0 Net Assets of the Fund at 31 March 5,774.2
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The financial statements summarise the transactions of the Fund and deal with the net assets at the disposal of the
Council. They do not take account of obligations to pay pensions and benefits which fall due after the end of the Fund
year. The actuarial position on the Scheme, which does take account of such obligations, is set out in the Actuary’s
Report.

The notes on pages 83 to 107 form partof the Financial Statements.

Notes to the Accounts

1. Basis of Preparation

The Statement of Accounts summarises the Fund’s transactions for the 2022/23 financial year and its positionas at31
March 2023. The accounts have been prepared in accordance with the CIPFA Code of Practice on Local Authority
Accounting inthe United Kingdom 2022/23 (the Code) whichis based upon International Financial Reporting Standards
(IFRS), as amended for the UK public sector.

The Code requires disclosure of any accounting standards issued but not yet adopted. No such accounting standards
have been identified for 2022/23.

The accounts report on the net assets available to pay pension benefits. They do not take accountof obligations to pay
pensions and benefits which fall due after the end of the financial year nor do they take accountof the actuarial present
value of promised retirement benefits. The Fund has disclosed this information, by appending a copy of the report to

the Pension Fund accounts.

The Accounts have been prepared on a goingconcern basis.

2.  Accounting Policies

The following principal accounting policies, have been adopted inthe preparation of the financial statements:
Fund Account - Revenue Recognition

Contribution Income
Normal contributions areaccounted for on an accrualsbasisasfollows:

° Employee contributionrates aresetinaccordancewith LGPS regulations, using common percentage rates for all
schemes whichriseaccordingto pensionable pay.

° Employer contributions aresetat the percentage rate recommended by the fund actuary for the period to which
they relate.

Employer deficit funding contributions are accounted for on the basis advised by the fund actuaryin the rates and
adjustment certificate issued to the relevant employing body. Additional employers’ contributions in respect of ill-
health and early retirements are accounted for in the year the event arose. Any amount due inthe year but unpaid will
be classed as a currentfinancial asset.

Transfers to and from other Schemes

Transfers inand outrelateto members who have either joined or left the fund. Individualtransfers in/outareaccounted
for when received or paid. Transfers in from members wishingto use the proceeds of their additional voluntary
contributions to purchaseschemebenefits areaccounted for on a receipts basis and areincludedin TransfersIn, shown
in Note 7. Bulk(group) transfers are accounted for inaccordancewith the terms of the transfer agreement.
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Investments
Interest Income is recognised in the fund account as it accrues, using the effective interest rate of the financial
instrument as at the date of acquisition or origination.

Dividend Income is recognised on the date the shares arequoted ex-dividend. Any amount not received by the end of
the reporting periodis disclosedinthe net assets statement as a current financial asset.

Distributions from pooled funds are recognised at the date of issue. Any amount not received by the end of the
reporting periodis disclosedin the net assets statement as a current financial asset.

Property related income consists primarily of rental income. Rental incomefrom operatingleases on properties owned
by the fund is recognised on a straightlinebasis over the terms of the lease.

Changes in the value of investments are recognised as income and comprise all realised and unrealised profit/ losses
duringthe year.

Fund Account - Expense Items

Benefits Payable
Pensions and lump-sum benefits payableincludeall amounts known to be due as at the end of the financial year. Any
amounts due but unpaid aredisclosed inthe net assets statement as currentliabilities.

Taxation

The fund is a registered public servicescheme under Section 1(1) of Schedule 36 of the FinanceAct 2004 and as such s
exempt from UK income tax oninterest received and from capital gainstax on the proceeds of investments sold. Income
from overseas investments suffers withholdingtaxin the country of origin unless exemptionis permitted. Irrecoverable
tax is accounted for as a fund expense as itarises.

Management Expenses

The fund discloses management expenses for administration, oversight and governance, and investment management.
The disclosures comply with the CIPFA guidance ‘Accounting for Local Government Pension Scheme Management
Expenses (2016).

Investment management expenses are charged directly to the Fund as part of management expenses and are not
includedin, or netted off from, the reported return on investments. Where fees are netted off quarterlyvaluations by
investment managers, these expenses are shown separatelyin Note 10A and grossed up to increasethechangeinvalue
of investments.

Fees of the external investment managers and custodian are agreed in the respective mandates governing their
appointments. Broadly, these arebased on the market value of the investments under their management and therefore
increaseor reduce as the value of these investments change.

Net Assets Statement

Investments

Equities traded through the Stock Exchange Electronic Trading Service (SETS) are valued at bid price. Other quoted
securities andfinancial futures arevalued at the lasttraded price. Private equity investments and unquoted securities
are valued by the fund managers at the year end bid price, or if unavailablein accordance with generally accepted
guidelines. Accrued interest is excluded from the market value of fixed interest securities and index-linked securities
but isincludedininvestmentincome receivable.

Pooled Investment Vehicle units are valued at either the closing bid prices or the closing single price reported by the
relevant investment managers, which reflect the accepted market value of the underlyingassets.
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Private equity, global infrastructure and hedge fund valuations are based on valuations provided by the managers at
the year end date. If valuations atthe year end are not produced by the manager, the latest available valuation is
adjusted for cash flows inthe intervening period.

Property investments arestated atopen market valuebased onan expert valuation provided by a RICS registered valuer
andin accordancewith RICS guidelines.

Options are valued at their mark to market value. Forward foreign exchange contracts outstanding at the year end are
stated at fair valuewhichis determined as the gainorloss thatwould ariseifthe outstanding contractwas matched at
the year end with anequal and opposite contract. The investment reconciliation tablein Note 12 disclosesthe forward
foreign exchange settled trades as net receipts and payments.

Foreign Currencies

Assets and liabilities in foreign currencies are expressed in sterling at the rates of exchange ruling at the year-end.
Income from overseas investments is translated at a rate thatis relevant at the time of the receipt of the income or the
exchange rate atthe year end, whichever comes first.

Surpluses and deficits arising on conversion or translation are dealt with as part of the change in market value of
investments.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash comprises cash in hand and demand deposits and includes amounts held by the fund’s external managers. Cash
equivalents are short term, highly liquid investments that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash and that
are subjectto minimal risk of changes invalue.

Financial Assets
Financial Assets classesas amortised costarecarriedinthenet assets statement at amortised cost, i.e. the outstanding
principalas atthe year end date.

Financial Liabilities

A financial liability is recognised in the net assets statement on the date the fund becomes party to the liability. The
fund recognises financial liabilities relating to investment trading at fair value as at the reporting date, and any gains
and losses arising from changes in the fair value of the liability between contract date, the year end date and the
eventual settlement date are recognised in the fund account as part of the Change in Value of Investments. Other
financial liabilities classed as amortised cost are carried at amortised cost, i.e. the amount carried in the net asset
statement is the outstandingprincipal repayableplus accruedinterest.

Actuarial Present Value of Promised Retirement Benefits

The actuarial present value of promised retirement benefits is assessed on a triennial basis by the scheme actuary in
accordancewith the requirements of IAS19 and relevant actuarial standards. As permitted under the Code, the fund
has opted to disclosethe actuarial present value of promised retirement benefits by appending a copy of the report to
the Pension Fund Accounts.

Additional Voluntary Contributions

The Fund provides an additional voluntary contribution (AVC) scheme for its members, the assets of which are invested
separately from those of the pension fund. AVC’s are not included in the accounts inaccordance with Section 4(1)(b) of
the Local Government Pension Scheme (Management and Investment of Funds) Regulations 2016, butare disclosed for
informationin Note 26.

Contingent Assets and Contingent Liabilities
A contingent asset arises where an event has taken place giving rise to a plausible asset whose existence will only be

confirmed or otherwise by the occurrence of future events.

A contingent liability arises where an event has taken place prior to the year end givingrise to a possible financial
obligation whoseexistence will only be confirmed or otherwise by the occurrence of future events. Contingent liabilities
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canalsoariseincircumstances where a provision would be made, except that is not possibleat the balance sheet date
to measure the value of the financial obligation reliably.

Contingent assets and liabilities are not recognised in the net assetstatement but are disclosed by way of narrativein
the notes.

Directly Held Property

The fund’s property portfolioincludes a number of directly owned properties which are leased commercially to various
tenants. The fund has determined that these contracts all constitute operating lease arrangements under 1AS 17 and
the Code, and therefore the properties are retained on the net assets statement at fair value. Rental income is
recognisedinthe fund accounton a straightlinebasisover the life of the lease.

3.  Critical Judgements in Applying Accounting Policies

It has not been necessary to make any material criticaljudgements inapplyingthe accountingpolicies.

4. Assumptions Made about the Future and Other Major Sources of
Estimation Uncertainty

The preparation of the financial statements requires management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions
that affect the reported amounts. Estimates and assumptions take accountof historic experience, current trends and
future expectations, however actual outcomes could be different from the assumptions and estimates made. The items
inthe net assetstatement for which there is a significantrisk of material adjustmentin the followingyear areas follows:

Item Uncertainties Effect if Actual Results Differ from Assumptions
PrivateEquity | Privateequity investments arevalued at fair | Privateequity investments arevalued at £423min
Investments value. Investments are not publicly listed the financial statements. There is a riskthatthis
andas suchthere is a degree of estimation investment may be under or overstated inthe
involvedin the valuation. accounts. Ifthis was under or over stated by 5%
the value of the investment wouldincreaseor
decrease by £21m
Freehold, Valuations techniques areused to The carryingvalueofall property held by the fund
Leasehold determine the carryingamountof pooled is £408m. Changes inthe valuationassumptions
Property and property funds and directly held freehold used, together with significantchanges inrental
Pooled property. Where possiblethese valuation growth, vacancy levels or the discountrate could
Property techniques arebased on observabledata affect the fair value of property based
Funds but where this is not possiblemanagement [ investments. Ifthis was under or over stated by
uses the best availabledata. 5% the value of the investment would increaseor
decrease by £20m.
Pooled Bond Pooled bond and debt funds arevalued on Pooled bond and debt funds arevalued at£510m
and Debt anet assetbasisinaccordancewith each inthe financial statements. There is arisk that
Funds investment managers valuation policy. this investment may be under or overstated in
(including Where possiblethese valuation techniques | the accounts. Ifthis was under or over stated by
Private Debt are based on observable market data but 5% the value of the investment would increaseor
Funds) where itis not possible management uses decrease by £26m.
the best data available.
Privatedebt funds arevaluedin accordance
with each investment managers valuation
policy. These investments arenot publicly
listedand as such there is a degree of
estimationinvolvedin the valuation.
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Item Uncertainties Effect if Actual Results Differ from Assumptions

Infrastructure | Infrastructurefunds arevaluedin Infrastructure funds arevalued at £471minthe

Investments accordancewith each investment managers | financialstatements.There is arisk thatthis
valuation policy. Where possiblethese investment may be under or overstated in the
valuation techniques arebased on accounts. Ifthis was under or over stated by 5%
observabledata but where itis not possible | the valueof the investment wouldincreaseor
management uses the best data available. decrease by £24m

Timberland Investments arecarried atnet assetvalue Timberland funds are valued at

Investment as determined by the General Partner. In £126minthe financial statements. There is arisk
most cases fairvalueis derived from the that this investment may be under or overstated
audited financial statements provided by an | inthe accounts.Ifthis was under or over stated
underlying fund manager. In circumstances | by 5% the valueof the investment would increase
where audited financial statements are not | or decrease by £6m
available, the valuations arethen derived
from unaudited quarterly reports.

Pooled Pooled targeted return funds arevalued on | Pooled targeted return funds are valued at

Targeted anet assetbasisinaccordancewith each f£144minthe financial statements. There is arisk

Return Funds

investment managers valuation policy.
Where possiblethese valuation techniques
are based on observable market data but
where it is not possible management uses
the best data available

that this investment may be under or overstated
inthe accounts. Ifthis was under or over stated
by 5% the valueof the investment would increase
or decrease by £7m

Pooled
commodity
funds

Pooled commodity funds arevalued on a
net assetbasis inaccordancewith each
investment managers valuation policy.
Where possiblethese valuation techniques
are based on observable market data but
where it is not possible management relies
on the best data available

Pooled commodity funds arevalued at

£21m inthe financial statements. There is arisk
that this investment may be under or overstated
inthe accounts. If this was under or over stated
by 5% the valueof the investment would increase
or decrease by £1m

5. Events after the Reporting Date

The Statement of Accounts was authorised for issue by the Director of Corporate Resources on 24 May 2024. Events
taking placeafter this date arenot reflected in the financial statements or notes. Where events taking place before this
date provided information aboutconditions existingat31 March 202 3, thefigures in the financial statements and notes
have been adjusted in all material respects to reflect the impact of this information (where known). There are no

material events after the reporting date that would require an adjustment or additional disclosureto the accounts.

6. Contributions

2021/22 2022/23
£fm £fm

Employers

179.9 Normal 197.7

9.2 DeficitRepair 113

1.4 Advanced payments for early retirements 15

2.0 Additional payments for ill-health retirements 1.5

Members

46.5 Normal 49.9

0.5 Purchaseof additional benefits 0.3

239.5 Total 262.2
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Additional payments for early retirements are paid by employers, once calculated and requested by the Fund, to
reimburse the Pension Fund for the cost to the Fund of employees who are allowed to retire before their normal
retirement age. Additional payments forill-health retirements are generally paid by the insurance company, where the
employer has taken outill-healthinsuranceandthe claimhas been accepted as valid.

On occasions employers without ill-health insurance are charged for at least part of the ill-health costs. Purchase of
additional benefits by members allows either extra service to be credited on top of anyservice earned via employment
or an additionalannual pension amountin cash to be paid following retirement. Termination valuation payments relate
to the actuarially assessed deficitwithin an employer’s sub-fund when their lastactiveemployee leaves.

The contributions can be analysed by the type of Member Body as follows:

2021/22 2022/23
£m £m
59.1 Leicestershire County Council 64.6
170.0 Scheduled bodies 186.6
10.4 Admitted bodies 11.0
239.5 Total 262.2

7. Transfers In

2021/22 2022/23
£m £m
9.2 Individualtransfersinfromother schemes 12.4
0.7 Bulk transfers in from other schemes 0.0
9.9 Total 124

8. Benefits

The benefits paid canbe analysed by type of Member Body as follows:-

2021/22 2022/23
£m £m
59.8 Leicestershire County Council 62.4
108.4 Scheduled bodies 118.6
9.0 Admitted bodies 7.4
177.2 Total 188.4
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9. Payments to and on Account of Leavers

2021/22 2022/23
£fm £m
0.8 Refunds to members leavingthe scheme 09
133 Individual transfers to other schemes 12.7
3.3 Bulk transfers to other schemes 0.0
17.4 Total 13.6
10. Management Expenses
2021/22 2022/23
£m £m
39.7 Investment Management Expenses (Note 10A) 51.3
1.9 Pension Scheme Administration Costs 2.1
0.9 Oversightand Governance Expenses 1.1
42.5 Total 54.5
10a. Investment Management Expenses
2021/22 2022/23
£fm £m
23.9 Management Expenses 24.5
5.9 Transaction Costs 8.0
9.9 Performance Related Fees 18.8
39.7 Total 51.3
11. InvestmentIncome
2021/22 2022/23
£m £m
1.6 Dividends from equities 1.8
0.2 Income from Government Bonds 0.7
1.2 Income from index-linked securities 13
31.8 Income from pooled investment vehicles 29.7
5.7 Net rents from properties 5.9
0.1 Interest on cashor cash equivalents 2.3
3.0 Net Currency Profit / (Loss) 2.1
43.6 Total 43.8
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11a. Property Income

2021/22 2022/23
£m £m
5.8 Rental income 6.7
(0.1) Direct operating expenses (0.8)
5.7 Total 5.9
No contingentrents have been recognised as income during the period.
12. Investments
Value at Purchases at Sales Change In Value at
1 April Cost and Proceeds and Market Value 31 March
2022 Derivative Derivative 2023
Payments Receipts
£m £m £m £m £m
Equities 46.0 23.8 (47.3) (1.6) 20.9
Government Bonds 8.5 90.3 (73.2) (2.0) 235
Index-linked securities 280.8 220.1 (163.7) (72.2) 265.1
Pooled investment 5,121.8 43556 (406.1) 55.6 5,206.9
vehicles
Properties 120.3 (0.2) 0.0 (18.3) 101.8
Derivatives contracts 4.6 37.2 0.0 (39.1) 2.7
Cashandcurrency &
other investment 188.5 0.0 (58.1) 0.0 130.4
balances
Total 5,770.5 806.8 (748.4) (77.6) 5,751.3
Value at Purchases at Sales Proceeds Change In Value at
1 April Cost and and Derivative Market Value 31 March
2021 Derivative Receipts 2022
Payments
£m £m £m £m £m
Equities 63.1 27.8 (50.9) 6.0 46.0
Government Bonds 3.3 19.0 (13.6) (0.2) 8.5
Index-linked securities 288.4 178.9 (197.6) 11.1 280.8
Pooled investment
. 4,385.2 617.6 (423.0) 542.0 5,121.8
vehicles
Properties 108.6 0.5 0.0 11.2 120.3
Derivatives contracts (6.1) 29.4 (0.5) (18.2) 4.6
Cashandcurrency and
other investment 330.1 0.0 (141.6) 0.0 188.5
balances
Total 5,172.6 873.2 (827.2) 551.9 5,770.5

The change in the value of investments during the year comprises all increases and decreases in the market value of
investments held at any time during the year, including profits and losses realised on sales of investments during the

year.
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The Fund has the followinginvestments which exceed 5% of the total net value of assets:

2021/22 2022/23
£m £fm
890.6 LGPS Central — All World Equity Climate Multi Factor Fund 895.6
513.6 LGPS Central - Global Equity Active Multi Manager Fund 520.6
366.0 Legal and General North America Index Fund 330.8
1,770.2 Total 1,747.0
2021/22 2022/23
£m £m
Equities
24.0 UK quoted 7.0
1.3 UK unquoted 1.3
20.7 Overseas quoted 12.6
46.0 20.9
Government Bonds
0.7 UK Government Unquoted 0.7
0.0 UK Government Quoted 3.9
7.8 Overseas Quoted 18.9
8.5 235
Index Linked Securities
269.2 UK quoted 259.9
11.6 Overseas quoted 5.2
280.8 265.1
Pooled investment vehicles
(unquoted)
362.6 Property funds 305.7
4335 Privateequity 423.2
926.6 Bond and debt funds 1,037.2
2,581.3 Equity-based funds 2,516.7
16.2 Commodity-based funds 21.3
132.3 Timberland fund 126.3
184.2 Managed futures fund 151.8
8.4 Protection fund 9.8
150.2 Targeted return fund 144.4
326.5 Infrastructurefund 470.5
5,121.8 5,206.9
Properties
120.3 UK (Note 14) 101.8
187.1 Cash and currency 128.7
Derivatives contracts
5.3 Forwardforeign exchange assets 2.8
(0.7) Forwardforeign exchange liabilities (0.1)
4.6 Sterling Denominated 2.7
1.4 OtherInvestment Balances 1.7
5,770.5 Total Investments 5,751.3
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13. Derivatives

The Fund holds derivatives for a number of different reasons. Forward foreign exchange contracts are held to benefit
from expected changes in the value of currencies relative to each other. Futures can be held to gain full economic
exposure to markets without the requirement to make a full cashinvestmentand can be held to ensure that the Fund’s
exposures are run efficiently. Options are generally used to express an investment view but can give a much higher
economic exposurethan is required to be paid for the options —they also ensurethat the potential loss is limited to the
amount paid for the option.

Forward Foreign Exchange Contracts

All forward foreign exchange contracts areclassed as ‘Over the Counter’ and atthe year end the net exposure to forward
foreign exchange contracts can be summarised as follows:

Currency Local Value Currency Local Value Asset Liability
Bought Sold Value Value
Settlement Millions Millions £m £m
Within 1 Month GBP 4.5 usD 5.6 0.0 0.0
GBP 1.0 AUD 1.7 0.1 0.0
GBP 0.4 JPY 58.2 0.0 0.0
GBP 13.4 EUR 15.2 0.1 0.0
1 - 3 Months GBP 10.1 AUD 18.6 0.0 0.0
GBP 12.0 CHF 135 0.0 0.0
GBP 151 INR 1,547.0 0.0 0.0
GBP 213 TWD 788.0 0.2 0.0
GBP 3.6 HKD 34.7 0.0 0.0
GBP 3455 usD 426.0 1.6 0.0
GBP 355 CNY 298.3 0.1 0.0
GBP 4.0 SEK 50.9 0.0 0.0
GBP 8.3 CAD 14.0 0.0 (0.2)
USD (45.8) GBP 37.7 0.6 0.0
Open forward currency contracts at 31 March 2023 2.7 (0.1)
Net forward currency contracts at 31 March 2023 2.6
Prior Period Comparison:
Open forward currency contracts at 31 March 2022 5.3 (0.7)
Net forward currency contracts at 31 March 2022 4.6
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14. PropertyInvestments

31 March 2022 31 March 2023

£m £m
96.2 Freehold 82.2
17.5 Long Leasehold (over 50 years unexpired) 14.0
6.6 Medium/Short Leasehold (under 50 years 5.6
unexpired)
120.3 Total 101.8

All properties, with the exception of the Fund’s farm investment, were valued on an open market basis by Nigel Holroyd
and Adrian Payne of Colliers Capital UK Limited at 31st March 2023. The Fund’s farm was valued on an open market

basis by James Forman of Leicestershire County Council. All of the Valuers are Members of the Royal Institute of
Chartered Surveyors.

14A Property Holdings

31 March 2022 31 March 2023

£m £m
108.6 Opening Balance 120.3
Additions:
0.0 Purchases 0.0
0.5 Subsequent Expenditure (0.2)
0.0 Disposals 0.0
11.2 Net increase/(decrease)in market Value (18.3)
120.3 Total 101.8
15. Current Assets and Liabilities
2021/22 2022/23
£m £m
20.1 Contributions due from employers 20.8
5.3 Other Debtors 5.9
25.4 Current assets 26.7
(1.7) Due to Leicestershire County Council (0.0)
(2.1) Fund Management Fees Outstanding (1.4)
(2.1) Other Creditors (2.4)
(5.9) Currentliabilities (3.8)
19.5 Net current assets and liabilities 229

Contributions due at the year end were received by the due date.

16. Analysis of Investments by Manager

The Fund employs external investment managers to manage all of its investments apartfrom an amount of cashanda
farm property, which are managed by Leicestershire County Council. This structure ensures that the total Fund
performanceis not overly influenced by the performance of any one manager.

The market value of investments inthe hands of each manager is shown inthe table below:-
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At 31 At 31
March March
2022 2023
£m % £m %
Investments Managed by LGPS Central Pool
890.6 15.4 All World Equity Climate Multi Factor Fund 895.2 15.6
Global equities multi-manager fund:
145.8 2.4 Harris 145.2 2.5
195.6 3.3  Schroders 199.4 35
172.3 3.0 Union 176.0 3.1
Global Active MAC Multi Manager Fund
110.6 2.0 Western Asset Management 105.1 1.8
1114 2.0 BMO 108.3 1.9
Global Active Investment Grade Corporate Bond MMF
62.2 1.1 Neuberger Berman 73.7 13
63.5 1.1 Fidelity 73.0 13
Emerging market equities multi-manager fund:
66.0 1.1 CTl 62.0 1.1
62.2 1.1 UBS 59.4 1.0
63.1 1.1 Vontobel 60.7 1.1
Global Active Emerging Market Bond MMF
59.6 1.1 Amundi 54.6 0.9
59.9 1.1 M&G 56.1 1.0
3.6 0.1 LGPSC Credit Partnership|LP 72.2 13
21.7 0.3 LGPS Central Core/Core Plus Infrastructure Partnership LP 58.4 1.0
0.0 0.0 LGPSC Credit PartnershipIVLP 30.5 0.5
6.2 0.1 LGPSC Credit Partnershipll LP 26.4 0.5
6.6 0.1 LGPS Central PE Primary Partnership 2018 LP 8.2 0.1
0.0 0.0 LGPS Central PE Primary Partnership 2021 LP 0.6 0.0
2,100.9 36.4 Sub Total 2,265.0 39.5
Investments Managed outside of Pool
975.8 16.9 Legal & General Investment Management Limited 907.5 15.8
394.7 6.8 Adams Street Partners L.P. 382.7 6.7
455.8 7.9 Aegon Asset Management Limited 338.7 5.8
276.6 4.8 LaSallelimited 244.0 43
236.0 4.1 Partners Group Limited 242.8 4.2
1314 2.3 IFM Investors (UK) Ltd 153.2 2.7
184.2 3.2 Aspect Capital Limited 151.8 2.6
108.7 1.9 JP Morgan Asset Management (UK) Limited 147 .4 2.6
150.2 2.6 Pictet Asset Management Limited 144 .4 2.5
153.6 2.6 Ruffer LLP 132.2 2.3
1323 2.3 Stafford Capital Partners Limited 126.3 2.2
135.9 2.5 Colliers Capital UK Limited 115.5 2.0
121.7 2.1 Internally Managed 75.2 1.2
34.2 0.6 Cristofferson,Robb & Company Ltd 69.1 1.2
81.6 14 M&G 57.5 1.0
0.0 0.0 DTZ Investment Management 54.8 1.0
39.7 0.7 Kravis KohlbergRoberts & Co. Ltd 47.9 0.8
25.0 0.4 Infracapital 33.6 0.6
314 0.5 Aberdeen Standard Life Limited 30.8 0.5
0.0 0.0 AQuinbrook 30.0 0.5
0.8 0.0 CatapultVenture Managers Limited 0.9 0.0
3,669.6 63.6 Sub Total 3,486.3 60.5
5,770.5 100.0 Grand Total 5,751.3 100.0
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17. Custody of Assets

All the Fund's directly held assets are held by external custodians and aretherefore not atriskfromthe financialfailure
of any of the Fund's investment managers. Most of the pooled investment funds are registered with administra tors
that are independent of the investment manager.

18. Operationand Management of fund

Details of how the Fund is administered and managed are included in the Pension Fund Annual Report.

19. Employing bodies and fund members

A full listof all bodies that have active members withinthe Fund isincluded in the in the Pensions fund annual report
availablefromthe fund website.

20. Fair value - basis of valuation

Unquoted equities in LGPS Central asset pool are valued at cost, as an appropriate estimate of fair value. All other
investments are held at fair value in accordance with the requirements of the Code and IFRS 13. The valuation bases
are set out below. All assets have been valued using fair value techniques based on the characteristics of each
instrument, with the overall objective of maximising the use of market-based information. There has been no changein
the valuation techniques used during the year.

Description of Asset | Valuation | Basis of valuation Observable and Key sensitivities
Hierarchy unobservable inputs affecting valuations
provided
Market quoted Level 1 Published bid market Not required Not required
Investments pricerulingonfinal day
(equities and bonds) of the accounting period
Market quoted Level 1 Closingbid priceor Not required Not required
pooled funds closingsinglepriceat
reporting date
Forward foreign Level 1 Market forward Not required Not required
exchange contracts exchange rates at
reporting date
Pooled investment Level 2 Fairvaluebased on the | When consideringthe Not Required
vehicles weekly market quoted | fairvalueofassets which
prices of the respective | are notatthe reporting
underlying securities date, the priceof a
recent transaction foran
identical assetprovides
evidence of fairvalue
Unquoted Equity Level 3 Valueis based onthe Earnings before interest, | Valuations could be
(including Private latestinvestor reports tax, depreciation,and affected by material
Equity, andfinancial amortisation (EBITDA) events occurring between
Infrastructureand statements provided multiple, revenue the date of the financial
Timberland) by the fund managers multiple, discountfor statements provided and
of the underlying lack of marketability. the Pension Fund’s own
funds, adjusted for reporting date, by
transactions arising changes to expected cash
after the date of such flows,and by any
reports. differences between
audited and unaudited
accounts.
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Private Debt Level 3 Valued at fairvaluein Comparablevaluationof | Valuations could be
accordancewith similar assets, EBITDA affected by material
International Valuation | multiple, Revenue events occurring
Standards and multiple, Discounted between the date of the
investment managers cashflows, Enterprise financial statements
valuation policy valueestimation provided and the
Pension Fund’s own
reporting date, by
changes to expected
cashflows,and by any
differences between
audited and unaudited
accounts.
Pooled investment Level 3 Stated at bid price Net assetvalue(NAV) Valuations could be
vehicles (including quoted or closing based pricingseton a affected by material
targeted return singlemarket price forward pricingbasis. events occurring
funds, commodity between the date of the
funds and pooled financial statements
property funds) provided and the
Pension Fund’s own
reporting date, by
changes to expected
cashflows,and by any
differences between
audited and unaudited
accounts of the
underlyingassets.
Freehold and Level 3 Stated at open market | Existingleaseterms and | Significantchangesin
Leasehold Property valuebased on expert rentals,independent rental growth, vacancy
valuation provided bya | market research,tenant | levels ordiscountrate
RICS registered Valuer | covenant strength, could affect valuations
andin accordancewith | estimated vacancy
RICS guidelines. levels, estimated rental
growth, discountrate.

Sensitivity of assets valued at Level 3

The tablebelow details the Fund's review of financial information as provided by independent advisors. The valuation
methods detailed above are likely to be accurateto withinthe ranges and, as set out below, the consequent potential
impacton the closingvalueofinvestments at 31 March 2023 and 31 March 2022.

Asset Type Value at 31 Percentage Yalue on Value on
March 2023 change increase decrease
£m % £m £m
UK equities 1.3 31 1.7 0.9
UK Bonds 0.7 6 0.7 0.7
Pooled property funds 305.7 23 376.0 2354
Pooled privateequity funds 423.2 31 554.4 292.0
Pooled bond and debt funds 510.0 11 566.1 453.9
Pooled commodity funds 213 22 26.0 16.6
Pooled targeted return funds 144 .4 9 157.4 1314
Pooled timberland fund 126.3 16 146.5 106.1
Pooled infrastructurefund 470.5 16 545.8 395.2
UK property 101.8 15 117.1 86.5
Total assets available to pay benefits 2,105.2 2,491.7 1,718.7
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Asset Type Value at 31 Percentage Value on Value on
March 2022 change increase decrease
£m % £m £m
UK equities 1.3 18 1.5 1.1
UK Bonds 0.7 3 0.7 0.7
Pooled property funds 362.6 15 417.0 308.2
Pooled private equity funds 433.5 30 563.6 303.5
Pooled bond and debt funds 374.6 11 415.8 3334
Pooled commodity funds 16.2 18 19.1 133
Pooled targeted return funds 150.2 5 157.7 142.7
Pooled timberland fund 1323 18 156.1 108.5
Pooled infrastructurefund 326.5 18 385.3 267.7
UK property 120.3 15 138.3 102.3
Total assets available to pay benefits 1,918.2 2,255.1 1,581.4

20a. Valuation of financial instruments and non-financial instruments
carried at fair value

The valuation of financialinstruments has been classified into three levels, according to the quality and reliability of the
information used to determine fairvalues.

Level 1

Financial instruments at Level 1 are those where the fair values are derived from unadjusted quoted prices in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities. Products classified as level 1 comprised quoted equities, quoted fixed interest
securities, quoted index-linked securities and quoted pooled investment vehicles where the underlyingassets fall into
one of these categories.

Listed investments are shown at bid prices. The bid value of the investment is based on the bid market quotation of the
relevant stock exchange.

Level 2

Financial instruments at Level 2 are those where quoted market prices are not available; for example, where an
instrument is traded in a market that is not considered to be active, or where valuation techniques are used to
determine fairvalueand where these techniques use inputs that arebased significantly on observable market data.

Level 3

Financial instruments at Level 3 are those where at least one input that could have a significant effect on the
instrument’s valuation is not based on observable market data. Such instruments would include unquoted equity
investments, hedge funds and infrastructure, which are valued using various valuation techniques that require
significantjudgement in determining appropriateassumptions.

The values of the investment in private equity are based on valuations provided by the general partners to the private
equity funds in which Leicestershire County Council Pension Fund has invested. These valuations are prepared in
accordancewith the International Private Equity and Venture Capital Valuation Guidelines, which follow the valuation
principles of IFRSand US GAAP.

The values of the investment in hedge funds andinfrastructureare based on the net asset value provided by the fund
manager. Assurances over the valuationaregained from the independent auditof the value.

The following tables provide an analysis of the financial and non-financial assets and liabilities of the pension fund
grouped intolevels 1 to 3, based on the level at which fair valueis observable.
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Quoted Using With significant
market observable unobservable
price inputs inputs
Values at 31stMarch 2023
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
£fm £m £m £m
Financial and non-financial assets 2,446.7 1,069.1 2,105.2 5,621.0
atfairvalue
Financialliabilities atfair value (0.1) 0.0 0.0 (0.1)
Net financial and non-final assets 2,446.6 1,069.1 2,105.2 5,620.9

carried at fair value

The above table excludes cash and cash equivalents of £128.7mand other investment balances of £1.7m which are

carried atamortised cost.

Quoted Using With significant
market observable unobservable
price inputs inputs
Values at 31stMarch 2022
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
£m £m £m £m
Financial and non-financial assets 2,504.5 1,160.0 1,918.2 5,582.7
atfairvalue
Financialliabilities atfair value (0.7) 0.0 0.0 (0.7)
Net financial and non-final assets 2,503.8 1,160.0 19182 5,582.0

carried at fair value

The above table excludes cash and cash equivalents of £187.1mand other investment balances of £1.4m which are

carried atamortised cost.

20b. Reconciliation ofasset held at level 3

Value at Purchases Sales Realised Unrealised Value at
1 April gains / gains or 31 March

2022 (losses) (losses) 2023

£m £m £m £m £fm £m
UK Equities 13 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 13
UK Bonds 0.7 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.7
Pooled property funds 362.6 10.9 (13.4) 43 (58.7) 305.7
Pooled private equity funds 433.5 48.0 (54.0) 25.6 (29.9) 423.2
Pooled bond and debt funds 374.6 180.0 (64.0) 17.8 1.6 510.0
Pooled commodity funds 16.2 20.9 (14.1) 1.2 (2.9) 21.3
Pooled targeted return funds 150.2 0.0 (0.4) 0.4 (5.8) 144.4
Pooled timberland funds 132.3 1.3 (17.8) 3.3 7.2 126.3
Pooled Infrastructure funds 326.5 97.4 (12.5) 8.3 50.8 470.5
UK Property 120.3 (0.2) 0.0 0.0 (18.3) 101.8
Total 1,918.2 358.3 (176.2) 60.9 (56.0) 2,105.2
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21. Classification of Financial Instruments

2021/22 2022/23
£m £m
LR TR Assets at  Liabilities LTI Assets at  Liabilities
through through
) amort- at amort- X amort- at amort-
profit . . profit and . .
ised cost ised cost ised cost ised cost
and loss loss
Financial Assets

46.0 0.0 0.0 Equities 209 0.0 0.0

8.5 0.0 0.0 Government Bonds 235 0.0 0.0
280.8 0.0 0.0 Index-linked securities 265.1 0.0 0.0
5,121.7 0.0 0.0 Pooledinvestment vehicles 5,207.0 0.0 0.0
53 0.0 0.0 Derivatives contracts 2.7 0.0 0.0

0.0 187.1 0.0 Cashandcurrency 0.0 128.7 0.0

0.0 0.0 0.0 Other investment balances 0.0 0.0 0.0

0.0 0.8 0.0 Sundry debtors and prepayments 0.0 1.1 0.0
5,462.3 187.9 0.0 5,519.2 129.8 0.0

Financial Liabilities

(0.7) 0.0 0.0 Derivatives contracts (0.1) 0.0 0.0

0.0 0.0 0.0 Other investment balances 0.0 0.0 0.0

0.0 0.0 (4.4) Sundry Creditors 0.0 0.0 (2.4)
(0.7) 0.0 (4.4) (0.1) 0.0 (2.4)

The value of debtors and creditors reported in the Notes to the Statement of Accounts aresolely thoseamounts meeting
the definition of a financial instrument. The balances of debtors and creditors reported in the balance sheet and Notes
includebalances which do not meet the definition of a financialinstrument, such as tax-based debtors and creditors.

The followinggains and losses arerecognisedin the Fund Account:

2021/22 2022/23

£m £m

Financial Assets

578.2 Fairvaluethrough profitand loss (58.5)
Financial Liabilities

(8.3) Fairvaluethrough profitand loss (0.7)

569.9 Total (59.2)

All realised gains and losses arise from the sale or disposal of financial assets which have been derecognised in the
financial statements. The fund has not entered intoany financial guarantees that are required to be accounted for as
financialinstruments.
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22. External Audit Fee

2021/22 2022/23
£ £
50,193 Payableinrespect of external audit* 57,393
50,193 Total 57,393

*For 2022/23 PSAA and the NAO have indicated that the IAS19 assuranceletters form partof the overall auditfee.
The above figures have been restated to reflect this.

23. Nature and Extent of Risks Arising from Financial Instruments

Risk and risk management

The Fund’s primary long-term risk is that the Fund’s assets will fall short of its liabilities (i.e. the promised benefits
payableto members). Therefore, the aimof investment risk management is to minimisethe risk of an overall reduction
inthe valueof the Fund andto maximisethe opportunity for gains across thewhole Fund portfolio. The fund achieves
this through assetdiversificationtoreduce exposure to market risk (pricerisk, currencyriskandinterest rate risk)and
creditrisktoanacceptablelevel.Inaddition, the Fund manages its liquidity risk to ensurethatthere is sufficient liqui dity
to meet the Fund’s required cash flows. These investment risks are managed as part of the overall pension fund risk
management programme.

Responsibility for the Fund’s risk management strategy rests with Leicestershire County Council’s Local Pension
Committee (formerly calledthe Pension Fund Management Board).

a) Market risk

Market riskis therisk of loss fromfluctuations in equity and commodity prices, interestand foreign exchange rates and
credit spreads.The Fund is exposed to market risk fromits investment activities. The level of risk exposure depends on
market conditions, expectations of future priceand yield movements andthe asset mix.

The objective of the Fund’s risk management strategy is to identify, manage and control market ris k within acceptable
parameters, whilstoptimisingthereturn on risk.

In general, excessive volatility in market risk is managed through the diversification of the portfolio in terms of
geographical andindustry sectors and individual securities. To mitigate market risk, Leicestershire County Council and
its investment advisors undertakeappropriate monitoring of market conditions and benchmarkanalysis.

The Fund manages these risks via an annual strategy review which ensures that market risk remains within acceptable
levels.On occasion equity futures contracts and exchange traded option contracts on individual

securities may be used to manage market risk on investments, and in exceptional circumstances over-the-counter
derivative contracts may be used to manage specific aspects of market risk.

Other price risk

Other priceriskrepresents the riskthatthe valueofa financial instrumentwill fluctuateas a result of changes in market
prices (other than those arisingfrominterest rate risk or foreign exchange risk), whether those changes are caused by
factors specific tothe individualinstrumentor its issuer or factors affectingall suchinvestments in the market.

The Fund is exposed to share and derivative price risk. This arises from investments held by the Fund for which the
future priceis uncertain. All securities investments present a risk of loss of capital. For allinvestments held by the Fund,
the maximum riskresulting from financialinstruments is determined by the fair value of the financial instruments. The
Fund’s investment managers mitigate this price risk through diversification and the selection of securities and other
financialinstruments is monitored to ensure thatitis within the limits specified in the Fund’s investment strategy.
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Other price risk — sensitivity analysis

Followinganalysis of historic data and expected investment return movement duringthe financialyear,in
consultation with the Fund’s investment advisors, Leicestershire County Council has determined that the following
movements in market prices riskarereasonably possibleforthe 2022/23 reporting period:

Asset type Potential market movements (+/-)
Cash 0%
Index Linked Gilts (medium) 7%
Fixed Interest Gilts (medium) 6%
Privateequity 31%
Property 15%
Commodities 22%
Global Distressed Debt 15%
Emerging Markets Equity 24%
Unlisted Infrastructure Equity 16%
Diversified Growth Fund (high equity beta) 13%
Diversified Growth Fund (medium equity beta) 9%
Multi Asset Credit (sub inv grade) 8%
All World Equity GBP Unhedged 18%
Direct Lending (Private Debt) GBP Hedged 11%
Corporate Short AA Low 4%
Corporate Medium BBB 9%

The potential pricechanges disclosed above arebroadly consistent with one-standard deviation movement in the value
of assets. The sensitivities areconsistent with the assumptions contained in the annual strategy review and the analysis
assumes that all other variables,in particularforeign currency exchange rates and interest rates, remain the same.

Had the market price of the Fund’s investments increased/decreased in line with the above, the changein net assets
available to pay benefits in the market price would have been as follows (the prior year comparator is shown in the

second table):

Value at 31 Percentage Value on Value on
Asset Type March 2023 change increase decrease
£m % £m £m

UK equities 8.3 18 9.8 6.8
Overseas equities 12.6 18 14.9 10.3
UK Corporate Bonds 0.0 0 0.0 0.0
Global Government Bonds 287.9 7 308.1 267.7
Pooled property funds 305.7 23 376.0 2354
Pooled private equity funds 423.2 31 554.4 292.0
Pooled bond and debt funds 1,037.2 10 1,140.9 933.5
Pooled Protection funds 9.8 9 10.7 8.9
Pooled hedge funds 0.0 0 0.0 0.0
Pooled equity funds 2,517.4 20 3,020.9 2,013.9
Pooled commodity funds 21.3 0 213 21.3
Pooled targeted return funds 144 .4 9 157.4 131.4
Pooled timberland fund 126.3 16 146.5 106.1
Pooled managed futures fund 151.8 13 1715 132.1
Pooled infrastructurefund 470.5 16 545.8 395.2
UK property 101.8 15 117.1 86.5
Cashandcurrency 128.7 0 128.7 128.7
Other |nvestr-nen-t.t?alances,currentassets 44 0 44 44
and current liabilities

Total assets available to pay benefits 5,751.3 6,728.4 4,774.2
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Asset Type Value at 315t Percentage Value on Value on
March 2022 change increase decrease
£m % £fm £m

UK equities 253 18 29.9 20.7
Overseas equities 20.7 19 24.6 16.8
UK Corporate Bonds 0.7 3 0.7 0.7
Global Government Bonds 288.6 7 308.8 268.4
Pooled property funds 362.6 15 417.0 308.2
Pooled privateequity funds 433.5 30 563.6 303.5
Pooled bond and debt funds 926.6 8 1,000.7 852.5
Pooled hedge funds 0.0 18 0.0 0.0
Pooled equity funds 2,581.3 19 3,071.7 2,090.9
Pooled commodity funds 16.2 18 19.1 133
Pooled targeted return funds 150.2 5 157.7 142.7
Pooled timberland fund 1323 18 156.1 108.5
Pooled managed futures fund 184.2 13 208.1 160.3
Pooled infrastructure fund 326.5 18 385.3 267.7
UK property 120.3 15 138.3 102.3
Cashandcurrency 187.1 2 190.8 183.4
Other |nvestr.nen.t.k.>alances,currentassets 144 5 147 141
and current liabilities

Total assets available to pay benefits 5,770.5 6,687.1 4,854.0

Interest rate risk

The Fund invests in financial assets for the primary purpose of obtaininga return on investments. These
investments are subject to interest rate risk, which represents the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a
financialinstrumentwill fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates.

The Fund is not highly exposed to interest rate risk, but monitoringis carried outto ensure that the exposure is closeto
the agreed assetallocation benchmark.

The Fund’s direct exposure to interest rate movements as at31st March 2023 and 31st March 2022 is set out below.
These disclosures presentinterest rate risk based onthe underlyingfinancialassets atfair value:

As at 31 Asset type As at 31
March 2022 March 2023
£m £m
187.1 CashandCurrency 128.7
288.6 Fixed interest securities 287.9
475.7 Total 416.6

Interest rate risk sensitivity analysis

The Fund recognises thatinterest rates canvaryand can affect both income to the Fund and the value of the net assets
to pay benefits, A 1% movement ininterestrates (100 BPS) is consistentwith the level of sensitivity expected within the
Fund’s asset allocation strategy and the Fund’s investment advisors expect that long-term average rates are expected
to move less than 100 BPS from one year to the next and experience suggests that such movements are likely.
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The analysisthatfollows assumes thatall other variables, in particular exchangerates, remain constant,and shows the
effect in the year on the net assets available to pay benefits of a +/- 100 BPS change in interest rates. The analysis
demonstrates that a 1% increase in interest rates will not affect the interest received on fixed interest assets but will
reduce their fair value,and viceversa.Changes ininterest rates do not impacton the valueof cashandcash
equivalentbalances butthey will affectthe interest income received on those balances.

Carrying Impact of Impact of
Exposure to interest rate amount as at 31 increase decrease
risk March 2023
+100 BPS -100 BPS
£fm £m £m
Cashand Currency 128.7 128.7 128.7
Fixed interest securities 287.9 243.9 341.8
Total 416.6 372.6 470.5
Carrying Impact of Impact of
amount as at increase decrease
Exposure to interest rate risk 31 March
2022
+100 BPS -100 BPS
£m £m £m
Cashand Currency 187.1 187.1 187.1
Fixed interest securities 288.6 230.0 347.2
Total 475.7 417.1 534.3
Assets exposed to interest rate risk:
Interest Impact of Impact of
Exposure to interest rate receivable increase decrease
risk 2022/23
+100 BPS -100 BPS
£m £m £m
Cashand Currency 2.3 3.9 0.7
Fixed interest securities 2.0 2.0 2.0
Total 4.3 5.9 2.7
Interest Impact of Impact of
receivable increase decrease
Exposure to interest rate risk 2021/22
+100 BPS -100 BPS
£m £m £m
Cashand Currency 0.1 2.7 0.0
Fixed interest securities 1.4 1.4 1.4
Total 1.5 4.1 14

Currency risk
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Currency riskrepresents the risk that the fair value of future cash flows ofa financial instrumentwill fluctuate because
of changes inforeign exchangerates. The Fund is exposed to currencyriskin financial instruments thatare denominated
in any other currency other than sterling. The Fund holds both monetary and non-monetary assets denominated in
currencies other than sterling.

The Fund’s currency rate risk is actively managed and the neutral position is to hedge 25% of the exposure back to
sterling. The table below summarises the Fund’s currency exposure ifit was unhedged as at31st March2022 andas at
the previous period end:

Asset value as at Asset value as at
31 March 2022 Currency exposure —asset type 31 March 2023
£m £m

20.7 Overseas equities 12.6

7.8 Overseas government bonds 18.9

11.6 Overseas government index-linked bonds 5.2

874.4 Overseas pooledinvestment vehicles 951.8

60.9 Overseas cashandcurrency 30.7

975.4 Total overseas assets 1,019.2

Currency Risk — Sensitivity Analysis

Followinganalysis of historical data in consultation with the Fund’s investment advisors,itis considered that the likely
volatility associated with foreign exchange rate movements is 10% (as measured by one standard deviation).

A 10% fluctuation in the currency is considered reasonable based on the Fund advisor’s analysis of the long-term
historical movements in the month-end exchange rates over a rolling 36-month period. This analysis assumes that all
other variables, in particular interestrates, remain constant.

A 10% strengthening/weakening of the pound againstthevarious currencies in which the fund holds investments would
increase/decreasethe net assets availableto pay benefits as follows:

Asset value as .
Change to net assets available to pay

at 31 March 5
benefits
Current exposure — asset type 2023

10% -10%

£m £m £m

Overseas equities 12.6 13.8 11.4
Overseas government bonds 18.9 20.7 17.1
Overseas government index-linked bonds 5.2 5.7 4.7
Overseas pooled investment vehicles 951.8 1,042.2 861.4
Overseas cashand currency 30.7 33.6 27.8
Total change in assets available 1,019.2 1,116.0 922.4

b) Credit Risk

Credit risk represents the risk that the counterparty to a transaction or financial instrument will fail to discharge an
obligation and causethe Fund to incur a financial loss. The market value of investments generally reflects an assessment
of creditin their pricing and consequently the risk of loss is implicitly provided for in the carrying value of the Fund'’s
financial assets and liabilities.

In essence the Fund’s entire investment portfolio is exposed to some form of credit risk, with the exception of
derivatives positions, where the risk equates to the net market value of a positive derivative position. However, the
selection of high quality counterparties, brokers and financial institutions minimises creditrisk thatmay occur through
the failureto settle a transactionina timely manner.

M Leicestershire
County Council 106



121

Pension Fund Accounts

Contractual creditriskisrepresented by the net payment or receipt that remains outstanding,and the costof replacing
the derivative position in the event of a counterparty default. The residual risk is minimal due to various insurance
policies held by the exchanges to cover defaulting counterparties.

Credit risk on over-the-counter derivative contracts is minimised as counterparties are recognised financial
intermediaries with acceptablecredit ratings determined by a recognised ratings agency.

Deposits are not made with banks and financialinstitutions unlessthey are rated independently and have a high credit
rating. Many of the Fund’s investment managers use the money market fund run by the Fund’s custodian to deposit
any cash within their portfolios, although one manager (Kames Capital) lends cash directly to individual counterparties
in the London money markets. Any cash held directly by the Fund is deposited in an Aberdeen Standard Life Money
Market Fund.

The Fund believes ithas managed its exposureto creditriskand has never had any experience of default of uncollectible
deposits.The Fund’s cash holdingat31stMarch2023 was £129m (31stMarch2022: £187m).

c) Liquidity Risk

Liquidity riskrepresents therisk thatthe Fund will notbe ableto meet its financial obligations asthey fall due. The Fund
therefore takes steps to ensure that it has adequate cash resources to meet its commitments. All of the Fund’s cash
holdings are available for immediate access, although on some occasions this will involve withdrawing cash balances
from the portfolios of investment managers.

The Fund is allowed to borrow to meet short-term cash flowrequirements, although thisis anoption thatis onlylikely
to be used in exceptional circumstances.

The Fund defines liquid assets as assets that can be converted to cash within three months. Illiquid assets are those
assets which will take longer than three months to convert to cash. As at 31st March 2023 the value of illiquid assets
(considered to be the Fund’s investments in property, hedge funds, private equity, timberland and infrastructure) was
£1.4bn, which represented 25% of total Fund assets. (31st March 2022: £1.4bn, which represented 24% of total Fund
assets).

The Fund remains cash flow positivefor non-investment related items so there is no requirement to produce detailed
cash flow forecasts. All investment related cash flows are known about sufficiently far in advance that they can be
covered by taking action in a manner that is both cost-effective and in line with the Fund’s investment strategy. All
financial liabilities at31stMarch 2023 aredue within one year.

Refinancing Risk

The key riskis that the Fund will be forced to sell a significant proportion of its financial instruments at a time of
unfavourableinterestrates, butthis appears a highly unlikely scenario. The Fund’s investment strategy and the structure
of its portfolios havesufficient flexibility to ensure that anyrequired sales areconsidered to be the ones thatarein the
best financialinterests of the Fund at that time. There areno financial instruments that have a refinancing

riskas partofthe Fund’s treasury management and investment strategies.

Securities Lending
The Fund ceased to take partinsecurities lendingactivities towards the end of the 2017/18 financial year and there
was no stock on loanat31 March2023.

Reputational Risk

The Fund’s prudent approach to the collectiverisks listed above and through best practicein corporategovernance
ensures that reputational riskis keptto a minimum.
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24. Related Party Transactions

Leicestershire County Council (LCC) is the administering authority for the Local Government Pension Scheme (LGPS)
within Leicestershire and is one of the major employers within the scheme. Information regarding key management
personnel is provided within the main accounts of Leicestershire County Council. Members and officers of the Council
involved in managing the Fund are allowed to be members of the LGPS. All transactions between Leicestershire County
Council and the Fund and all benefit payments from the Fund are in accordance with the regulations governing the
LGPS. There are no transactionstherefore that are made on a different basis fromthose with non-related parties.

Duringthe reporting period LCC incurred costs of £2.1m inrelation to administration and management of the Fund, the
full amounthas been recharged to the Fund, andis recognised in the expenses outlinedin note 10 above. As atthe 31
March 2023 less than £10,000 of this was a creditor balance in the Fund accounts. Contributions of £64.6m were
receivablefromLCC during2022/23 (£59.1m2021/22) of which, £5.4mwas still outstandingasat31 March 2023 (£5.8m
asat31 March2022).

LGPS Central Ltd has been established to manage, on a pooled basis, investment assets of nine Local Government
Pension Schemes across the Midlands. It is jointly owned in equal amounts by the eight Administering Authorities
participating in the Pool. £1.3mis invested in the share capital and £0.7min a corporate bond with LGPS Central Ltd.
During2022/23 a total of £1.0m (£0.9m 2021/22) was payableto LGPS Central Ltd for governance, operator and product
development fees. Of these £0.5m was a creditor balance at the year end. As at 31 March 2023, £2.3bn of LCC LGPS
investments were managed by LGPS Central Ltd (£2.1bn as at31 March2022).

25. Contingent Liabilities and Contractual Commitments

When a member has left the Pension Fund before accruingsufficientserviceto qualify for a benefit from the scheme,
they may choose either a refund of contributions or a transfer value to another pension fund. There are a significant
number of these leavers who have not taken either of these options and as their ultimate choice is unknown, itis not
possible to reliably estimate a liability. The impact of these ‘frozen refunds’ has, however, been considered in the
calculation of the actuarial liabilities of the fund.

If all of these individuals choose to take a refund of contributions the cost to the Fund will be around £2.5m, although
the statutory requirement of the Fund to pay interest to some members would increase this figure. Should all of the

members opt to transfer to another scheme the cost will beconsiderably higher.

At 315tMarch 2023, the Fund had the following contractual commitments:-

31-Mar-22 31-Mar-23

£m £m
Aberdeen Standard Life Capital SOF Il Fund 10.3 10.3
Adams Street Partners L.P. 126.0 90.2
Infracapital Greenfield Partners | Fund 8.8 4.3
M & G Debt Opportunities Funds Il &V 6.3 17.9
KKR Global Infrastructure 12.0 7.9
Stafford International Timberland & Carbon Offset Funds 1.2 54.2
LGPS Central PE Primary Partnership 2018 LP 4.2 2.4
LGPSC Credit Partnership IV 00 50.0
LGPSC Credit Partnership Il LP 96.4 167.1
LGPSC Credit Partnership| LP 53.5 32.8
LGPS Central Core/Core Plus Infrastructure Partnership LP 48.1 49.1
LGPS Central PE Primary Partnership 2021 LP 30.0 29.1
CRC Capital ReleaseFund V 44.0 0.0
Quinbrook Infrastructure Partners 0.0 19.1
Partners Group Multi Asset Credit VI and VII 20.8 223
Total 461.6 556.7
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25A Key Management Personnel

The fund has identified the Director of Corporate Resources (LCC) and the AssistantDirector Finance, Strategic Property
and Commissioning (LCC) as key management personnel with the authority and responsibility to control or exercise
significantinfluence over the financial and reporting decisions of the fund. The combined compensation for these
officers attributableto Leicestershire County Council Pension Fund* is shown below:

2021/22 2022/23
£000s £000s
20.9 Short-term benefits 21.5
5.7 Pensioncontributions 6.1
26.6 Total 27.6

*The amounts inthe tablewere not recharged to the Fund but arepresented as required by the Code of Practice.

26. Additional Voluntary Contributions (AVC'’s)

The Fund has an arrangement with Prudential whereby additional contributions can be paid to them for investment,
with the intention that the accumulated value will be used to purchase additional retirement benefits. AVCs are not
included inthe pension fund accounts in accordance with Regulation 4(1)(b) of the Local Government Pension Scheme
(Management and Investment of Funds) Regulations 2016. During 2022/23 £2.5m in contributions were paid to
Prudential.The capital valueofall AVC’s atyear end 31 March 2023 was £18.7m.

27. Policy Statements

The Fund has a number of policy statements which can be found on the LPGS website. They have not been reproduced
within the Accounts, as in combination they are sizeable, and itis not considered that they would add any significant
valueto most users of the accounts. The Statements are:

Investment Strategy Statement (ISS)

Administration and Communication Strategy

Funding Strategy Statement (FSS)

28. Compliance Statement

Income and other taxes
The Fund has been ableto gain either total or partial relief from local taxation onthe Fund’s investment income from
eligiblecountries. The Fund is exempt from UK Capital Gainsand Corporation tax.

Self-investment

There has been no material employer related investment in 2022/23 (or 2021/22). There were occasions on which
contributions were paid over by the employer later than the statutory date and these instances aretechnically classed
as self-investment. In noinstance were the sums involved material, and neither were they outstandingfor longperiods.

Calculation of transfer values
There are no discretionary benefits included in the calculation of transfer values.

Pension Increase
All pensionincreases aremade inaccordancewith the Pensions Increase (Review) Order 1997.

Changes to LGPS
All changes to LGPS are made via the issueof Statutory Instruments by Central Government.
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Leicestershire County Council Pension Fund (the Fund)
Actuarial Statement for 2022/23

This statement has been prepared inaccordancewith Regulation 57(1)(d) of the Local Government Pension Scheme
Regulations 2013. It has been prepared at the request of the Administering Authority of the Fund for the purpose of
complying with the aforementioned regulation.

Description of Funding Policy

The funding policyis setoutin the Administering Authority’s Funding Strategy Statement (FSS), dated March 2023. In
summary, the key fundingprinciples areas follows:

° take a prudent long-term view to secure the regulatory requirement for long-term solvency, with sufficient
funds to pay benefits to members and their dependants

° use a balanced investment strategy to meet the regulatory requirement for long-term cost efficiency (where
efficiencyin this context means to minimise cash contributions fromemployers inthe long term)

° where appropriate, ensure stableemployer contribution rates

° reflect different employers’ characteristicsto set their contributionrates, usinga transparentfunding strategy
° use reasonablemeasures to reduce the risk of an employer defaultingon its pension obligations

° where appropriate, ensure fairness between employers and between different generations of tax-payers

The FSS sets out how the Administering Authority seeks to balancethe conflictingaims of securingthe solvency of the
Fund and keeping employer contributions stable. For employers whose covenant was considered by the Administering
Authority to be sufficiently strong, contributions have been stabilised to have a sufficiently high likelihood of achieving
the funding target over 17 years. Asset-liability modelling has been carried out which demonstrate thatif these
contribution rates are paid and future contribution changes are constrained as setout inthe FSS, there is atleasta
75% likelihood thatthe Fund will achievethe funding target over 17 years.

Funding Position as at the last formal funding valuation

The most recent actuarial valuation carried outunder Regulation 62 of the Local Government Pension Scheme
Regulations 2013 was as at31 March 2022.This valuation revealed that the Fund’s assets, whichat31 March 2022
were valued at£5,790 million, were sufficientto meet 105% of the liabilities (i.e.the present value of promised
retirement benefits) accrued up to that date. The resultingsurplus atthe 2022 valuation was £283 million.

Each employer had contribution requirements set at the valuation, with the aim of achievingtheir funding target
withina time horizon and likelihood measureas per the FSS. Individual employers’ contributions for the period 1 April
2023 to 31 March 2026 were setinaccordancewiththe Fund’s funding policy as setoutinits FSS.

Principal Actuarial Assumptions and Method used to value the liabilities

Full details of the methods and assumptions used aredescribed inthe 2022 valuation reportand FSS.

Method

The liabilities were assessed usingan accrued benefits method which takes into accountpensionable membership up
to the valuation date;and makes anallowancefor expected future salary growth to retirement or expected earlier
date of leaving pensionable membership.
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Assumptions

A market-related approach was taken to valuingthe liabilities, for consistency with the valuation of the Fund assets at
their market value.

The key financial assumptions adopted for the 2022 valuation were as follows:

Financial assumptions 31 March 2022
Discountrate 4.4% pa
Salaryincreaseassumption 3.4% pa

| Benefit increaseassumption (CPI) 2.9% pa

The key demographic assumption was the allowance madefor longevity. The life expectancy assumptions arebased
on the Fund's VitaCurves with improvements inlinewith the CMI 2021 model, with a 0% weighting of 2021 (and 2020)
data, standard smoothing (Sk7), initial adjustmentof 0.25% and a long term rate of 1.50% p.a. Based on these
assumptions, the average future life expectancies at age 65 are as follows:

Females
Current Pensioners 21.5 years 24.4 years
Future Pensioners* 22.3 years 25.9 years

*Aged 45 at the 2022 Valuation.

Copies of the 2022 valuation reportand Funding Strategy Statement are availableonrequest from the Administering
Authority to the Fund and on the Fund’s website.

Experience over the period since 31 March 2022

Markets continued to be disrupted by the ongoing war in Ukraineandinflationary pressures,impacting on investment
returns achieved by the Fund’s assets. High levels of inflationin the UK (compared to recent experience), have
resulted ina higher than expected LGPS benefit increaseof 10.1% in April 2023. Despite this, the fundinglevel of the
Fund is likely to be higher than reported at the 31 March 2022 fundingvaluation due to significantrises ininterest
rates which reduce the value placed on the Fund’s liabilities.

The next actuarialvaluation willbecarried outas at31 March 2025. The Funding Strategy Statement will also be
reviewed at that time.

Richard Warden FFA

15 June 2023

For and on behalf of Hymans Robertson LLP
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Pension Fund Accounts Reporting Requirement

Introduction

CIPFA's Code of Practiceon Local Authority Accounting 2022/23 requires Administering Authorities of LGPS funds that
prepare pension fund accounts to disclosewhatl1AS26 refers to as the actuarial presentvalue of promised retirement
benefits. | have been instructed by the Administering Authority to provide the necessaryinformation for the
Leicestershire County Council Pension Fund (“the Fund”).

The actuarial presentvalue of promised retirement benefits is to be calculated similarly to the Defined Benefit
Obligation under 1AS19. There are three options for its disclosurein the pension fund accounts:

e showingthe figureinthe Net Assets Statement, inwhichcaseitrequires the statement to disclosethe
resulting surplus or deficit;
e asanote to the accounts;or

e Dby reference to this informationinanaccompanyingactuarial report.

Ifan actuarialvaluation has notbeen prepared at the date of the financial statements, IAS26 requires the most recent
valuationtobe used as a baseand the date of the valuation disclosed. The valuation should becarried outusing
assumptionsinlinewith IAS19 and not the Fund’s fundingassumptions.

Present value of promised retirement benefits

Year ended 31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Active members (£m) 2,333 4,176
Deferred members (£m) 1,098 1,670
Pensioners (Em) 2,304 2,213
Total (Em) 5,735 8,060

The promised retirement benefits at 31 March 2023 have been projected usinga roll forward approximation fromthe
latest formal funding valuationas at31 March 2022. The approximationinvolvedintheroll forward model means
that the splitof benefits between the three classes of member may not be reliable. However, | am satisfied thatthe
total figure is a reasonable estimate of the actuarial presentvalue of benefit promises.

The figures include both vested and non-vested benefits, although the latteris assumed to have a negligiblevalue.
Further, | have not made anyallowancefor unfunded benefits.

It should be noted the above figures are appropriatefor the Administering Authority only for preparation of the
pension fund accounts. They should not be used for any other purpose (i.e. comparingagainstliability measures ona
fundingbasis or a cessation basis).

Assumptions

The assumptions used arethose adopted for the Administering Authority’s IAS19 report and are different as at 31
March 2023 and 31 March 2022. | estimate that the impactof the change infinancialassumptions to 31 March 2023
is to decrease the actuarial presentvalueby £3,217m. | estimate that the impact of the change in demographic
assumptions is todecreasethe actuarial presentvalue by £60m.
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Financial assumptions

Year ended 31 March 2023 31 March 2022
% p.a. % p.a.

Pension IncreaseRate (CPI) 2.95% 3.20%

SalaryIncreaseRate 3.45% 3.70%

DiscountRate 4.75% 2.70%

Demographic assumptions
The longevity assumptions have changed since the previous IAS26 disclosurefor the Fund.
Life expectancy is based onthe Fund's VitaCurves with improvements inlinewith the CMI 2021 model, with a 10%

weighting of 2021 (and 2020) data, standard smoothing (Sk7), initial adjustment of 0.25% and a long term rate of
improvement of 1.5% p.a.. Based on these assumptions, theaverage future life expectancies at age 65 are

summarised below:

Females
Current pensioners 21.2 years 24.2 years
Future pensioners (assumed to be aged 45 at the latestvaluation date) 21.9 years 25.6 years

All other demographicassumptions havebeen updated sincelastyearand are as per the latestfunding valuation of
the Fund.

Sensitivity Analysis

CIPFA guidancerequires the disclosure of the sensitivity of the results to the methods and assumptions used. The

sensitivities regardingthe principalassumptions used to measure the obligations areset out below:

Change in assumption at 31 March 2023 Approximate % increase Approximate monetary
to promised retirement amount (£m)
benefits
0.1% p.a. decreasein the DiscountRate 2% 108
1 year increasein member life expectancy 4% 229
0.1% p.a. increaseinthe SalaryIncreaseRate 0% 12
0.1% p.a. increaseinthe Pension IncreaseRate (CPI) 2% 98

Professional notes

This paper accompanies the ‘Accounting Covering Report — 31 March 2023’ which identifies the appropriatereliances
and limitations for the use of the figures in this paper, together with further details regardingthe professional
requirements and assumptions.

Prepared by:-

Richard Warden FFA
15 June 2023

For and on behalf of Hymans Robertson LLP
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Statement of Responsibilities for Leicestershire County Council
Pension Fund

THE AUTHORITY’S RESPONSIBILITIES

The Authority is required to:

=  Make arrangements for the proper administration of the financial affairs of its Pension Fund and to secure that one
of its officers has the responsibility for the administration of those affairs. In this Authority, that officer is the
Director of Corporate Resources.

= Manageits affairs to secure economic, efficient and effective useof resources and safeguardits assets.

=  Approve the statement of accounts

MR. L. BRECKON
CABINET LEAD MEMBER FOR CORPORATE RESOURCES
24 MAY 2024

THE DIRECTOR OF CORPORATE RESOURCES RESPONSIBILITIES

The Director of Corporate Resources is responsible for the preparation of the Authority’s Pension Fund Statement of
Accounts in accordance with proper accounting practices as set out in the CIPFA/LASAAC Code of Practice on Local
Authority Accounting inthe United Kingdom (‘the Code’).

In preparingthis Statement of Accounts, the Director of Corporate Resources has:

= Selected suitableaccounting policiesand then applied them consistently.

= Madejudgements andestimates that were reasonableand prudent.

= Complied with the Local Authority Code.

= Kept proper accountingrecords which were up to date,

= Taken reasonablesteps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities.

= Assessed the Pension Fund’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to
going concern;

= Used the goingconcern basis ofaccounting on the assumption thatthe functions of the Pension Fund will
continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future; and

=  Maintained suchinternal control as they determine is necessaryto enable the preparation of financial statements
that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

| certify that the above responsibilities have been complied with and the Statement of Accounts herewith presents a
true and fair view of the financial position of the Leicestershire County Council Pension Fund as at 31 March2023 and
its income and expenditure for the year ended the same date.

D KEEGAN
DIRECTOR OF CORPORATE RESOURCES
24 MAY 2024
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Independent auditor's report to the members of Leicestershire County Council

To follow
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Independent auditor’s report to the members of Leicestershire County Council on the
pension fund financial statements of Leicestershire County Council Pension Fund

To follow
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Leicestershire
County Council

DRAFT Annual Governance Statement (AGS) 2022-23

1.

Introduction

Leicestershire County Council (the Council)is responsiblefor ensuringthatits business isconductedin
accordancewith prevailinglegislation, regulation and government guidanceand that proper standards of
stewardship, conduct, probity,and professional competence areset and adhered to by all thoserepresenting
and working for and with the Council. This ensures that the services provided to the people of Leicestershire
are properly administered and delivered economically, efficiently, and effectively. In discharging this
responsibility, the Council musthave inplacea solid foundation of good governance and sound financial
management.

Regulations 6 (1) (a) and (b) of the Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015 requireeach English local authority to
conduct areview, atleastonce a year, of the effectiveness of its system of internal control and approve an
annual governancestatement (AGS), prepared inaccordancewith proper practicesinrelationtointernal
control. The preparation and publication of an AGS, inaccordancewith the CIPFA/SOLACE ‘Delivering Good
Governance in Local Government: Framework’ (2016), fulfils the statutory requirement of the Accounts and
Audit Regulations.The AGS encompasses the governance system that appliedin both the Authority andany
significantgroup entities (e.g. ESPO, EMSS) duringthe financial year beingreported.

The draft AGS 2022-23is scheduled to be published with the draft Statement of Accounts by the end of June
2023.

What is Corporate Governance?

Corporate Governance is defined as how organisations ensurethat they are doingthe right things, inthe right
way, for the right people ina timely, inclusive, open, honest, and accountable manner. The Council’s governa nce
framework comprises the systems and processes, cultures,and values by which the Council is directed and
controlled. It enables the Council to monitor the achievement of its strategic objectives and to consider whether
those objectives have led to the delivery of appropriateservices and value for money.

The Chartered Institute of Public Financeand Accountancy (CIPFA) ‘Delivering Good Governance in Local
Government; Framework (2016)’ sets the standard for local authority governanceinthe UK and the Council is
committed to the principles of good corporate governance contained in the Framework.

The Council has developed, adopted, and continued to maintain a Local Code of Corporate Governance which
sets out the way the Council meets the principles outlined in the Framework. The Code canbe found on the LCC
internet.
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Leicestershire’s Vision and Outcomes

The County Council’s Annual Delivery Report and Performance Compendium 2022 is partof the Council’s policy
framework and, as such, required the approval of the full County Council atits meeting on 7 December 2022. The
documents provide performance data which will help the Council andits partners to ensure services continueto
meet standards, providevaluefor money andthat outcomes are being achieved for local people.Itis best
practicein performance management, and partof the Council’s Internal Governance Framework, to undertake a
review of overall progress atthe end of the year and to benchmark performance againstcomparableauthorities.
Itis alsogood practiceto produce an annual performancereportand ensure thatitis scrutinised, transparent,
and made publiclyavailable.

The Annual Delivery Report described delivery, progress with implementing agreed plans and strategies,and
achievements over the previous 12 months. It largely focused on performance against County Council priorities
for community outcomes as set out inits Strategic Plan2022-26 and other main servicestrategies. The Report
alsoincludedinformation on the financial sustainability and the emergent implicationsfor servicedemand and
outcomes. The Performance Compendium outlined the inequity in national fundingand the Council’s Fair

Funding proposals, transformation requirements and national and local service pressures, as well as detailed
comparative performance metrics.

The Strategic Plan (2022-26), approved by the County Council on 18 May 2022, provides animportant strategic
planning framework for the Council which aims to ensure that all service plansand strategies contribute to
delivery of the Council’s vision for Leicestershire. It has the followingfive priority outcome themes: -

Our Vision:

An inclusive county in which active communities, great connections and
greener living enables everyone to prosper, be happy and healthy.

Strong Economy,
Transport &
Infrastructure

Improving
Opportunities

Keeping People
Safe & Well

Great Communities

Clean, Green Future

Leicestershirehasa
productive, inclusive, and
sustainable economy and

infrastructure which
meets the demands of a
growing population and

economy.

Every childgets the best
startforlife withaccess
to a good quality
education andeveryone
has the opportunities
they need to
fulfil their potential

The peopleof
Leicestershireare
safeand
protected from
harmand havethe
opportunitiesand
supportthey need
to
take control of their
health and

wellbeing

Leicestershire has thriving,
inclusive communities in
which people supporteach
other and participatein
servicedesignand
delivery

The environmentis
protected and
enhanced, and we
tackleclimatechange,
biodiversityloss and
unsustainableresource
usage
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4. What the Annual Governance Statement Tells You

The AGS reports on the extent to which the Council has met the requirements of the Local Code of Corporate
Governance and the controls ithas inplaceto manage! risks of failurein deliveringits outcomes. The mainaim
of the AGS is to provide the reader with confidence that the Council has an effective system of internal control
that manages risks toareasonablelevel.

The 2022/23 AGS has been constructed by undertaking: -

° A review of the effectiveness of the system of internal control

° Reviewing other forms of assurance

° Action taken on governance issues reportedinthe 2021/22 AGS
° Significantgovernanceissues arisingduring2022/23

° Future challenges

5. Review of Effectiveness of the System of Internal Control

To ensure the 2022/23 AGS presents an accurate picture of governance arrangements for the whole Council,
each Director was required to complete a ‘self-assessment’, which provided details of the measuresinplace
within their department to ensure conformance (or otherwise) with the seven core principles of the Local
Code of Corporate Governance.

A senior officers group meets to review the compilation of the AGS. The group comprises

° Director of Law & Governance (the Council’s Statutory Monitoring Officer)

. Director of Corporate Resources (the Council’s Statutory Chief Financial Officer)

. Head of Democratic Services

. Assistant Chief Executive

o AssistantDirector —Assistant Director Finance, Strategic Property & Commissioning
o Assistant Director — Corporate Services

. Head of Internal Audit & AssuranceService

The group has determined that progressingareas identified for development, should be the responsibility of
designated Directors and Heads of Service during2022/23. A review of progressingthe implementation of
previous years planned developments will be undertaken. Any previous year’s developments that were not
carriedforwardinto 2022/23 or reported through the Corporate Risk Register process will continueto be
monitored.

6. Other Forms of Assurance

The Framework provides examples of policies, systems, and processes thatan authority should havein place.
Usingthis guidance, the Council can provideassurancethatit has effective governance arrangements. The
Council has anapproved Local Code of Corporate Governance, and this provides examples of good governance
inpractice.

LIt cannoteliminateall risk of failureto achieve policies, aims and objectives and can therefore only provide reasonable
and not absoluteassurance of effectiveness.
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The Control Environment of Leicestershire County Council

The Council’s Constitutionincludes Financeand ContractProcedure Rules, a general Scheme of Delegation to
Chief Officers.These translateinto key operational internal controlssuch as: control of access to systems, offices,
and assets;segregation of duties; reconciliation of records and accounts;decisionsand transactions authorised
by nominated officers;and production of suitablefinancial and operational management information. These
controls demonstrate governance structures in placethroughout the Council.

Internal Audit Service

The Council’s Head of Internal Audit & Assurance Service (HolAS) ensures that internal audit arrangements
conform to the requirements of the Public Sector Internal Audit Standards (the PSIAS) revisedin 2017 .The
PSIAS require an external quality assessmentevery 5years and the next is planned for the Springof 2024.The
HolAS also conforms to the governance requirements and core responsibilities of the CIPFA Statement on the
Role of the Head of Internal Auditin Public Service Organisations (2019).

The HolAS works with the Corporate Management Team to give adviceand promote good governance
throughout the organisation. The HolAS leads and directs the Internal Audit Service (IAS) so that it makes a full
contribution to and meets the needs of the Authority and external stakeholders, escalatingany concerns and
givingassuranceonthe Council’s control environment.

There is anInternal Audit Charter mandatingthe purpose, authority, and responsibility of the internal audit
activity. The Charter allows the HolAS to also be responsiblefor the administration and development of, and
reporting on, the Council’s risk management framework. Whilstthis does present a potential impairmentto
independence and objectivity, the HolAS arranges for any reviews to be overseen by someone outside of the
internal auditactivity. An independent risk management maturity health check was undertaken duringthe
autumn of 2018 and good progress continues to be made againstthe recommendations. The next review is
plannedinthe autumn of 2024.

To meet a PSIAS requirement to form an opinionon the overall adequacy and effecti veness of the Council’s
control environment i.e. its framework of governance, risk management and control, the HolAS arranges a risk-
based plan of audits on a six-monthly basis.

Internal Audit and Assurancereports often contain recommendations for improvements. The number, type
andimportance of recommendations determines how the auditor reaches an opinion on the level of
assurancethatcan be given that controls areboth suitably designed and arebeing consistently applied,and
that material risks will likely notarise. The combined assessment of individual auditopinions and other
assurances gained throughout the year (e.g. involvement in governance groups, attendance at Committees,
evaluations of other assurance providers), facilitatethe HolAS in forming the annual internal audit opinion
on the overall adequacy and effectiveness of the Council’s control environment. The HolAS presented his
annual reportto Corporate Governance Committee on 26 May 2023 and his opinionread: -

Whilstthe IAS staff group encountered some longunplanned absences, there was considerablyless
disruption from Covid-19, the benefit from pulling back fromacademy provision was noticeableand overall
the resource basewas atits strongest for a number of years. The HolAS considers there was sufficientinput
across thecontrol environment to be ableto give a full opinion. Assurancewas supplemented by good
relationships with senior management and transparency over reporting significantgovernanceissues in the
provisional draft Annual Governance Statement and providingdetailed updates to risk positionsinthe
Corporate Risk Register. Three audits returning partial assuranceratings werereported to Committee
duringthe year and there were some minor fraudinvestigations, butmanagement accepted and responded
to recommendations. Overall, reasonableassuranceis given thatthe Council’s control environment has
remained adequate and effective.

Risk Management

The Corporate Governance Committee has a responsibility to ensure that an effective risk management
systemisinplace.Risk management is aboutidentifyingand managingrisks effectively, helpingto improve
performance and aid decision makingrelatingto the development of services and the transformation of
the wider organisation. Regular reports and presentations on specific strategic and corporaterisks to the
Council areprovided to the Corporate Governance Committee.
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The Council’s Risk Management Policy and Strategy (which providethe framework within whichrisks can
be managed) were reviewed, revised, and approved by the County Council in February 2023.

Overview and Scrutiny

The cross-party overview and scrutiny function monitors the County Council’s financial performanceand
performance againsttargets inthe Strategic Plan and other related plans onaregular basis. This workis carried
out by the Scrutiny Commission and five Overview and Scrutiny Committees which each has responsibility for
scrutiny of a particular servicearea of the Council.

The key areas of activity undertaken by the Scrutiny Commission and the five service-related Overview and
Scrutiny Committees duringthe year included: -

° Provisional Revenue and Capital Outturn 2021-22
° The budget and regular Medium Term Financial Strategy performance monitoring updates
. Annual Reports for 2021-22 on the Commercial Strategy, Corporate Complaints and Compliments,

Corporate Delivery and Performance Compendium, the work and performance of the Leicester and
Leicestershire Enterprise Partnership and East Midlands Shared Services.

o Leicestershire County Council Community Safety Strategy 2022-26

° Leicestershire Domestic Abuse Reduction Strategy 2022-25

. Corporate Asset Investment Fund Performance for 2021-22 and the Strategy for 2023 - 27
o Corporate Asset Management Plan2022-26

. SEND Services, SEND Transportand related Finance Pressures

o School admissions

o Corporate Parenting

. Child Criminal Exploitation

° Learning Disability Employment Performance

. Commissioningand Procurement of Homecare Services and the Procurement of Community Life Choices
. Leicester, Leicestershireand Rutland Carers Strategy 2022-25

o Net Zero

° Tree Management and Water Management performance and challenges

° Healthy Child Programme

. Highways and Transport Cabinet Works Programme

. North and Eastern Melton Mowbray Distributor Road CostImplications

. Leicestershire Highway Design Guide Refresh

o Primary Health Care pressures post Covid-19

o Urgent and Emergency Care performance

o Cancer Performance

The challenge provided by the overview and scrutiny function has continued to be crucialin shaping Council
policy and helping to ensure the delivery of efficient, high-quality services. An annual report which summarises
the work undertaken during2022/23 will be published in summer 2023.

Corporate Governance Committee

The Corporate Governance Committee is responsiblefor promotingand maintaining high standards of
corporate governance withinthe Council and receives reports and presentations that deal with issues thatare
paramount to good governance.

Withregard to the promotion and maintenance of high standards of conduct by members and co-opted
members within the County Council, the decisions and minutes of the Member Conduct Panel which meets as

required areavailableon the internet.

The Monitoring Officer submits anannual report to the Corporate Governance Committee on the operation of
the Members’ Code of Conduct and arrangements for dealing with complaints.
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SincelJuly 2021 there have been eight complaints (relatingto six members) received by the Monitoring Officer
under the Members' Code of Conduct. These complaints were resolved as set out below:

3 complaints (2 inrelation to one member from the same complainant) were considered to be outside
of the scope of the Code;

2 complaints did not meet the threshold for further investigationas setout in the scope of the code of
conduct

2 complaints were resolved informally

1 complaintwas considered by the Member Conduct Panel and was subjectto anindependent
investigation following which there was no further actioninlightof a findingthat there had been no
breach of the Code.

During2022/23 the Committee has provided assurancethat: anadequate risk management framework isin
place; the Council’s performanceis properly monitored; and that there is proper oversight of the financial
reporting processes. The table below provides summary information of other key business considered by this
Committee during2022/23 to supportthe above.

Quarterly Risk Management Updates and the Risk Management Policy & Strategy

Indicative External AuditPlanand Audit Risk Assessment2021/22), External Audit of Statement of Accounts,
Pension Fund Accounts and Annual Governance Statement 2021/22; External Audit Plan2022/23

Quarterly Treasury Management updates, Changes to Annual Investment Strategy to add to list of

Acceptable Investments, Treasury Management Strategy Statement and Annual Investment Strategy
2023/24

Proposed amendments to the Contract Procedure Rules, and contract exceptions for the period 1 July 2021
to 30June 2022

Internal Audit Service progress reports including status of High Importance recommendations; planning for
an External Quality Assessment

East Midlands Shared Service— Internal Audit work undertaken by Nottingham City Council
Local Code of Corporate Governance
Governance Arrangements for External Bodies
Government driven developments inlocal (external)auditarrangements and update reports
Revised Members’ Planning Code of Good Practice.
CIPFA Financial Management Code 2021/22
CIPFA Audit Committee Guidance
Annual Reports:
o Treasury Management Annual Report 2021/22
o Internal Audit Service Annual Report 2021/22 includingan opinion on the control environment
o Annual Report on the Operation of the Members’ Code of Conduct 2021/22
o Clinical Governance Annual Report 2021/22

o Local Government and Social Care Ombudsman Annual Review 2021/22 and Update on Corporate
Complaints and Freedom of Information Requests

o Resilienceand Business Continuity Annual Update
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O Regulation of Investigatory Powers Act 2000 (RIPA) and Investigatory Powers Act 2016 for the
period 1 Januaryto 31 December 2022

At its meeting in November 2022, the Committee considered revised membership and terms of reference for
the Corporate Governance Committee contained in Part2 and Part 3 of the Council’s Constitution respectively.
It specifically supported proposalsto appointment up to two Independent Members to the Committee in
accordancewith CIPFA best practiceguidance. This was subsequently supported by the Constitution
Committee andapproved by the County Council in December 2022.An appointment process began in March
with an aimto interview and appointtwo Independent Members in May 2023, such appointments being
subjectto approval by the County Council atits meeting inJuly2023.

The Chief Financial Officer (CFO)

The Director of Corporate Resources undertakes the statutory role of the Chief Financial Officer (CFO) for the
Council.The CFO conforms to the governance requirements and core responsibilities of two CIPFA Statements
on the Role of the Chief Financial Officer;in Local Government (2016) and inthe Local Government Pension
Scheme (2014).The CFO is a key member of the Corporate Management Team andis ableto bringinfluenceto
bear on all material business decisions, ensuringthatimmediate and long-term implications, opportunities,and
risks,arefully considered andinalignment with the MTFS and other corporate strategies.The CFO is aware of,
and committed to, the five key principles thatunderpin the role of the CFO and has completed anassurance
statement that provides evidence againstcoreactivities which strengthen governance and financial
management across the Council.

The Financial Management Code

The CIPFA Financial Management Code translates the principles of good financial management into seven
Financial Management Standards. These standards address theaspects of an authority’s operations and activities
that must function effectively if financial management is to be undertaken robustly and financial sustainability is
to be achieved.

InJanuary 2023, the Council completed a self-assessment of its compliance with the requirements of the
Financial Management Code for 2021-22.The assessmentshowed that the County Council met the requirements
of the Code with some small improvements required. The Internal Audit Service undertook a high-level review of
the self-assessmentagainstthe Code, and a copy of the assessmentwas reported to the Corporate Governance
Committee inJanuary 2023.

Local (External) Audit

The Council’s local (external) auditors, Grant Thornton LLP, presented the findings fromtheir planned audit
work to ‘those charged with governance’ at the Corporate Governance Committee on 16 March 2023.

The Auditor’'s Annual Report (AAR)

The Auditor's Annual Report (AAR) is a detailed review of the value for money (VfM) arrangements atthe
Council.The report covered fiveareas.These were financial sustainability; governance; improving economy,
efficiency, and effectiveness, the opinion on the financial statements and pension fund arrangements.
Overall, the auditor’s report was very positive. The external auditor concluded that the Council has a good
trackrecord of soundfinancial management, had appropriatearrangements in placeto manage the financial
resiliencerisks, has a clear and documented governance framework in placeanda well-developed
performance management framework. No significantweaknesses were reported.

Opinion on the Financial Statements

The auditor gave an ‘unqualified’ opinion onthe 2021/22 financial statements for the County Council andits
Pension Fund on 16 March 2023 meaning that the external auditor is satisfied thatthe financial statements
present a true and fair view.
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Annual Audit Plan for the 2022/23 Accounts

Informingthe Audit Risk Assessmentand Audit Plan was reported to Corporate Governance Committee atits
meeting on 26 May 2023.

The Monitoring Officer

The Director of Law & Governance undertakes the statutory role of Monitoring Officer (MO) for the Council.The
MO has responsibility for:

. ensuringthat decisions taken comply with all necessary statutory requirements and are lawful. Where in
the opinion of the MO any decision or proposal islikely to be unlawful and lead to maladministration,
he/she shalladvisethe Council and/or Executive accordingly,

. ensuringthat decisions taken arein accordancewith the Council’s budget andits Policy Framework,

. providingadviceon the scope of powers and authority to take decisions.

Indischargingthis role, the MO is supported by the Deputy Monitoring Officer and officers within the Legal and
Democratic Services Teams.

Senior Information Risk Owner

The AssistantDirector - Corporate Services undertakes the role of Senior Information Risk Owner (SIRO) for the
Council.The SIRO takes overall ownership of the Council’s approach to handlinginformation risk. Sound
governance isinplace, with regular update and exception reports to the Corporate Management Team. The
responsibilities of a SIRO include:

. owning the Council’s policies, procedures, and processes around information risk, ensuring they are
implemented consistently across the Council.

. ensuringcompliancewith all other policies and procedures relating toinformation and data.

. actingas a championon informationriskand reportto Chief Officers on the effectiveness of risk
management.

. leading and fosteringa culturethat values, protects, and uses information for the success of the Council
and benefit of our citizens.

. ensuringthatinformation owners understand their roles.

. ensuringthat the Council has a planto monitor and improve information and data governance.

. maintaining expertisein Data Protection and other legislation thatimpacton Informationand Data

Governance; and
° owningthe Council’sinformation incident management framework

Commercial and Collaborative Arrangements

Commercial

ESPO is constituted as a jointcommittee (of six localauthorities) setupto providea comprehensive
professional purchasingserviceto public sector bodies. Itis overseen by a Management Committee which
has overall strategic responsibility for ESPO. At its meeting on 22 March 2023, the Committee approved
changes to the Financeand Audit Subcommittee (the Subcommittee) Terms of Reference, andthe Risk
Management Policy which provided delegated powers over Internal Audit, External Audit, Risk
Management, and the Annual Governance Statements. Internal auditis undertaken by the Council’s
Internal Audit & AssuranceServiceas partof the servicingagreement. Like the County Council, the HolAS
presents anannual report to the Subcommittee atits meeting in October. The annual reportincorporates
the annual internal audit opinion, which for 2022-23 was as follows:

No significantgovernance, risk management orinternal control failings have come to the HolAS’ attention
therefore substantialassuranceis giventhatESPQ’s control environment overall has remained adequate
and effective. ESPO Trading Ltd ESPO’s power to trade is restricted to a limited number of public bodies.
The establishmentof a trading company allows ESPO (Trading) to trade with other organisations—e.g. Care
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Homes, Nurseries, Housing Associations, Charities and Voluntary Organisations. The Tradingis governed
under the Companies Act 2006, its Articles of Association and Shareholder Agreement.

Eduzone is a privatelimited company that supplies Early Years educational products and Early Years
furniture to schools, nurseries, and child minders. ESPO acquired the company following the necessary due
diligencein 2018. Eduzone has now been incorporated into ESPO TradingLimited.

The Investing in Leicestershire Programme (formerly the Corporate Asset Investment Fund (CAIF) Strategy
2022/2026) guides the Council’s investments in assets notdirectly used for the delivery of its services, but
which contribute to the outcomes of the Council’s Strategic Plan and financial return. The Strategy requires
reporting to various member bodies. Reporting on the financial performanceis includedinthe budget
monitoring reports on a quarterly basis. The CAIF Annual Report for 2021/22 was received by the Scrutiny
Commissionon 7 September 2022.The CAIF Strategy has been revised to be compliantwith the updated
CIPFA Code from 2023/24. Inlight of the CIPFA Code, the County Council will continueto ensure thatitwill
only undertake investments where they are directly and primarily related to the functions of the authority
and where anyfinancial returns areeither related to the financial viability of the projectin question or
otherwise incidental to the primary purpose. This includes servicedelivery, housing,and regeneration of
areas,which addresses areas of economic or social marketfailureand should only be made within the
Council’s area of economic influence. Renewable energy generation is alsoincluded as a reductionin carbon
emissions isa stated aim of the County Council as partofits Declaration of a Climate emergency in May
2019.

The Council alsohasa tradingarm Leicestershire Traded Services (LTS), which sits within the Corporate
Resources Department. Its activities are overseen by an Officer Board. The quarterlyfinancialand
performance reports includethe performance of the LTS as partof the Corporate Resources Department
andthese reports are considered by various member bodies. The Annual Report on the Commercial
Strategy 2021/22 was received by the Cabinet on 24 June 2022.

Collaborative

East Midlands Shared Service (EMSS)

EMSS is constituted under Joint Committee arrangements to process payroll/HRand accounts payableand
accounts receivabletransactions for Leicestershire County Council and Nottingham City Council. The internal
auditof EMSS is undertaken by Nottingham City Council.

At the Joint Committee on 18 March 2024, it was reported that, ‘On the basis of auditwork undertaken during
the 2022-23 financial year, the Head of Internal Audit (HolA) at Nottingham City Council concludes thata
“limited” level of assurancecan be given thatinternal control systems are operating effectively within EMSS and
that no significantissues had been discovered. Whilstthe direction of travel for the four audits, from 2021/22 to
22/23 has varied, the overall movement over the yearis not sufficientto warranta “moderate” level of
assurance. Thatsaid, we would fully expect the opinion to improve for 2023/24’.

The position with Nottingham City Council issuinga s114 noticeand the appointment of Government
Commissioners is being monitored.

Local Pension Fund

Leicestershire County Council is a schememanager as defined under the Public Service Pensions Act2013
andany associated legislation. The County Council has delegated the responsibility for decisions relatingto
the investment of the Fund’s assets to the Local Pension Committee. Membership consists of Councillors
from the County, City and District Council together with one university representative and non-voting
employee representatives.
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The Local Pension Committee’s principleaimis to consider pensions matters with a view to safeguarding
the interests of all Fund members. The Members who siton the Committee acton behalf of the
beneficiaries of the LGPS and inthis way have a similarroleto trustees in primarily protecting the benefits
of the LGPS members, overseeing the direction of investments and monitoringliabilities.

On 3 March 2023, the Local Pension Committee approved a Net Zero Climate Strategy.

The Local Government Pension Scheme (LGPS) Regulations requirethat Leicestershire County Council inits
capacityas Administering Authority establishes a Local Pension Board. The purpose of the Board is toassist
the Authority in securingcompliancewith the Regulations, other legislationrelating to the governance and
administration of the LGPS, the requirements imposed by the Pension Regulatorin relation tothe LGPS and
to ensure the effective and efficient governance and administration of the LGPS.

The Local Pension Board comprises of employer representatives who are all elected members from the
County Council and Leicester City Council and employee representatives. The Administering Authority
retains ultimateresponsibility for the administration and governance of the Scheme.

Local Government Pension Scheme (LGPS) - Central Pool.

The LGPS Central pooledinvestment arrangements became operational on 1 April 2018. A range of collaborative
governance vehicles has been established.

The Council is jointowner of LGPS Central Limited which manages the pooled assets of eight Midlands -based
local government pension schemes, including Leicestershire. LGPS Central Limited is authorised and regulated by
the Financial Conduct Authority as anassetmanager and operator of alternativeinvestment funds. It has
combined assets of approximately £30bn which represents the assets of over 2,000 employing bodies which help
to pay for the costs of pensions when they became payable.

The Company aims to use the combined buying power of its Partner Funds to reduce costs, improve investment
returns and widen the range of availableassetclasses forinvestment for the benefit of local government
pensioners, employees, and employers.

Member representatives of each of the funds siton the LGPS Central Joint Committee which provides oversight
of the delivery of the objectives of the pool, the delivery of clientservice, the deliveryagainst the LGPS central
business caseand to deal with common investor issues. The jointcommittee provides assistance, guidance,and
recommendations to the individual councils, takinginto consideration the conflictingdemands and interests of
the participants withinthepool.The jointcommittee does not have delegated authority to make binding
decisions on behalf of the participating councils.

An annual updateon Internal Audit arrangements was provided to the Council’s Local Pension Boardin April
2023.This included a summary of work completed during2022/2023 and work planned for 2023/2024.The
internal auditfunctions of the eight LGPS owners have formed an Internal Audit Working Group (IAWG) and
agreed a four-year internal auditplan of work from 2019/20to 2022/23. Audits for the final year of the four-year
plan,i.e. 2022/23 audits were assigned to Cheshire West & Chester (Governance) and Derbyshire County Council
(Investments). Following completion of these, the four-year cyclewill re-start.

In May 2023, the Chief Executive Officer resigned. The Deputy Chief Executive Officer will become Interim
CEO while the Board searches for a permanent successor.

Active Together

The Director of Public Health represents the Council and is Chairofthe Active Together Board of non-executive
directors.There are defined terms of reference which set out the governance arrangements and key tasks of the
Board. Underneath the Board is a number of subgroups (drawn from the Board and co-opted others) to provide
additional scrutiny of areas of the business.
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One of those sub-groups inthe ‘Business, Oversightand Audit’ Committee which oversees business planning,
financialandrisk reporting,and reports to the Board quarterly. The AssistantDirector - Deliveryin Public Health
is a member of this committee.

Leicester and Leicestershire Enterprise Partnership (LLEP)
The LLEP is a privatecompany limited by guarantee (Company No: 11932434).

LEPs are non-statutory bodies and as such requirean Accountable Body to manage funding from Government.

Leicester City Council is the Accountable Body to the LLEP.

The Accountable Body, through its Section 151 Officer, is responsiblefor ensuringthatstatutory requirements

are met in resourceallocation decisions and thatthe publicinterestis protected. It provides financial and legal
supportand takes the ultimate legal and financial responsibility for the LLEP’s activities.

Mr P Bedford CC represents Leicestershire County Council onthe LLEP Board of Directors.

In October 2023, the LLEP held its AGM and produced its Annual Report 2022/2023.In September 2021 it
reviewed its Local Assurance Framework to ensure compliancewith a refreshed National Assurance Framework.

The Chief Executive leftin March 2022 and the rolewas held vacantpending greater clarity on the future
roleof the LLEP. The new CEO was appointed in March 2023 and took up postin May 2023.

At the end of March 2022, the Government issued guidanceon integrating Local Enterprise Partnerships into
local democratic institutions which it had introduced in its Levelling Up White Paper and has subsequently
consulted stakeholders on ending Government fundingto LEPs from the end of March 2024. The decision to
end funding was confirmed by the Government in August 2023 and a Transition Board, set up by the LLEP and
includinga Council officer, is overseeing the transfer of LLEP functions and funds on 1/4/24 to the two upper
tier local authorities (Leicester City Council and the County Council)who are consideringfuture governance
and business voice arrangements together with delivery priorities. It has been agreed that Leicester City
Council will continue as the accountable body. Discussions are also underway to include at a later date
Rutland Council inthe new arrangements.

The Chair of the Board of Directors stepped down in April 2022, the two vice-chairs areactingas Co-Chairs
and a recruitment process for a new chairis currently underway.

The 2021/22 Annual Performance Review was assessed by the Department for Levelling Up, Housingand
Communities (DLUHC). The DLUHC assessmentfound that the Government’s expectation for governance and
Strategic Impacthad been met. However, concerns were identified in Delivery, essentially around delays to
schemes allocated funding from the Getting Building Fund. These schemes continue to be deliveredin2022/23.

Integrated Care Systems (ICS) & Integrated Care Partnership (ICP)

ICSs are partnerships thatbringtogether NHS organisations, and upper tier local authoritiesacross NHS footprint
of Leicester, Leicestershire, and Rutland (LLR).

The ICP is a statutory committee jointly formed between the Integrated Care Board (ICB) and all upper-tier local
authorities thatfall withinthe ICS area. LCC membership includes the Lead member for Health and Wellbeing,
the Director of Public Health, the Director of Adult Social Services and the Director of Childrenand Family
Services.

The ICP is responsiblefor producinganintegrated carestrategy on how to meet the health and wellbeing needs
of the populationinthe ICSarea.

The ICBis alsoa statutory bodyand is a successor to the 3 Clinical Commissioning Groups (CCGs). The Director of

Public Health represents LCC on the ICB, though inan ex officio capacity notas a representative of the Council as
a decision-making body, inaccordancewith NHS requirements.
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InJune 2023, the Government published a responseto the House of Commons Health and Social Care
Committee’s report on 'lCSs:autonomy and accountability’. As a resultitis likely thatthe boundaries of the LLR
ICS may changeina ‘strategic alliance’ with a neighbouring area.

Leicestershire Health and Wellbeing Board

Health and Wellbeing Board acts as a forum in which key leaders from the local health and caresystem work
together to improve the health and wellbeing of the local populationand plan howto tackleinequalities in
health. This is bestachieved by a range of organisations workingtogether and as a result, the Leicestershire
Health and Wellbeing Board brings together key organisations:the ICB, District Representatives, NHS England,
University Hospitals of Leicester NHS Trust, Leicestershire Partnership NHS Trust, Leicestershire Police, Office of
the Policeand Crime Commissioner and Healthwatch to ensure patients and service users voices areheard. The
Health and WellbeingBoardis chaired by the Council’s cabinet lead for Health and the other Council
representatives are:

. Lead Members for Adult Social Care & Children & Young People
. The Chief Executive
° The Directors of Public Health, Adults & Communities and Children & Family Services

The Health and Wellbeing Board leads and directs work to improve the health and wellbeing of the population of
Leicestershirethrough the development of improved and integrated health and social careservices by: -

. Identifying needs and priorities across Leicestershire (the Place), and publishingand refreshing the
LeicestershireJoint Strategic Needs Assessment (JSNA) and Pharmaceutical Needs Assessment so that
future commissioning/policy decisions and priorities arebased on evidence.

. Preparingand publishinga JointHealth and Wellbeing Strategy and Plan on behalf of the County Council
andits partner clinical commissioning group(s) sothatwork is done across the Placeto meet the needs
identified inthe JSNA ina co-ordinated, planned,and measurableway

. In conjunction with all partners,communicatingand engaging with local peoplein how they canachieve
the best possiblequality of lifeand be supported to exercise choiceand control over their personal health
and wellbeing

. Approving the Better Care Fund (BCF) Planincludinga pooled budget used to transformlocal services, so
people are provided with better integrated careand supporttogether with proposalsforits
implementation

. Havingoversight of the use of relevant public sector resources to identify opportunities for the further
integration of health and social careservices within the Place.

The BCF is reported quarterly regionally and nationally via NHS England (NHSE) and the Local Government
Association (LGA) via a nationally prescribed template which is approved quarterly by the Board, a process
supported operationally by the Integration Executive. The annual BCF plan is also submitted via NHSE/LGA
regionally and nationally and is subject to a prescribed national assurance process against a number of national
conditions, metrics,and financial rules.

The 2022/23 BCF Policy Framework was published in July 2022 and updated in November 2022.

The annual submission for the 2022/23 financial year was approved by the Health and Wellbeing Board at its
meeting on 1 December 2022, subsequent to its submission to NHS England which was done using the Chief
Executive’s delegated powers in order to meet the deadline submission date of 26 September 2022 (The
Integration Executive, a subgroup of the Health and Wellbeing Board with responsibility for the day to day delivery
of the BCF, considered the draft BCF Plan 2022/23 at its meeting on the 6 September 2022 and supported its
contents). The completed year end BCF 2021-22 template, which demonstrates progress againstintegration
priorities and BCF delivery, was approved for submission to NHS England by the Health and Wellbeing Board at its
meeting on 26 May 2022. The work of the Health and WellbeingBoard is reported in anannual reportandis also
reported inthe annual reports of Clinical Commissioning Groups (CCGS).

128



143

East Midlands Freeport

Freeports area flagship Government programme that will play animportantpartinthe UK’s post-COVID economic
recovery and contribute to realisingthelevellingup agenda, bringingjobs, investment, and prosperity to some of
the most deprived communities, with targeted and effective support. The East Midlands Freeport (EMF) is the UK’s
only inland Freeport and features three main ‘tax sites’ straddling three East Midlands counties. The EMF brings
together a mix of industries, businesses, and other collaborating partners, combining public and private sector
expertise.

Work to develop a Business Case beganin 2021 and tax site designation was awarded by HM Treasury in March
2022. The Full Business Case was submitted to Government in mid-April 2022 and full designation has been
approved. The Cabinet approved the County Council becoming a member of the newly incorporated Freeport
Company, with the Leader as a nominated member to serve on the Board (now Mr Breckon), and to continue the
role of lead authority and accountable body for the Freeport. In June 2022, a non-executive Chair of Board was
appointed. A Chief Executive started in post in March 2023 and has put together a small team to implement
delivery of the Business Plan objectives of the Freeport (EMF), working with the Chair and Board and co-ordinating
with stakeholders, business partners and Government Departments to ensure the EMF fulfils its ambitions and
obligations.

East Midlands Development Company (DevCo)

The County Council is a Board member of the DevCo, a company limited by guarantee from April 2021. Its
ambitionis to be a locally led urban development corporation or a mayoral development corporation, for
which there is provisioninthe Levelling Up and Regeneration Act. The County Council is one of five member
authorities / owners of the DevCo. Separately, the County Council is concerned to ensure that the DevCo’s
Members’ Agreement and Grant Agreement are correctly followed, which it does not believe has been the
case.Inthat connection, exempt reports have been made to the Cabinet (Mayand September 2022 and June
2023) whilethe Council’s membership has been paused.The Council isstill waiting for a satisfactory response
to its concerns which have been fully set out to the DevCo. The Council’s concerns have been noted by our
external auditor. The DevCo does not have an accountablebody. The DevCo Boardis now considering options
as to its future, including disbandment or hibernation until the outcome of the ‘East Midlands’ mayoral
election in May 2024 is known.

Environmental & Waste Collaborations

The County Council through the Environment and TransportDepartment is partnerina number of environment
and waste collaborations and acts as Key Partnerin

. Charnwood Forest Regional ParkBoard - a partnership of local authorities, agencies, user groups andland
management organisations, workingto manage and promote the unique cultural and heritage features of
the area;

. Charnwood Forest Landscape Partnership Scheme Steering Group - an officer led group that oversees the
delivery of the National Lottery Heritage Fund funded LandscapePartnership Scheme;

. Air Quality and Health Partnership - Led by Public Health and involvingall districts. Responsible for
overseeing delivery of the Action Plantoaddress air quality issues across the county;

D Local Nature Recovery Strategy Steering Group - an officer led group with Leicestershire County Council

actingas the ‘responsibleauthority for the development of a Local Nature Recovery Strategy for
Leicestershire, Leicester and Rutland as partof a new statutory duty set out inthe Environment Act 2021

Enhanced Bus Partnership

This is a partnership between the County Council and the bus operators and is enabled by the 2017 Bus Services
Act and TransportAct 2000, so has a legal status, but is not mandatory. Local authorities which wanted to bid for
funding had to establish a partnership and therefore every top tier authority has one (unless they have bus
franchising).
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Action Taken on Governance Issues Reported in the 2021/22

AGS

The Council has defined a 'significantgovernanceissue'as one thatis intended to reflect something that has
happened inthe year, or whichis currently being experienced and meeting any of the followingcriteria:
A. The issuehas seriously prejudiced or prevented achievement of a principal objective of the authority;
B. The issuehas resultedina need to seek additional fundingtoallowitto be resolved or hasresultedin
significantdiversion of resources fromanother aspect of the business;

C. The issuehas led to a material impactonthe accounts;

D. Corporate Governance Committee has advisedthatthe issueshould beconsidered as a 'significant'

issuefor reporting inthe AGS;

E. The Head of Internal Audit Service has reported on the issueas significant, for reportinginthe Annual
Governance Statement, inthe annual opinionontheinternal control environment;
F. The issue, orits impact, has attracted significant publicinterestor has seriously damaged the reputation

of the organisation;

G.The issuehas resultedin formal action beingtaken by the Chief Financial Officer and/or Monitoring

Officer;
H. The issuehas resultedina Legal breach;
I. The issue prompts intervention from a regulator.

Progress that has been made in dealing with the governance issues thatwere identified inthe 2021/22 final

AGS are detailed below:

Issue /Area for Improvement (AGS) 2021/22

Date
SEN Budget Deficit Director of .
Children & Family
The High Needs Block of the Dedicated Services °

Schools Grantremains under significant
pressurewith an in-year deficitof £10.9m
for 2022/23 and a cumulative deficit of
£39.7m whichis forecastto increase
significantlyin futureyears. Increasein
demand is alsoresultingin higher
expenditure on the SEND home to school
transportbudget. The Authority is also
experiencingan increasing number of
appeals and complaints demand for .
Leicestershireis participatingin the

Department for Education’s Delivering

Better Valuein SEND programme.

The Authority has entered into a Strategic

Partner contractwith Newton Europe to

deliver the Transforming SEND and Inclusion

in Leicestershire (TSIL) programme to create

a sustainable SEND system and will align

with the DBV programme providing

expertise on SEND issues.

Review April 2023

Firs Farm —environmental damage and Director of °
rectification Corporate
Resources

A farm estate owned and let by the Council

where large amounts of potentially Review April 2023

Lead Officer and p4oress during 2022/23

2022/23 inyear deficitreduced to £6.7m
with a cumulative deficitof £35.5m.

The Department for Education, through
the Delivering Better Value in SEND
programme has provided funding of £1m
to assistindeliveringsustainablechangein
SEN provision.

The Authority continues to work with
Newton Europe indeliveringthe TSIL
programme.

Updates on the issuearereceived by the
Corporate Governance Committee within
the Risk Management Update reports

Followingthe evaluation of tenders, a
contractwas awarded to a leading
remediation specialistcompanyata cost of
justover £2.1m plus a £50k contingency to
deal with the slurry piton site. It is hoped
that this latter amount will not be needed
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Issue /Area for Inprovement (AGS) 2021/22 Lead Officer and pqo 655 during 2022/23

Date

hazardous waste had been allegedlyleftby a after testing is carried out. The evaluation

former tenant. panel was satisfied the tender meets the

A remediation strategy for the farm has Council’s requirements. The Environment

been agreed with the Environment Agency. Agency has been consulted throughout the

The Council has tendered for the removal process.

and proper disposal of the waste on the farm e Update: January 2024.Contracted works

and reinstatement of the farmland which on siteare largely complete, with onlya

couldincur costs of over £2.4m. small volume of waste awaiting

The Council’s insurance does not cover the Environment Agency problematic waste

type of environmental or illegal waste approval.The clearanceand remediation

disposalundertaken on the farm. contracthas come inon budget. The
Environment Agency criminal investigation
continues. Awaiting clarification fromthe
Animal and PlantHealth Agency (APHA) on
slurry pitwaste. The farmlandis currently
being marketed for rental for an initial two
year tenancy.

Early Years Budget Deficit Director of e The 2023/24 upliftfor providers has been

Children & Family set so that the deficitwill begradually

A £4.2m deficiton the Early Years’ budget Services reduced over 4 years

was identified at the end of the 2021/22 e All providers who had an initial payment

financialyear duein part to errors in the Review April 2023 for the Springterm 2023 returned their

completion of the Council’s annual Early January Census data which was verified

Years census)since2020 leadingto reduced across services

grant payment to the Council. e Before the January data was submitted all
data was cross referenced to check for

Representations with the DfE to have the anomalies and errors

census corrected have proven unsuccessful, e An Early Years Steering Group has been

and alternativeplans are being put into implemented, with appropriate

placeto recover the deficit. Internal Audit representation from CFS/Corporate

work identified a number of lessons learned FinanceandTU to look atan ‘asis’and ‘to

and recommendations for process be’ process with the intention to further

improvement will beshared with strengthen the process

management for consideration and

implementation.

Local Government & Social Care Director of Adults e All recommendations completed and

Ombudsman (LGSCO) report — Social Care & Communities reported to LGSCO in February 2023.

Assessments e Notification received from LGSCO that they

March 2023 were satisfied with response.

In September 2022, the Local Government
and Social Care Ombudsman (LGSCO) issued
areport followingits investigationinto a
complaintthat the Council hadfailed to
properly undertake a social careassessment
and provide supportfor eligible care needs.
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Significant Governance Issues Arising During 2022/23

This Annual Governance Statement (AGS) identifies thatthe Council has effective arrangements in place, but that
its officers recognisethe need to continuouslyreview, adaptand develop governance arrangements to meet the
changing needs of the organisation. Whilstthe Council has identified areas to be developed (Annex), itis
important to recognisethat there are two significant matters set out inthe table below.

Significant Governance Issue 2022/23 Lead Officer and Date
School Admissions Director of Children & Family
Services

LCC has a duty to providedetails of school places allocated on “National Offer Day”
(March 1st for primary to secondary transfers). This year was the firsttime this IssueClosed
process was undertaken with the new Synergy system, which holds and processes
the applicationsin conjunction with a parentportal. There were some difficulties in
establishinga new process with this system. Parents were told, as in previous
years, that offer information would be available from midnight. As a resultof some
technical configuration issues theinformation was not availableon the portal.In
addition to this, for a shortperiod the portal was also unavailable. On the morning
of 1st March, parents were sent a letter with the details of school place offer. Apart
from a very small number of parents, where information had not been exchanged
with a neighbouring authority all parents received their offers on March 1st,
however the standard of communication did not meet expectations.

The next phasetransfer round (firsttime primary applications) ran smoothly. A
longer-term clear process map with monitoringand checkpoints was executed and
additional specialistITsupport was employed.

SEND OfSTED re-visit Director of Children & Family
Services

Ofsted and CQC undertook the LeicestershirelLocal Area SEND Inspectionin

February 2020 and found a number of strengths and areas for improvement, with January 2024

two areas identified within a Written Statement of Action. These two areas related

to the lack of an overall SEND Commissioning Strategy across the partnership and

the need to improve the Quality of EHC Plans.

The SEND reinspection took placefrom 14 to 16 November 2022 and focused only
on the two areas identified for the Written Statement of Action. The report, dated
13 December 2022, found that sufficient progress had been made with regards to
Joint Commissioning Strategy for SEND but that further progress is needed
regardingthe Quality of EHC Plans.The inspection team (again made up of Ofsted
and CQQC) did find that improvements had been made in newer plans but were
concerned that too many plans remained inthe pre-2020 format and also that
timeliness for the completion of plans had slipped, affecting parental confidencein
the system.

Followingthe outcome of the revisitthe Local Area (Local Authority and the
Integrated Care Board (ICB) produce an Accelerated Progress Plan (APP)to set out
how improvements in quality of education health and care plans would be made.
The APP focusses upon three areas identified as criticalinimprovingthe quality of
EHC Plans;processes around initial EHC Needs Assessment, processes around
Annual Reviews and our Quality Assurance/Audit Framework. Progress onthe APP
is monitored by senior health and LA managers on a weekly basis, with a formal
meeting with the, SEND Hub, Health and DFE on a bi-monthly basis. Formal
monitoring has taken placeby the DfE at 6 monthly periods.
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Progress againstthe actions inthe plan has been good, with a clear focus on
improvingthe quality of education health and care plans. Timeliness of completing
EHCP remains a significantchallengeand remains below the target of 20 weeks.
Work continues to take placeinthe Department to improve timeliness with a
particularfocus onincreasing Educational Psychologist availability to complete the
advice partof the EHCP assessment.

The APP is overseen by the SEND and Inclusion Board whichis a multi-agency
partnership thatreports to the Health and Wellbeing Board.

The Council has identified areas to be developed which arereported in the Annex to the AGS.

The Code of Practiceon Local Authority Accounting inthe UK 2022/23, requires that significantevents or
developments relatingto the governance system that occurred between the BalanceSheet date, (31 March),and
the date on which the Statement of Accounts will besigned by the responsiblefinancial officer,arereported. The
draft AGS was updated inlinewith the Code of Practice.

Future Challenges

Significantchallenges faced by the Council such as the continuing economic and health and wellbeing impacts of
covid-19, continuing funding shortfalls, driving further Health and Social Careintegration, social carereformetc
are detailed within the Corporate Risk Register, which is regularly reviewed by the Corporate Management Team
and presented to the Corporate Governance Committee (the Committee). Managingthese risks adequately will
be anintegral partof both strategic and operational planning; and the dayto dayrunning, monitoring,and
maintainingthe Council. The most recent update of the Corporate Risk Register was received by the Committee
atits meeting on 27 January 2023.

Additional challenges continueto emerge, and key areas in particularare:

Financial Sustainability

There is a continued need for additional Local Government funding, that the spendingreview in2021 did not
adequately address. Servicedemand pressures continueto be feltinsocial careand SEND, which areonly
partially met by Council Taxincreases and aredrivingtherequirement for savings.Thelevel of growth has taken
a step higher followingthe coronavirus pandemic and the Council is dependent upon continued additional Health
fundingto manage.

National reforms are being developed for SEN andsocial care;the information provided to date is raising
concerns that there is areal risk of a material negativefinancialimpact.

All services arefacingunprecedented inflationary pressurereflecting the wider economy. The council’s finances
are particularly sensitivetoincreases in the National Living Wage, which is expected to be drivensignificantly
higher by greater wage growth inthe wider economy. The impacton the County Council’s budget will be
profound. The budget gapin 2023/24 is expected to grow from a manageable £8m at the time the MTFS was
approved in Februaryto c£12m based on current inflation projections, despiteassuming the maximum council
Tax increase. Over the life of the MTFS the gap couldincrease toover £80m unless mitigation actionsaretaken.
These estimates will become quickly out of date if the trend of worsening economic news does not stop.

Unless there is a significant change in Government’s stance on funding itis highly likely that reserves will be
required to balance the budget in both 2023/24 and 2024/25, this is clearly not a sustainable position. The
County Council will need to identify mitigations that allow2025/26 to be balanced without the use of reserves.
This includes a reinforcement of existing financial control measures and the introduction of new ones to ensure
a tight focus on eliminating non-essential spend.
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Covid-19 Public Inquiry

In May 2021, the Prime Minister announced that a publicinquiryintothe Covid-19 pandemic would be
established.In March 2022, the appointed Chair of the Inquiry (Baroness Hallett) began a public consultation on
the draft terms of reference. This lasted until April andin May shewrote to the Prime Minister to explain that
she had amended the Terms of Reference to reflect the consultationresponses.Itis notclear how or which local
authorities will beselected to contribute to the Inquiry or whether the County Council may wish to volunteer
material, butifthere is to be involvement then the impactcould be significant. In preparation officers have
begun an exercise to identify documents, records and decisions and impl ementa process to ensure that any
related informationis preserved and readily available.

Assistance with migrants and asylum seekers, and the Homes for
Ukraine Scheme..

With effect from 1stApril 2023 the Home Office implemented a full asylumdispersal model. Under the policyall
local authority areas will be expected to accommodate asylumseekers irrespective of whether they havethe local
services, capacity, or capability to manage dispersal. The Government’s accommodation providers will beseeking
to procure housingacross the country on a pre-approved postcode basis. Any postcode that is determined to be
suitableforasylumaccommodation will then be pre-approved and the grounds upon whichlocal authorities can
object to the housing severely limited. This policy has been adopted to reduce the use and costs of hotel
accommodationand, to ensure that there is not over relianceon existinglocal authority dispersal areas. Funding
will be made availableto local district councilshousingasylumseekers in their areas. No specific fundingis being
made availableto upper tier authorities.

As aresultof the new full dispersal policy the number of asylumseekers arrivinginthe County has increased over

time which has created additional unfunded demand for school places, specialist mental health services, and social
caresupport (adults, children,and SEND).

In addition to dispersed accommodation the Home Office has stood up Contingency Hotel accommodationin the
County in response to small boatcrossings. There are currently four hotels housingasylumseekers, single males
or families, acrossthe County. The use of these hotels has created additional demands on public services including
socialcare,schools,and school transport. The Council receives no funding for the bedspaces at these hotels.

Under the lllegal Migration Actthe Home Secretary is under a duty to set a cap on the number of entrants to the
UK arrivingvia safeand legal routes for humanitarian purposes and for this cap to be defined following consultation
with local government. Consequently, the Home Office undertook a consultation exercise to inform the level at
which the cap on safe and legal routes is set. The purpose of the cap will ensure the UK is able to welcome,
accommodate, integrate, and support those arrivingvia these routes in an orderly and appropriateway. This will
ensure that the UK does not take more refugees than public servicesand communities can copewith. Inresponse
to the consultation exercisethe County Council has formally informed the Home Officethatitis notableto accept
any additional asylum seekers or refugees until further notice. This is due to several factors including the lack of
detail inthe consultation exercise, the impactof current schemes, the lack of directfunding for upper tier services,
andthe capacity and capability of already stretched services to support further families and individuals.

The Council continues to work with partners to administer the Homes for Ukrainescheme which was set up by the
Government inresponsetothe humanitarian crisis in Ukraine. Inaddition toadministeringthe scheme the Council
and partners are subject to resource pressures as sponsor/ guest arrangements breakdown and there is a
subsequent need to either rematch to new sponsors or find alternativeaccommodation. Thescheme also presents
challenges in terms of the allocation of school places.

Recruitment and retention

The current workforce shortageis becoming acute ina number of areas, and with the ongoing impactof the
cost-of-livingcrisis, is likely to get worse. Staffing costs are likely torise, through havingto put market premia /
retention payments in placeto counter what is happeninginthe wider market, and we are only at the early
stages of this year’s national pay negotiations, whilstcosts continueto risesharply. Should the Council be unable
to recruitand/orretainstaffin key areas, itfaces the real risk of being unable to deliver some of its services in
the future. As well as short-term solutions, as an employer, the Council has to develop long term initiatives and
alsotomarket itselfas an employer to best effect.
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10.

CONTEST Strategy

The Council is beginningto planto meet its ‘Prevent’ and ‘Protect’ (Martyn’s Law) duties under ‘CONTEST (the
Government’s Counter-terrorism strategy).

Certification

The Council has been hugely impacted by the coronavirus pandemic. Nevertheless, despite the challenges, the
Council has maintained consistentessential services for residents, whilstadaptingto providealternativevirtual
services wherever possible. The Council’s strong collaborativeapproach has been effective at achievinga unified
response, working with key partners inthe NHS, policeand voluntaryand community sectors.

The Council’s Strategic Plan 2022-26 and Medium-Term Financial Strategy will continueto be reviewed and
updated to assess the medium-term impacts of the pandemic on the Council's financial position.

The Council is satisfied thatappropriate governance arrangements arein placeand continueto be regarded as fit
for purpose.

We proposeover the comingyear to take steps to address any matters to further enhance our governance
arrangements inthese challengingtimes. We are satisfied thatthese steps will address the need forany
developments that were identified in our review of effectiveness and will monitor their implementation and
operation as partof our next annual review.

Furthermore, havingconsidered all the principles of the CIPFA Code of Practice on Managingthe Risk of Fraud

and Corruption, we are satisfied thatthe Council has adopted a responsethat is appropriateforits fraudand
corruptionrisks and commits to maintainits vigilanceto tacklefraud.

John Sinnott Nicholas Rushton
Chief Executive Leader of theCouncil

135



150

Annex
AREAS FORFURTHERDEVELOPMENT IN 2023-24

The Corporate and Departmental AGS self-assessments contained a set of conformance statements under each core
principleandrelated sub-principles as outlined in the CIPFA/SOLACE Delivering Good Governance in Local Government:
Framework (2016). Each conformance statement required a correspondingscoreof1, 2 or 3 to be recorded, based on
the criteria below:

Score Definition Description Evidence (all inclusive)
1 Good Conformance against mostof Many elements of good practiceto a
the areas of the benchmark high standard and high quality.

is good, although there may . .

. Substantial assurancecan begiven that
be minor developments L

. . coverage of the sub-principleis
required but with a
o . operating satisfactorily and extends to
limited impacton the ability to . o

. . most/all services areaswithin the

achievedepartmental and Council

department
objectives. Strategic, reputational
and/or financial risksareminor,
and performance is generally on
track.
2 Some There are some developments Some elements of good practiceto a high
development required againstareas of the standard and high quality.
areas for benchmark and the department .
. . . Moderate assurancecan begiven that
improvement may not deliver some of its own

o coverage of the sub-principleis working
andthe Council objectives unless . . . .
adequately in certainserviceareas, with
these are addressed. The o .
. omissions in others.
management of strategic,

reputational and/or financial risks Proposal/Plansareinplacetoaddress
is inconsistent, and performance is perceived shortfalls

variableacross the department.

3 Key Conformance againstmany/all Few elements of good practiceto a high
development areas of the benchmark is poor standard and high quality.
and many and therefore delivery of
. Coverage of this expectation is omitted
areas for departmental and Council
. TR amongst most areas.
improvement objectives is under threat. There &
are many strategic, reputational Proposal/Plansto address perceived
and/or financialrisksand shortfallsarein early stages of
performance is off track. development

Examples of key actions is summarised in the table below.

Note: some actions are not included in the table as they are already reported through the Corporate Risk Register
(CRR).
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Annual Review of the Effectiveness of the Council's Governance Framework against the CIPFA/SOLACE Delivering
Good Governance in Local Government: Framework (2016)

Core Principles of the Overall

Framework Assessment

Principle A:

Behaving with

integrity,

demonstrating

strong commitment to °
ethical values, and

respecting the rule of law

Principle B:

Ensuring openness and
comprehensive stakeholder
engagement

Principle C.

Defining outcomes in terms
of sustainable economic,
social,and environmental
benefit

Principle D. °

Determining the

interventions necessary to °
optimisethe achievement of

the intended outcomes

Principle E. .

Developing the entity’s
capacityincludingthe
capability of its leadership
andthe individuals withinit

Principle F. O

Managingrisks and
performance through robust
internal control and strong
public financial management

Action to Develop Areas Furtherin 2023/24 (Ongoing and New)

Itis planned to relaunchthe Leadership Management Framework, in the
early part of 2023 which has a key focus onimportance of the Council’s
Valuesinleadership and managementand the expectation placed on
employees to adopt thesein theirwayof working. In addition, these are also
integralinallteam building and customer service learning and development
programmes.

A revised Manager’s Induction Programme as part of the revised Corporate
Induction Programme will be launched inthe early part of2023 which
includes information on the Council's Values.

Full implementation of the Anti-Fraud & Corruption Strategy Action Plan
over the course of the two-year period 2022-2024

Continuing to devel op the approach to multi-year monitoringof largeand
complex capital schemes to ensure medium termimplications brought out,
including risks and mitigations.

Develop arrangements further in the light of enhanced data
requirements as a result of Office for Local Government establishment.

Continueto push forfairer funding soughtto ensure longer term service
sustainability

Refreshed approach, guidance, support, policy, and procedure for Social
Valuewill be presented to Corporate Governancein May 2023 for
signoff, the new approach seeks to achieve improved outcomes and
improved reporting.

Appointand develop therole of Independent Members of the Corporate
Governance Committee

Review and develop a fuller set of performance metrics and monitoringin
light of requirements and data emerging from the establishment of the
new Office for Local Government.

Increased use of benchmarking information.

Data Strategy andreview being progressed to further enhance the
Council’s data managementarrangements.
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Principle G.

Implementing good practices
intransparency reporting
and auditto deliver effective
accountability

Continuous development of procurement pipelines by departments.

Transparency requirements will be reviewed in2023 foralignment with
new legislation (Transforming Public Procurement)

Devel op the Corporate Governance Committee reporting annuallyto full
Council

Arrange for independent reviews of the internal auditandrisk
management functions

Implement Risk of Governance Failings - Action Plan
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Glossary of Terms

ACCOUNTING POLICIES
The specific principles, bases, conventions, rules and practices applied in preparingand presenting financial statements.

AMORTISED COST

The amortised cost of a financial assetor financial liability is:

- the amount at which the assetor liabilityis measured atinitial recognition (usually “cost”)

- minus any repayments of principal,

- minus anyreduction for impairment or uncollectibility,and

- plus or minus the cumulative amortisation of thedifference between thatinitial amountand the maturity amount.

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

- Cash is represented by cash in hand and deposits with financial institutions repayable without penalty within 24
hours.

- Cash equivalents are investments of less than 3 months from acquisition thatare readily convertible to known
amounts of cash withinsignificantrisk ofa changeinvalue.

CAPITAL EXPENDITURE
Payments for the acquisition, construction, enhancement or replacement of assets such as land, buildings, roads, and
computer equipment.

CAPITAL RECEIPTS
Income from the sale of capital assets e.g. sale of equipment. Such income may only be used to repay loan debt or to
financenew capital expenditure.

CAPITAL RESERVE
An internal reserve of the Council which is used to generate monies for financing capital expenditure thus avoiding the
need to borrow externally.

COLLECTION FUND

The fund administered by each authority collecting Council Tax and National Non Domestic Rates (districtcouncilsin shire
areas). The Authority precepts on these funds to finance its net expenditure after taking into account other sources of
income, e.g. Government Grants,and charges for services.

COMPREHENSIVE INCOME AND EXPENDITURE STATEMENT
A statement which details the total income received and expenditure incurred by the Council during a year in line with
IFRS reporting as required by the Code.

CREDITORS
Amounts owed by the Authority for work done, goods received or services rendered but for which payment has not been
made by the end of the financial year.

DEBTORS
Amounts due to the Authority but unpaid at the end of the financial year.

DEFERRED CAPITAL RECEIPTS

The Deferred Capital Receipts Reserve holds the gains recognised on thedisposal of non-currentassets butfor which cash
settlement has yet to take place. Under statutory arrangements, the Authority does not treat these gains as usable for
financing new capital expenditure until they are backed by cash receipts. When the deferred cash settlement eventually
takes place,amounts aretransferred to the Capital Receipts Reserve.

FAIR VALUE
Fair valueis the amount for which an asset could be exchanged, or a liability settled, between knowledgeable, willing
partiesinanarm’s length transaction atthe market date. Fairvalueis referred to as the exit price.
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INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (IFRS)

A statement of common accounting practices, devised by the International Accounting Standards Board, which form the
basis for the treatment and recording of transactions as applicable to the majority of large organisations, in both the
privateand public sectors.

GENERAL FUND
The mainrevenue fund (reserve) of the Authority. Precept income, National Non-Domestic Rate income and government
grants are paidinto the fund, from which the cost of providingservices is met.

IMPAIRMENT
Alossinthe value of a fixed asset, arising from physical damagesuch as a major fireor a significantreduction in market
value.Inaddition,a reductioninvaluewherethere is insufficientunrealised gains in therevaluation reservefor thatasset.

INFRASTRUCTURE
The network of roads, bridges, sewers, lighting etc.

INTANGIBLE ASSET
Non-financial non-current assets that do not have physical substance but are identifiable and are controlled by the
Authority through custody or legal rights (e.g. purchased software licences).

LEASING
A method of financingtheacquisition of assets, notably equipment, vehicles, plant, etc. There are two forms of lease:

a) A financeleaseinvolves paymentby the lessee (the user) of the full cost of the asset together with a return on the
finance provided by the lessor, usually payable over the anticipated life of the asset.
b) An operatingleaseinvolves the payment of a rental by a lesseefor a period, whichis normallylessthan theuseful

economic lifeof the asset.

LONG TERM BORROWING
Loans with terms over 1 year, raised to finance capital spending.

MINIMUM REVENUE PROVISION
The Authority has a duty to set asidea prudent amount of money as a provision for financing debtincurred to undertake
capital expenditure.

MOVEMENT IN RESERVES STATEMENT

A reconciliation showingthe movement inthe year on the different reserves held by the Authority, analysedinto ‘usablée
reserves (i.e. those that can be used to fund expenditure or reduce local taxation) and unusable reserves. It also shows
how the balance of resources generated/ consumed in the year links in with statutory requirements for raising council
tax.

NON CURRENT ASSETS
Assets which are not readily convertibleinto cash or notexpected to become cash within thenext year. Examples include
fixed assets, leasehold improvements, long term investments andlong term debtors.

NON-OPERATIONAL ASSETS
Assets held by the Authority but not directly used for the provision of services, e.g. assets surplus to requirements,
commercial properties,and assets under construction.

PRECEPTS
The income which the Authority receives from billingauthorities (e.g. council tax fromthe collection funds of the district
councils or Parish Councils).

PROVISION
An amount set asidefor any liabilities or losses of uncertain timing.

PUBLIC WORKS LOAN BOARD (PWLB)
A government body from which local authorities may obtain longterm loans,usually at preferential interestrates.
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REMUNERATION
All sums paidto an employee, includingexpenses, allowances,and redundancy payments chargeable to UK income tax,
and the monetary value of any other benefits received other than incash.

REVENUE EXPENDITURE FUNDED FROM CAPITAL UNDER STATUTE
Capital expenditureincurred not resultinginanassetto the authority e.g. Grants to villagehalls.

REVENUE SUPPORT GRANT (RSG)
Grant paid by the Government inrespect of general local authority expenditure.

RECHARGE
The transfer of costs from one serviceaccountto another.

REVENUE FUNDING OF CAPITAL
The financing of capital expenditure by a direct contribution from revenue.

REVENUE
Includes fees and interests earned from providing services and selling goods. Also includes Government grants to local
authorities.

SERVICE LEVEL AGREEMENT (SLA)
An agreement between users and providers of supportservices which specifies theserviceto be provided and the charge
to be made.

SHORT TERM ACCUMULATING COMPENSATED ABSENCES ADJUSTMENT ACCOUNT
Represents the reversal of the accrued chargeto the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement for outstanding
annual leave, flexi leaveand time off inlieu carried forward by employees required by regulations.

SPECIFIC GRANTS
Grants paid by the Government for a particular service.

TERMINATION BENEFITS

Employee benefits payable as a result of either: (a) the Authority’s decision to terminate an employee's employment
before the normal retirement date; or (b) an employee's decision to accept voluntary redundancyin exchange for those
benefits.

TRUST FUNDS
Funds administered by the Authority for such purposes as charities, prizes and specific projects.

USABLE RESERVE
An amount set asidefor purposes falling outside the definition of a provision thatan Authority canapplyto its provision
of services, either by incurring expenses or undertaking capital investment.

UNUSABLE RESERVE

An amount set aside for purposes falling outside the definition of a provision that an Authority is not able to utilise to
provideservices.These includereserves that hold unrealised gains and losses as well asadjustment accounts which hold
income and expenditure recognised statutorily againstthe general fund balanceon a different basis from that expected
by accountingstandards as adopted by the code.
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H Leicestershire
County Council
Copies of this Statement of Accounts are available from:

Technical Accounting Team,

Corporate Resources Department,
Leicestershire County Council,

County Hall, Glenfield, Leicester, LE3 8RB

Tel: 0116 305 7627

The accounts can also be viewed at www.leicestershire.gov.uk

V0315 August 2021
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